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Arion Bank

® Arion Bank is a leading universal relationship
bank in Iceland which provides a full range of
financial services.

® After a long period of strong economic growth the
economy is slowing down. Despite the landing
being softer than most expected outlook for this
year has deteriorated due to slower growth in the
export sectors.

® The balance sheet remains strong with an equal
split between retail and corporate loans, high
capital ratios and strong asset quality.

® Arion Bank is the leading bank in digital solutions
on the Icelandic market. In 2019 the Bank
launched seven customer facing digital solutions.

® |ncreased focus on profitability through capital

optimization, improved credit quality, digital
solutions and automation and organizational
efficiencies.
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Key figures 12M 2019
(ISK million)
Net earnings 1,100
ROE 0.6%
ROE continuing operations 7.2%
Net interest margin 2.8%
Cost to income ratio 56.0%
31.12.2019
Total assets 1,081,855
Loans to customers 773,955
Deposits 492,916
Borrow ings 304,745
Stage 3 gross 2.8%
Leverage ratio 14.1%
Number of employees 801
EUR/ISK 135.83
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 include the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Arion Bank ("the Bank") and its subsidiaries, together referred to as "the Group".

About Arion Bank

Arion Bank is a universal bank which focuses on developing long-term relationships with its customers and is a market leader as a provider of
cutting-edge and modern banking services. The Bank is listed on the main lists of Nasdaq Iceland and Nasdaq Stockholm.

As a universal bank Arion Bank provides services to households, corporates and investors and strives to meet the needs of customers requiring
a diverse range of financial services. The Bank has three business segments: Retail Banking, Corporate & Investment Banking, and Markets.
The service offering is further augmented by the subsidiaries Stefnir and Vordur. Stefnir is the largest fund management company in Iceland,
and Vordur is the fourth largest insurance company in Iceland, providing non-life and life insurance. The diverse service offering at Arion Bank
means that the revenue base is broad and the loan portfolio is well diversified between retail and corporate customers on the one hand and on
the other hand different business sectors.

Arion Bank occupies a strong position on its markets owing to its efficiency and diverse range of products and services. The Bank's core
strategy is to develop long-term relationships with customers by offering them outstanding services and tailor-made solutions. In order to simplify
life for its customers the Bank has set itself the objective of being a leader in digital solutions and innovation, and numerous new digital solutions
have been launched in the past few years. Digital solutions make the Bank's operations more efficient which in the long term reduces operating
expenses across the Bank. The Bank's structure has been simplified and the branch network has been streamlined.

Arion Bank is a financially robust bank which places great importance on operating responsibly in harmony with society and the environment with
the aim of creating future value for the benefit of its customers, shareholders, partners and society as a whole. The Bank also emphasizes the
importance of paying competitive dividends to shareholders.

Arion Bank is an Icelandic bank which operates in Iceland and also provides services to companies in or linked to the seafood sector in Europe
and North America.

Operations during the year

Arion Bank reported net earnings from continuing operations of ISK 14,055 million in 2019 and return on equity from continued operations
measured 7.2%. Net earnings were significantly lower due to the effects of discontinued operations and assets held for sale and amounted to
ISK 1,100 million. Return on equity was 0.6% in 2019. Total equity amounted to ISK 189,825 million at the end of the year. In March 2019 Arion
Bank sold its entire shareholding in the associate Farice ehf. for a profit of ISK 732 million. In June 2019 Arion Bank sold its entire shareholding
in Stodir hf. Arion Bank's shareholding represented 19% of outstanding share capital in Stodir. Stodir is the fifth largest shareholder of Arion
Bank with a shareholding of 4.96% at year-end.

The Group's capital ratio, as calculated under the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002, was 24.0% at year-end and the CET1 ratio was
21.2%, taking into account the share buy-back and proposed dividend payment following the AGM. This comfortably meets the requirements set
by law and the Financial Supervisory Authority of the Central Bank of Iceland (FSA). The Bank's liquidity position was also strong at year-end
and well above the regulatory minimum.

The main change on the asset side of the Bank's balance sheet in 2019 was a decrease in loans to customers of 7.2%, or by approximately ISK
60 billion. This decrease can primarily be attributed to the ISK 48 billion sale of mortgages to the Housing Financing Fund in October and a
greater emphasis on the profitability of corporate lending, which in some cases has resulted in prepayments. Liquidity has been reduced
substantially as the strong liquidity position was used to prepay expensive borrowings. This was the main change on the liabilities side; the Bank
prepaid structured covered bond, CB 2, and bought back international bonds maturing in June 2020. Borrowings decreased by more than ISK
113 billion between years. Deposits, however, increased significantly, up almost 6%, and new subordinated borrowings amounted to
approximately ISK 13 billion during the year. Equity decreased by approximately ISK 11 billion, which is due to dividends during the first half of
the year and share buy-backs under a buy-back program in October. In July 2019 Standard & Poor's affirmed Arion Bank's long-term credit
rating BBB+ but revised the outlook from stable to negative. The Bank's short-term credit rating remains A-2.

Disposal groups and assets held for sale

The operating results of the subsidiaries Valitor Holding hf., Stakksberg ehf. and Sdélbjarg ehf. are presented as discontinued operations as they
are all classified as held for sale.

Valitor Holding hf. (Valitor) is a market leader in Iceland in acquiring services and payment solutions and also operates in the Nordic region and
in the United Kingdom. The operating results of Valitor have a negative effect on the consolidated financial results of Arion Bank in 2019. The
company has had focused on growth over profitability and has reported considerable losses. The company has not fully realized its growth
ambitions with the result that, following an impairment test of Valitor's intangible assets, it was necessary to make an impairment of Valitor's
intangible assets of ISK 4 billion. Reykjavik District Court issued a decision on the case Datacell ehf. and Sunshine Press Productions ehf. vs.
Valitor hf. where Valitor was ordered to pay the plaintiffs a total of ISK 1.2 billion in damages. The cost of the company's sale process was also
considerable in 2019. The total negative effect of Valitor's operating results was ISK 8.6 billion in 2019. The sale process of Valitor continues but
is taking longer than originally expected. At the end of the year the net book value of Valitor was ISK 6.5 billion.

On 20 June 2019 Arion Bank acquired all shares in TravelCo hf. and its subsidiaries, following the enforcement of pledges. Sélbjarg ehf, a
subsidiary of Arion Bank, administers the shareholding in TravelCo. TravelCo was established following the collapse of Primera Air ehf. and
Primera Travel Group in 2018 and operates travel agencies in Scandinavia and Iceland. This change in ownership does not affect the daily
operations or services of these companies. The financial results of TravelCo were negative by ISK 1.0 billion in 2019, of which ISK 0.6 billion
was after the company was taken over by the Bank and classified as held for sale. At the end of the year the net book value of TravelCo was
ISK 2.1 billion.
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Following the bankruptcy of United Silicon in 2018, an agreement was reached between the liquidator of the estate and Arion Bank, under which
the Bank acquired all the company's main assets. The assets of the silicon plant are currently managed by Stakksberg ehf, a subsidiary of Arion
Bank. The main reason for the negative effect of Stakksberg is the valuation changes of the silicon plant owned by Stakksberg at Helguvik. After
ownership of the plant was transferred to Stakksberg the company has been working to reduce uncertainty regarding the recommissioning of the
plant. The sale of the plant has been delayed for a number of external reasons. The financial results of Stakksberg were negative by ISK 3.8
billion in 2019. At year-end the book value of Stakksberg was ISK 2.7 billion.

Operational outlook

The organizational and strategic changes introduced at the end of the third quarter are already beginning to yield positive results. Risk-weighted
assets in loans have decreased and their profitability has increased. The net interest margin has also increased due to measures on both the
lending and funding sides. The Bank will continue with this strategy. We seek to offer our customers the solutions they need, whether through
lending or different types of market funding. The Bank is highly capitalized, has strong liquidity in both Icelandic krénur and foreign currencies
and is well prepared to meet the diverse needs of its retail and corporate customers.

Increased efficiency is a goal shared by all European banks and Arion Bank is no exception. The Bank will continue to seek ways to rationalize
its business by more efficient use of capital and through technology in operations and digital channels.

The Bank has been working towards reducing Common Equity Tier 1 by paying dividends and buying back own shares, having obtained the
permission of the FSA. The CET1 ratio is 21.2% at year-end and the Bank's target is around 17%. A prerequisite for reaching this target is that
the Bank issue additional Tier 1 notes on the international markets, which it intends to do this year. This requires additional distribution of the
Bank's common equity and the Bank may hold a reverse offer of own shares if the conditions are right and/or pay additional dividend. Improved
operations of the Bank and the acquisition of own shares, at a price lower than the book value of equity, results in increased value for the
shareholders going forward.

The Bank has slightly increased its lending internationally in the seafood sector. The Bank expects to expand in this area as it brings risk
diversification and better use of capital, as according to FSA regulations the Bank needs to use less of its own capital in foreign loans than in
loans on the domestic market.

The Bank has criticized the high levies in the Icelandic banking system, both in the form of excessive taxation and the special Icelandic
implementation of international regulations. Both factors undermine the ability of the Icelandic banks and the Icelandic economy as a whole to
compete with international competitors and economic growth has already begun to slow down in Iceland. The Bank's opinions on this matter
have received strong support in the industry and the Bank will continue to draw attention to the implementation of capital buffers and tax
environment which are only applicable to Iceland and the effect this has on Iceland's competitive position.

Economic environment and outlook

According to preliminary figures, GDP growth measured 0.2% in the first nine months of 2019, slightly stronger than expected. Even though this
figure does not indicate a recession the subcomponents of GDP show that the economy has slowed down markedly. However, the outlook is for
a milder slowdown than was expected. Despite this softer landing, the outlook for 2020 has deteriorated and it is now expected that GDP growth
in 2020 will be 0.6%. Tourist arrivals decreased by 14% YoY and it is expected that the tourism sector is set for a slow turnaround with most
analysts expecting the number of tourist arrivals to hold steady between years. Households have been reacting by showing caution, resulting in
slower private consumption growth. While rising unemployment is expected to continue to dampen private consumption, increased purchasing
power and rate cuts, which have buoyed the housing market, might soften the effects. Inflation is currently low and below the Central Bank of
Iceland's 2.5% inflation target and is expected to remain so in the medium term. Last year's collective wage agreements between unions and
employers, with an emphasis on longer term purchasing power, working hours and housing initiatives, laid the basis for economic stability over
the next few years.

Employees

The Group had 801 full-time equivalent positions at the end of the year compared with 904 at the end of 2018; 687 of these positions were at
Arion Bank, compared with 794 at the end of 2018. At the end of September 2019 organizational changes were introduced resulting in a 12%
reduction in the number of employees, or approximately 100 people. Salary and salary related expenses of ISK 1,079 million were expensed in
respect of the redundancies.

Funding and liquidity
The Group's liquidity position is strong, with a liquidity coverage ratio of 188%, see Note 44, well above the regulatory minimum of 100%.

Deposits, which are the core of the Bank's funding, increased by ISK 27 billion or approximately 6% from 2018 to 2019. The composition of
deposits has changed in such a way that retail and SME deposits have proportionally increased but deposits from institutional investors have
decreased. Long-standing economic growth, increased purchasing power of customers and the Bank's increased focus on deposits are the main
reasons for this positive development.

In 2019 Arion Bank issued ISK 14 billion under its EMTN program. In November 2019 the Bank repurchased EUR 258 million (ISK 35 billion) of
EUR 300 million bonds maturing in June 2020. All received offers were accepted.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

In 2019 Arion Bank concluded three subordinated issues in foreign currencies, EUR 5 million in March, NOK 300 million in July and SEK 225
million in December. The Bank also issued two new subordinated bonds series in Icelandic kréna, totalling ISK 5.7 billion. The total issuance of
Tier 2 capital was ISK 13.6 billion in 2019. The bonds are eligible as Tier 2 capital under the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002.
The Tier 2 bond issue strengthens the Bank's own funds and is a milestone towards reaching a more optimal capital structure.

Arion Bank continued to issue covered bonds which are secured under the Covered Bond Act No. 11/2008. In 2019 the Bank issued covered
bonds amounting to ISK 32,200 million.

In recent years Arion Bank has issued commercial paper on the domestic market. Given its strong liquidity position the Bank decided in the
autumn to stop issuing commercial paper and no further issues are planned for the time being. Commercial paper amounting to ISK 14.5 billion
was issued in 2019. Outstanding commercial paper at the end of 2019 amounted to ISK 1,680 million.

In 2019 Arion Bank fully prepaid the bond series Arion CB 2, a total of ISK 81 billion.

Group ownership

The main venue at which the Board and the Bank report information to the shareholders and propose decisions is at legally convened
shareholders' meetings. The Bank provides an effective and accessible arrangement for communications between shareholders and the Board
of Directors between those meetings. Any information sensitive to the market will be released through a MAR press release. Arion Bank also
arranges quarterly meetings where the CEO, CFO and Investor Relations present the interim financial results.

At the end of December 2019 Taconic Capital was the largest shareholder of Arion Bank, with a holding of 23.53%, and Sculptor Capital
Management was the second largest with a holding of 9.53%. Following the launch of a share buy-back program at the end of October, Arion
Bank held 2.27% of own shares at the end of year. For further information on the shareholders of Arion Bank, see Note 36.

Capital, Dividend and RWAs

In September 2019, the FSA's annual Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP) for Arion Bank was concluded. The additional capital
requirement under Pillar 2 is determined on the basis of the Group's internal capital adequacy assessment (ICAAP). The additional requirement
is 3.1% of risk-weighted assets (RWA) based on the Group's Financial Statements as at 31 December 2018, excluding insurance subsidiaries.
The previous requirement was 2.9% of RWA and the increase is primarily attributed to distressed assets that are classified as held for sale. As a
result, the Bank's total regulatory requirement, including the combined capital buffer requirement, is 20.1% on 31 December 2019. In February
2020, the countercyclical capital buffer is set to increase by 0.25%, which results in a total capital requirement of 20.3% for the Bank. The ratio
of risk-weighted assets was 66.5% at year-end 2019 and 68.4% at year-end 2018. Taking into account the Group's internal management buffer,
currently 100-200bps, the Group's capital benchmark is 21.3% to 22.3%. The Group's target Common Equity Tier 1 ratio (CET1) is around 17%.
The Group's capital adequacy ratio at 31 December 2019 was 24.0% and CET 1 ratio 21.2%. The ratios account for a foreseeable equity
reduction of ISK 14.2 billion in the form of dividend distribution and purchase of own shares according to the Bank's share buy-back program.
The Bank has recently taken active steps to normalize the Bank's capital structure in accordance with its capital policy. In April 2019, Arion
Bank's share capital was reduced by 186 million shares, through the cancellation of the Bank's own shares. Arion Bank's share capital amounts
to ISK 1,814 million after the reduction. In 2019, the Group's Tier 2 capital increased by ISK 13.5 billion through new issuance of subordinated
bonds. Dividend payments and purchase of own shares amounted to ISK 12.4 billion in 2019. With the Bank now operating on a capital level
close to the requirements, the Bank will increase its focus on capital management with the aim to improve profitability.

In September 2019 the Board of Directors of Arion Bank authorized the management of the Bank to initiate share buy-back programs in Iceland
and Sweden to purchase own shares. This is in accordance with an authorization granted by Arion Bank's Annual General Meeting on 20 March
2019. In September 2019 the FSA approved the Bank's request to initiate the share buy-back program for up to 59 million own shares
(corresponding to 3.25% of issued share capital) for up to ISK 4.5 billion market value. At year end 2019 Arion Bank had bought approximately
41 million shares in share buy-back programs in Sweden and Iceland, with approximately 18 million shares remaining from the program. In
January 2020 the FME approved further buy-back of own shares for up to ISK 3.5 billion. The buy-back program will continue until the AGM in
March 2020.

The Board of Directors proposes that the Bank pay dividends of ISK 10.0 billion equaling ISK 5.5 per share. The Board of Directors has the
authority to propose that the Bank pay dividends or other disbursement of equity and may convene a special shareholders' meeting later in the
year to propose any such distribution.

Risk management

The Group faces various risks arising from its day-to-day operations as a financial institution. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within the
Group. The key to effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure, actions to
limit risk and constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price the risk
encountered is critical to the Group's continuing profitability as is the ability to ensure that the Group's exposure to risk remains within acceptable
levels. The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Group's risk management framework and ensuring that satisfactory risk policies
and governance for controlling the Group's risk exposure are in place. The Group's risk management, its structure and main risk factors are
described in the notes and in the Bank’s unaudited Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019
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by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Governance

At the last Annual General Meeting on 20 March 2019, six members were elected to serve on the Board of Directors until the next AGM, three
women and three men. The new members were Liv Fiksdahl and Renier Lemmens, while Benedikt Gislason, Brynjolfur Bjarnason, Herdis Drofn
Fjeldsted and Steinunn Kristin béroardottir were re-elected. Furthermore, three Alternate Directors (two men and one woman) were elected, and
they attend meetings of the Board of Directors in the event that a Director resigns or is unable to attend.

A shareholders' meeting of Arion Bank was held on 9 August 2019. Paul Richard Horner and Gunnar Sturluson were elected as new members of
the Board of Directors and will serve until the Bank's next AGM. One of them replaces Benedikt Gislason, who became CEO of the Bank on 1
July and resigned as a member of the Board of Directors before taking up the new position.

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank is committed to good corporate governance and endeavors to promote responsible behavior and corporate
culture within Arion Bank for the benefit of all stakeholders. Arion Bank has to this end devised a corporate governance statement which is
designed to help foster open and honest relations between the Board of Directors, shareholders, customers and other stakeholders, such as the
Bank's employees and the general public. Arion Bank was initially in December 2015 and again in April 2019 recognized as a company which
had achieved excellence in corporate governance. The recognition applies for three years unless significant changes are made to the Bank's
management or ownership.

The Board of Directors is the supreme authority in the affairs of the Bank between shareholders' meetings. The Board attends to those
operations of the Bank which are not considered part of the day-to-day business, i.e. it makes decisions on issues which are unusual or of a
significant nature. The Board of Directors appoints a Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for the day-to-day operations in accordance with
the strategy set out by the Board. The CEO hires the Executive Management. There are four Board subcommittees: the Board Audit Committee,
the Board Risk Committee, the Board Credit Committee and the Board Remuneration Committee. One of the committee members on the Board
Audit Committee is not a Board member and is independent of the Bank and its shareholders.

The main roles of the Board, as further specified in the rules of procedure of the Board, include approving the Bank's strategy, supervising
financial affairs and accounting and ensuring that appropriate internal controls are in place. The Board ensures that the Bank has active Internal
Audit, Compliance and Risk Management departments. The Internal Auditor is appointed by the Board of Directors and works independently of
other departments of the Bank in accordance with a charter from the Board. The Internal Auditor provides independent and objective assurance
and advice designed to add value and improve the Bank's operations. The Compliance Officer, who reports directly to the CEO, works
independently within the Bank in accordance with a charter from the Board. The main role of Compliance is to ensure that the Bank has in place
proactive measures to reduce the risk of rules being breached in the course of its activities. Compliance is also responsible for coordinating the
Bank’s measures against money laundering and terrorist financing. The duties of Compliance are carried out under a risk-based compliance
plan approved by the Board of Directors, including a training and monitoring schedule.

Corporate governance at Arion Bank is described in more detail in the Bank's Corporate Governance Statement which is contained in the
unaudited appendix to the Financial Statement and on the website www.arionbanki.is. The Corporate Governance Statement is based on
legislation, regulations and recognized guidelines in force when the Bank's annual financial statements are adopted by the Board of Directors.
This statement is prepared in accordance with the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002 and Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 5th
edition, issued by the Icelandic Chamber of Commerce, SA — Business Iceland and Nasdaq Iceland in May 2015. Corporate governance at
Arion Bank complies with the guidelines with one exception, which is explained in more detail in the Corporate Governance Statement.

Sustainability and non-financial reporting

Arion Bank is a strongly capitalized bank which provides universal banking services to companies and individuals with the aim of creating future
value for the benefit of our customers, shareholders, partners and society as a whole. Arion Bank's sustainability policy bears the title Together
we make good things happen and indicates that the Bank intends to act as a role model by promoting responsible and profitable business
practices, which take into account the environment, the economy and the society in which the Bank operates.

We refer to Arion Bank's values as cornerstones and they are designed to provide guidance when making decisions and in everything the
employees say and do. They refer to the Bank's role, attitude and conduct. The values are we make a difference, we get things done, and we
say what we mean. The Bank's code of conduct is designed to support responsible decision-making and has been approved by the Board of
Directors.

In September 2019 the Bank became a signatory to the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking (UN PRB). These principles,
presented during the autumn at the start of the UN General Assembly, align banking with international goals and commitments such as the UN
Sustainable Development Goals and the Paris Climate Agreement. In December the Board of Directors adopted a new environment and climate
policy which is aligned with the principles.

Arion Bank's activities are governed by the provisions of the Annual Accounts Act on non-financial reporting, which, among other things, apply to
the status and influence of the company in respect of environmental, social and human resources issues. The Bank's Annual Report, which will
be published on 19 February 2020, contains this information and descriptions of the company's business model, non-financial performance
indicators, the company's sustainability policy and information on the due diligence process. It also discusses human rights and how the
company is tackling financial crime. A description of the main risks faced by the Bank can be found in the Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures which is
published simultaneously with the Annual Report.

Non-financial reporting is based on the Global Reporting Initiative, GRI Core. When sharing information on non-financial factors of the business,
the ESG reporting guide for the Nasdaq Nordic and Baltic exchanges and the 10 Principles of the UN Global Compact are also used a
reference. The Bank also looks to the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

The Annual Report will be available online here: https://arsskyrsla2019.arionbanki.is.
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Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial
Statements Act, Financial Undertakings Act and Rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

It is our opinion that the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial performance and cash flow of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and its financial position as at 31 December 2019.

Furthermore, in our opinion the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the CEO give a fair view
of the development and performance of the Group's operations and its position and describe the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed the Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31
December 2019 and confirm them by means of their signatures.

Reykjavik, 12 February 2020
Board of Directors

Lt

Brynjolfur Bjarnason
Chairman

wle D leldidred

Hérdis Drofn Fjeldsted
Vice Chairman

D e

Paul Richard Horner

Gunnar Sturluson

Steinunn Kristin Thordardottir

Chief Executive Officer

Wﬂf&//&»—

Benedikt Gislason
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Independent Auditor's report

To the Board of Directors and shareholders of Arion Bank.

Opinion
We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank hf. for the year ended December 31, 2019 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and the notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of Arion Bank
hf. as at December 31, 2019, its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statement Act.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
Arion Bank hf. in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Impairment charges for loans and provisions for guarantees

Loans to customers for the Group amounted to ISK 783,126 million at
31 December 2019, and the total allowance account for the Group
amounted to ISK 9,720 million (including off-balance positions) at 31
December 2019.

The Group evaluates its impairment on loans on the basis of IFRS 9,
resulting in impairment charges being recognized when losses are
expected based on forecasting models.

Management has provided further information about the accounting
policies for expected credit losses in note 56 and about loan
impairment charges and provisions for guarantees in notes 15 and
42.

Measurement of loan impairment charges for loans and provisions for
guarantees is deemed a key audit matter as the determination of
assumptions for expected credit losses is subjective due to the level
of judgement applied by Management.

The most significant judgements are:

» Assumptions used in the expected credit loss models to assess the
credit risk related to the exposure and the expected future cash flows
of the customer.

« Timely identification of exposures with significant increase in credit
risk and credit impaired exposures.

« Valuation of collateral and assumptions used for manually assessed
credit-impaired exposures.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Based on our risk assessment and industry knowledge, we have
examined the impairment charges for loans and provisions for
guarantees and evaluated the methodology applied as well as the
assumptions made according to the description of the key audit
matter.

As part of our audit, we have examined the Group's implementation of
IFRS 9. As part of our review of the implementation we performed
substantive procedures on the Group's impairment models and
reviewed the methodology implemented for expected credit loss
calculations. We used risk modelling specialists as well as IFRS
specialists as part of our audit.

Our examination included the following elements:

* Testing of key controls over key assumptions used in the expected
credit loss models to assess the credit risk related to the exposure
and the expected future cash flows of the customer.

» Substantively testing evidence to support the assumptions used in
the expected credit loss models applied in stage allocation,
assumptions applied to derive lifetime possibility of default and
methods applied to derive loss given default.

» Testing of key controls and substantive testing of timely identification
of exposures with significant increase in credit risk and timely
identification of credit impaired exposures.

» Testing of key controls over models and manual processes for
valuation of collateral used in the expected credit loss calculations.

» Substantively testing evidence to support appropriate determination
of assumptions for loan impairment charges and provisions for
guarantees including valuation of collateral and assumptions of future
cash flows on manually assessed credit impaired exposures.



Independent Auditor's report

Key Audit Matters
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How the matter was addressed in the audit

Revenue recognition

Interest income is a key element to the core business of the Bank.
This is the single largest item in the consolidated income statement.

Interest income is subject to contractual terms and is highly reliant on
IT controls and other controls within the Bank's control environment.

Therefore, we consider interest income as a key audit matter.

The basis for revenue recognition and accounting policies are
presented in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disposal groups held for sale valuation

We reviewed the policies, processes and controls surrounding
revenue recognition. We have tested relevant controls related to
accounting for interest income. We have tested the appropriateness
of the interest calculation in accordance with IFRS.

We tested interest income by a select sample of loans and compared
the underlying data to the loans system. In addition, we performed
analytical procedures on interest income. The Bank’s applications
controls for the IT systems were tested for interest calculation.

Furthermore, we selected a sample of loans to ensure that interest is
being accrued correctly.

Disposal groups held for sale amounts to ISK 42,044 million among
assets in the Consolidated Balance sheet at year-end and the
comparable amount among debts is ISK 28,631 million.

The Group evaluates this category of assets in accordance with IFRS
5 and according to note 29 there are three disposal companies for
consideration where the Bank holds all the share capital.

Valuation for Disposal groups held for sale involves management
judgements and the assumptions involve a high level of uncertainties,
which can be challenging to verify. The valuation is based on many
assumptions like future growth, yield, value of cash generating units
etc. that can have a significant impact on the valuation and therefore

Based on our risk assessment and industry knowledge, we have
examined the valuation of assets and disposal groups held for sale
and evaluated the methodology applied as well as the assumptions
made according to the description of the key audit matter.

We reviewed the policies, processes and controls surrounding the
valuation for groups held for sale. We have tested relevant controls
related to accounting for groups available for sale. We have tested the
appropriateness of the classification of groups available for sale is in
accordance with IFRS 5.

We have used valuation specialists to challenge the management
judgement and key assumption for the valuation.

the Bank’s net income and balance sheet.

The application of IFRS 5 ‘Non-Current Asset Held for Sale and
Discontinued operations’ is significant to our audit also because the
assessment of the classification can be complex. We need to make
sure that the management is committed to a plan to sell and the asset
is available for immediate sale.

Other information

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the unaudited appendix to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, 5-year overview, key figures, unaudited quarterly statements in note number 6 and Endorsement and
statements by the Board of Directors and the CEO.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon, except the confirmation regarding the Endorsement and the statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO as
stated below.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In accordance with Paragraph 2 article 104 of the Icelandic Financial Statement Act no. 3/2006, we confirm to the best of our knowledge that the
accompanying the Endorsement and statements by the Board of Directors and the CEO includes all information required by the Icelandic
Financial Statement Act that is not disclosed elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the CEO for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional requirements in the Icelandic
Financial Statement Act, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors and the CEO determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for assessing Arion Bank hf.'s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019
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Independent Auditor's report

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Arion Bank hf.'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Képavogur, 12 February 2020

/// ( ’, Deloitte ehf. |

Pall Grétar'Steingrimsson aukur Ingi Hjaltalin
State AuthoriZed Public Accquntant State Authorized Public Accountant

v
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Consolidated Income Statement
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Notes 2019 2018
L) (TSI AT aToto 1 1[I TP 58,307 59,316
L0 T =T =Y o 1=T L] O PSPPSR PRSP (27,990) (29,997)
NEL INTEIEST INCOME ...oviviiiieiieeeetceee ettt ettt e ettt s e et e s e et etese e et et e s s s ebe s et et ese et et esesseseseneaes 7 30,317 29,319
Fee and commission income .. 11,499 11,658
Fee and commission expense (1,549) (1,308)
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ......c.ciiviuiiiciete ettt ettt e et e e bt e st e e st e s e s e s eseaeeseseseaes 8 9,950 10,350
L AT ISV = U (o1 S (o701 L= PN 9 2,886 2,589
N[ R 1 F=Tq el t= 1T olo T3 L= 10 3,212 2,302
Share Of Profit Of ASSOCIALES .......cuvieiiiiiiiiiie et e e st e e s st e e e e e ssbbeeeesennnnes 26 756 27
Other OPErating iNCOIME ..........ciiiiiie ettt et s e s e e e e e see e e ene e n e e e e e saeeeees 11 877 1,584
Other NEt OPErating INCOME .......ciiiiiiiiirieteietetet ettt ettt ere e te et be et e ses e e e eesene et esene s esene e enane 7,731 6,502
OPETALING INCOME ....oovviieeecee ettt ettt ettt s et s et a sttt sessas 47,998 46,171
Salaries and related EXPENSES .......ciiiiuiiiiiee ittt e et e e et e e e s b e e e s e bbtee e e s st bbb et e e s anbbreeeeeaabbeeee s 12 (14,641) (14,278)
Other OPErating EXPENSES .......ccueiiieiieiiiiietie e st et ee ettt e e e st e sie e e e e s bt e s reesbeessr e e e e e e e e saeesaeeseeeeeneennes 13 (12,222) (12,000)
OPEIALNG EXPENSES ...o.vevoveeeeecieseseesessssstessssesss s sae s s s sae s ssessssessssessssessssenss s s st s s et s sessssesessessssensssensssns (26,863)  (26,278)
12 L] (=1 YOS PPPPRP PPN 14 (2,984) (3,386)
NEL IMPAIIMENT ...t s e e e e e e et e e e e s b e e seeese e e n e e sreeseeeeenas 15 (382) (3,525)
Earnings before INCOME TAX ....iiiiiiiiiiie et et e et et e e et e e nsbe e e nneeeenneee 17,769 12,982
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE .ceiiiiiiieee e ettt e e e ettt e e e e sttt e e e e et bttt e e e e e bbbttt e e s aas bbb et e e e e asabbeeeeeeansbbeeeeeeanbbbeeaeesnnbbees 16 (3,714) (4,046)
Net earnings from CONtiNUING OPEIatioNS ....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e s st r e e e e s e 14,055 8,936
Discontinued operations held for sale, net 0f INCOME taX ...........coviiiiiiiiiic e 17 (12,955) (1,159)
NEE BAIMINGS ...vvetteeeteeeeteeeteeetete ettt eeese e eteseseae et eseseetese s ebese e et eEe st aseses e e eeesensasesere s esesensaaete s asere e anaseneas 1,100 7,777
Attributable to
Shareholders of Arion Bank hf. ........ooiiiiii e 1,096 7,116
NON-CONLIOIING INTEIESE ...ttt s e e nree s 4 661
N =TT g 1T o 1 SO UPPPT 1,100 7,777
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank (ISK) ..........c......... 18 0.61 3.86

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

[N (== T a1 o T T PP PP TOPPPPTRN

Net gain on financial assets carried at fair value through OCI, net of tax .........ccccoeveiiiiiiiiieenieceneeee
Realized net gain on financial assets carried at fair value through OCI,
net of tax, transferred to the INCOME STAEMENT ...........iiiiiiiieee e e e

Changes to reserve for financial instruments at fair value through OCI ...........ccocoiiiiiiiniiiiicee

Exchange difference on translating foreign subsidiaries .............cccccciiiiiiiiiiiii

Other comprehensive income that is or may be reclassified
subsequently to the INCOME STALEMENT ......ciiiiiiiiiiiii e e e ee e e

Total COMPIrENENSIVE INCOME ....eiiiiiiie ittt et ettt e ettt e e snb et e anteeeenteeeeneeeennneeens

Attributable to

Shareholders Of AfION BANK ...........oiiiiiiiiiiei et
NON-CONLrOIING INEEIEST ...t sttt e s

Total COMPrENENSIVE INCOME ....eiiiiiieeiiie ettt e ettt e ettt e e snb et e snb e e e enteeesnneeennneeens

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes 2019 2018
1,100 7,777

482 89

10 (433) (112)
49 (23)

135 123

184 100

1,284 7,877

1,280 7,216

4 661

1,284 7,877

Amounts are in ISK millions
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets Notes 2019 2018
Cash and balances With CENLIal BANK ............uuuuiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e st e e e e e e aaaaeeeeeeaens 19 95,717 83,139
LOANS t0 Credit INSHEULIONS ......vvvuiiii e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s es b b s s eessssbba e eeeesssaaaaaaees 20 17,947 56,322
Loans to customers .... . 21 773,955 833,826
FINANCIAI INSTIUMEBNTS ...ttt e e e e e et e e e e e et et e e e e e e e e s ba e s eeseeabbaa e eeseessaannneeeeesaes 22-24 117,406 114,557
INVESTMENT PrOPEILY ...ooeiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt e ettt e e e s bbb e e e e e e bbe b e e e e e et be et e e e s sbbbeeeeeeaaes 24 7,119 7,092
INVESTMENLS IN ASSOCIAES ......uveieiiiiiiirie ettt ettt e e e et e e e e st e e e n bt e e s e e sreeenanne 26 852 818
INEANGIDIE ASSELS ...ttt et e e et e e bt e bbb e e e ae s 27 8,367 6,397
LI Gz 53] PP 28 2 90
Assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ...........c.ooiiiiiiii e 29 43,626 48,584
(@)1 LT = 11T £ PR 30 16,864 13,502
TOLAI ASSEES itttk h et h e Rt R et et e et e e e e e e e e nan 1,081,855 1,164,327

Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ...............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicceccccci et eaeee e aeeeeeeneeeareeaaees 23 5,984 9,204
[DTT0 o1 T TSSO TSP P PO VRSP PPRRPRON 23 492,916 466,067
Financial llabilitieS at fair VAIUE ...........eevieeiieiieiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 23 2,570 2,320
TAX HADITIES ...ttt b e b e et b ekt ek e e s e et e et e e e e nne et 28 4,404 5,119
Liabilities associated with disposal groups held for Sale .............coccoiiiiiiiiiiii e 29 28,631 26,337
O IADIIIEIES ...e..veevee ettt ettt b e s ket s et b ekt e s be e e b e e et e et e ebeenne et 31 32,697 30,107
Borrowings 23,32 304,745 417,782
Y] o Jo T (o T F= 1 (=To M LF= o1 [T TR 23,33 20,083 6,532
TOLAI LIADITITIES ..viiutieiiiitie ittt b skt eb et e bt et e b e e et eenes 892,030 963,468

Equity
Share capital and SHhare PremMIUM ... i e et e et e e st e et eesneeeeannee 35 55,715 59,010
(@) (LT =TT =T AT 9,493 14,822
Retained earnings ............... . 124,436 126,897

Total Shareholders' Equity ... 189,644 200,729

N (ol g T ete a1 u o] | TaT T a1 (=T 1= 1) AR PP TSP PPPTPOOE 181 130
B Io) =1l Lo T TSPV PO P OPRTOPRPRNY 189,825 200,859
Total LiabilitieS and EQUITY ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit ettt e ettt e e s st e e e s s sbb et e e e e s snabeee e e s e s bbreeeeesanbbnes 1,081,855 1,164,327

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity 1 January 2019 .......ccccooviieiiiiiiinieeeiee e

Net earnings
Net fair value gain .........cceeiiiieiieeeeeee e
Realized net gain transferred to the Income Statement .......

Translation difference ...

Total comprehensive iNCOMEe .......oevvviiiieieiiiiiiicee e

Dividend Paid .........cccoveiiiiiiiiiee e
Purchase of treasury StOCK * ........ccvvviieiiiiiiieeeeiiiiiee e
Changes in treasury Stock ** ...
Changes iNFESEIVES .......uuuivieiiiiiiiieeeeiitie e e
Acquisition of a subsidiary ............ccccoooiiiiiiiii

Equity 31 December 2019 .........ccccooviiiiiniciiine e

Restricted reserves

o
LIS

Financial Foreign

Gain in assets at currency Total Non-

subs. & Gain in Capitalized fair value trans- share- cont-
Share Share assoc., securities, develop-  thr. OCI, Statutory lation Retained holders' rolling Total
capital premium unrealized unrealized mentcost unrealized reserve reserve earnings equity interest equity
1,814 57,196 12,373 417 - 87 1,637 308 126,897 200,729 130 200,859
1,096 1,096 4 1,100
481 481 481
(433) (433) (433)
135 135 135
- - - - - 48 - 135 1,096 1,279 4 1,284
(9,069) (9,069) (9,069)
(41) (3,242) (3,283) (3,283)
©) (13) (13) 13)
(6,246) 275 459 5,512 - -
- 47 47
1,773 53,942 6,127 692 459 135 1,637 443 124,436 189,644 181 189,825

* Refers to the purchase of own shares following an approval of the Board of Directors to authorize the Bank to initiate share buy-back programs in Iceland and Sweden (the Programs) to purchase own shares, which is in line with an authorization granted
by the AGM on 20 March 2019. The purpose of the Programs is to reduce the Bank's share capital (in line with the Bank's dividend policy). The Bank may purchase up to 59,000,000 share in total under the Programs corresponding to 3.25% of the current

issued share capital, or for up to ISK 4.5 billion market value.

** |n 2018 close to 4 million shares were allocated to employees at ISK 75 per share, a total of ISK 295 million. In accordance with the employees stock grant programme, an employee who resigns within the vesting period of two years, returns the shares

to the Bank.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Restricted reserves

Financial Foreign
Gain in assets at currency Total Non-
subs. & Gainin Capitalized fair value trans- share- cont-

Share Share assoc., securities, develop-  thr. OCI Statutory lation Retained holders' rolling Total

capital premium unrealized unrealized mentcost unrealized reserve reserve earnings equity interest equity
Equity 31 December 2017 .......cccooieieieieenie e 2,000 73,861 14,050 903 - - 1,637 185 132,971 225,606 128 225,734
Impact of adopting IFRS 9, 1 January 2018 .............cceeuueeee. (108) 110 939 941 941
Restated opening balance ...........cccceiiiiieiiiiieneee 2,000 73,861 14,050 795 - 110 1,637 185 133,910 226,548 128 226,676
NEL CAMMINGS ...veiiiiiie it 7,116 7,116 661 7,777
Net fair value gain .........occvveieeiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 89 89 89
Realized net gain transferred to the Income Statement ....... (112) (112) (112)
Translation difference ..........cccoceeiiiiiie e 123 123 123
Total comprehensive iNCOME ..........oceevieiiciiciinieee - - - - - (23) - 123 7,116 7,216 661 7,877
Dividend PaId .......c.eeivieiiiiiiiiieeie e (16,184) (16,184) (16,184)
Purchase of treasury StoCK ** ...........cccooiiiiiiiinieeeeeee, (190) (16,949) (17,139) (17,139)
Own shares allocated to employees * .............ccccoocvvieieenns 4 291 295 295
Changes in treasury StOCK * ........occvveiieeiiiiiiee e 0) ©) (@) (@)
Changes iN FESEIVES .......uueiiieiiiiiiiee et e e (1,677) (378) 2,055 - -
Sale of a subsidiary ..........cccooeviiiiii e - (659) (659)
Equity 31 December 2018 .........cccoocuieiiieiieiiiiie e 1,814 57,196 12,373 417 - 87 1,637 308 126,897 200,729 130 200,859

* In 2018 close to 4 million shares were allocated to employees at ISK 75 per share, a total of ISK 295 million. In accordance with the employees stock grant programme, an employee who resigns within the vesting period of two years, returns the shares
to the Bank.

** Refers to the changes in the holding of own shares related to the decision to accept an offer from Kaupskil ehf., a subsidiary of Kaupthing ehf., to buy back 9.5% of issued share capital in Arion Bank, or 190 million shares. The decision to accept the
offer from Kaupskil ehf. is in line with the decision taken at a shareholders’ meeting on 12 February 2018 to amend the Bank's articles of association with a temporary authorization for the Board of Directors to buy back shares issued by the Bank. Arion

Bank paid ISK 90.087 a share, a total of ISK 17,139 million.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

2019 2018
Operating activities

(=T =T= g ] o T PRSP PPRT PSPPI 1,100 7,777
Non-cash items INCIUAEd IN NEE EAIMINGS ......coiuiiiiiiie et e e e e bt e e s b e e st e e sbne e e (10,284) (14,194)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Loans to credit institutions, excluding bank aCCOUNLS ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 16,152 14,863
(o T= Y ER (o I U ] (0] 4 L=T £ TR 62,318 (50,267)
Financial instruments and financial liabilities at fair ValUe ..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiii e (2,047) (9,846)
(DT oo LS PSSP PUP PP 24,457 (2,802)
22T 01111 T 1O PP O PP PUTPPPRPN (119,010) 14,867
Other changes in operating assets and abilities .............c.ooiiiiiiiii e (7,098) (4,731)
[ (S T A =TT T LY7o R 56,705 47,119
L L=T =S A o= 1o [P TP PP PPPPRPPTINE (27,641) (24,712)
{11V To [T (o J g =ToT =11 V7= 132 3,082
[La[eTe] =T = D o - Lo PP PR PP PP (4,341) (5,667)

Net cash used in operating activities (9,557) (24,511)

Investing activities

Proceeds from SalIE Of @SSOCIALES ..........uiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt ekt e et e it e e e e e s ineeeenneeenen 740 -
ACQUISITION OF BSSOCIALES .......veiiieeiie ittt et s e st e e she e e e e e e e sbe e s ae e s se e e e e esteesaeeseeesaneenee e (29) (60)
Proceeds from Sale Of SUDSITIANES ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e e e e e e - 265
ACQUISItION OF SUDSIAIATIES ..ottt st e e re e st e e e e e seeeeeas (80) -
AcqQUISItIoN O INTANGIDIE @SSELS ......eoiiiiie e e e (2,750) (1,372)
Proceeds from sale of property and ©QUIPMENT ........oiiuiiiiiieiiiiiiit ettt e et e e e s s bbb e e e e s sibreeeeseenabeeeeessannbres 643 12

Acquisition of property and equipment (498) (374)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,964) (1,529)

Financing activities

(U Te IS U] oo o [TaFoNT=To M TT=T o1 AT 13,625 6,780
Purchase of treasury Stock .........cccccceeeiiinnnns (3,283) (17,139)
Dividend paid to shareholders of Arion BanK ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e (9,069) (16,184)
Net cash from (used) in fINANCING ACTIVITIES ......cccviiiiiiiiiiieieiece ettt ettt ettt te et eeaeanis 1,273 (26,543)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents .............. (10,248) (52,583)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110,589 181,898
Cash and cash equivalents transferred to Assets and disposal groups held for sale ............cccccceiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiee e - (22,198)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equIValents ..............ccccoooiiiiiiii i 1,845 3,472
Cash and CASH EQUIVAIENTS .....c..ccuiiiie ettt et e e e et e e be e sbe e stb e e abe e beesbeesseeeaseesseenseesbeesteestseanbeereenns 102,186 110,589

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with Central Bank . 95,717 83,139
L2 T T QT oo 11 £ PRURRR 16,437 38,038
Mandatory reserve deposit With CeNtral BANK ............c..ioiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (9,968) (10,588)
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNTS .........ociiiiiiiii e e e e e e s e e e s e e s e e sneeeeas 102,186 110,589

Non-cash changes due to acquisition of TravelCo
Assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ...........cooiiiiiiii e 1,632 -
LONS 10 CUSTOMEIS ...ttt ettt ettt e b4kt o ke ekt ettt 2t e ekt e e ket e e e et e na bt e e ss b e e e nte e e e e e e enneeens (1,632) -
* Interest paid includes interest credited to deposit accounts at the end of the year.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Contents

page
General information
Basis of preparation ..........ccccocvveeieiiiiiiiiiie e 19
Changes in accounting poliCies ..........ccccceeeviiiiieeeiniiiinnen. 19
Significant accounting estimates and judgements
in applying accounting poliCies ...........ccccoevviireeeeiiiiienen. 19
THE GrOUP oo 20
Operating segment reporting
Operating SEgMENLS ......coviuvrriieeiiiiiiiee e e 21
Quarterly statements
Operations by qUArErS ...........eeeeviiiiiiiiee e 23
Notes to the Consolidated Income Statement
Net INterest INCOME .......ceviiiiieiiiieeeeee e 24
Net fee and commisSSiON INCOME ..........ccovviiiiiieiiiieeiieee 25
Net INSUrance INCOME .........cceiiiiieeiiie e 25
Net financial iNCOME .........covviiiiiiiiiiec e 26
Other operating INCOME ..........ceeiviiiiiiiiiee e 26
Personnel and salaries ...........cccocoveiiiiiiniiinie e 26
Other operating EXPENSE .........ccovvieriieeiiiieiniee e 28
BaNK IEVY ..o 28
Net IMPaIMENT ........cccviiiiiiiii e 28
INCOME taX EXPENSE .....ccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 29
Discontinued operations held for sale, net of income tax .. 29
Earnings per SNare ...........ccoceeeeiiiiiiiiciiie e 29

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Cash and balances with Central Bank ............ccccccceeeeenne. 30
Loans to credit iNStItUtIONS .........ccceeeiiieiiiiciiecc e 30
LOoaNS t0 CUSIOMENS ......covviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccc e 30
Financial inStruments ...........ccooveeiiiieiieceec e 30
Financial assets and financial liabilities ................cccccccu.. 31
Fair value hierarchy ..........ccccooveiiiiini e 33

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ..............
Investment in aSSOCIALES ...........covverviiiiiieiiee e
INtaNgIible ASSELS .......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Tax assets and tax liabilities ...........ccccooeiriiiiiiiiiieens
Assets and disposal groups held for sale

and associated liabilities ............ccocoieviieniiecne
Other @SSELS ....co.vviiiiiieiiie ettt
Other abIlitIes ........cocovviiiiiiiii e
BOITOWINGS ..eeeiiiiiiiiiee ittt e s
Subordinated liabilities ............ccccoeviiiiiiiinie
Pledged aSSEetS .......cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e
EQUILY it

Other information
Shareholders of Arion Bank ...........ccoeeviiiiiieeiiiiiiiiee i
Legal MAErS ....uveiiieeiiieiee et

Events after the reporting period ...........ccccccevvviiiiiieeiiinnnns

Off Balance sheet information
COMMITMENTS ..eiiiiiiiiiiie e

Assets under management and under custody .................

Related party
Related Party .........ccoovveiiiiiiiieeee e

Risk management disclosures
Credit MSK ..o
Market Fisk .......cccooiiiiiiiiiii i
Liquidity and Funding risk .........ccccccoeiiiniiiiniieiiecceeens
Capital management .........cccoovveirieeeniieeeeeee e

Operational FiSK ..........ccocviiiiiieiiieeeeeee e

Significant accounting policies

18

38
38
39
40

40
42
42
44
44
45
45

46
46
a7

48
48

48

49
57
63
67
69

70



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Arion Bank hf., the Parent Company, was established on 18 October 2008 and is incorporated and domiciled in Iceland. The registered
office of Arion Bank hf. is located at Borgartin 19, Reykjavik. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 comprise the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

1. Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved and authorized for publication by the Board of Directors of Arion Bank on 12
February 2020.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Bank has applied the concept of materiality to the presentation and level of
disclosure. Only essential and mandatory information is disclosed which is relevant to an understanding by the reader of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statements Act, Financial Undertakings Act and
rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods of computation are followed in these Consolidated Financial Statements as were
applied in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for IFRS 16 Leases, effective 1 January
2019, see Note 2.

Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

- assets and liabilities measured under IFRS 9. For details on the accounting policy, see Note 52;
- investment properties are measured at fair value and
- non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are state at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair value, less cost to sell.

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Icelandic krona (ISK), which is the Parent Company's functional currency, rounded
to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated. At the end of the year the exchange rate of the ISK against USD was 121.04 and 135.83 for
EUR (31.12.2018: USD 116.34 and EUR 133.20).

2. Changes in accounting policies

Arion Bank adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019. The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments
that have been issued but are not effective.

IFRS 16

The Group applied IFRS 16 Leases for the first time in 2019. IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease
accounting in order to remove the distinction between operating and finance lease requirements and requiring the recognition of a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Group has
applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, with no restatement of comparative information. With the application of IFRS
16, the nature of expenses related to operating leases changes as the Group recognizes a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and
interest expense on lease liabilities. Previously, the Group recognized operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. At initial application on 1 January 2019 the Group recognized lease liabilities of ISK 1 billion and a right-of-use asset in the same
amount.

3. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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3. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies, continued

- Impairment of financial assets

The book value of financial assets which fall under the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are presented net of expected credit losses
in the statement of financial position. On a monthly basis expected credit losses are recalculated for each asset, the calculations being
derived from PD, LGD and EAD models. In addition to the model outcomes, the assessment of expected credit losses is based on three
key factors; management’'s assumptions regarding the development of macroeconomic factors over the next five years, how those
factors affect each model and how to estimate a significant increase in credit risk. The assumptions for macroeconomic development is
incorporated into each model for three scenarios; a base case, an optimistic case and a pessimistic case. Management estimates the
probability weight for each scenario used for calculations of the probability weighted expected credit losses. The amount of expected
credit losses to be recognized is dependent on the Bank’s definition of significant increase in credit risk, which controls the impairment
stage each asset is allocated to. Management has estimated factors to measure significant increase in credit risk from origination, by
comparison of changes in PD values, annualized lifetime PD values, days past due and watch list. For further information see Note 55.

- Assets and disposal groups held for sale

Legal entities acquired exclusively with view to resale and discontinued operations held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value, less cost to sell. For most part, fair value at the date of classification of these legal entities and discontinued
operations was calculated using valuation models based on discontinued future cash flows that incorporated significant non-market
observable inputs and assumptions. The use of reasonably possible alternative inputs and assumptions to these models, in particular
changes to the discount rate employed (representing the required rate of return on equity), could have impact on the value of these

Real estates acquired exclusively with view to resale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell. Fair
value at the date of classification is based on independent property values or management valuation. As the fair value measurement of
real estates is based on valuation technigues there is uncertainty about the actual fair value of assets.

- Impairment of intangible assets

The carrying amounts of goodwill, infrastructure and customer relationship and related agreements are reviewed annually to determine
whether there is indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. The
recoverable amount of an assets is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

- Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
For investment properties, either a valuation methodology based on present value calculations, as there is a lack of comparable market
data because of the nature of the properties, or the investment properties were valued by reference to transactions involving properties
of a similar nature, location and condition.

4. The Group
Shares in the main subsidiaries in which Arion Bank holds a direct interest Equity interest
Operating activity ~ Currency 2019 2018
Arion Bank Mortgages Instit. Investor Fund, Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland . Retail banking ISK - 100.0%
BG12 slhf., Katrinartin 2, Reykjavik, [celand ............cccoooiiiiiiniiiiiiiicieiee Holding company ISK 62.0% 62.0%
Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., Ogurhvarf 4a, Képavogur, Iceland .................. Real estate ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Eignabjarg ehf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ............cccccoevvveiiininiinnieenns Holding company ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Leiguskjol ehf., LAgmuli 6, Reykjavik, Iceland ............cccooeevienieniiniiiiicecnee Retail banking ISK 51.0% -
Stefnir hf., Borgart(n 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ............c.cccoocrviiiicniininniciece Asset management ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Valitor Holding hf., Dalshraun 3, Hafnarfjérdur, Iceland . ... Payment solutions ISK 100.0% 100.0%
VISA island ehf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, ICeland ............cccoervrvrvriiriririiinnnen. Holding company ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Voérdur tryggingar hf., Borgartin 25, Reykjavik, Iceland ...........c.ccccooveviennennnn. Insurance ISK 100.0% 100.0%

The subsidiaries Eignabjarg ehf. (holding company of Stakksberg ehf. and Sélbjarg ehf.) and Valitor Holding hf. are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5.

In November 2019 Arion Bank acquired a 51% shareholding in Leiguskjol ehf., an entity offering guarantees for residential property renting.

In October 2019 Arion Bank liquidated Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional Investor Fund when ISK 48 billion of mortgage loans were sold to
the Icelandic Housing Fund and ISK 8 billion were transferred to the Bank.
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Operating segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segments and is based on the Group's management and internal
reporting structure. Segment performance is evaluated based on earnings before tax.

Inter segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. Operating segments pay and receive interest to and from Treasury on an
arm's length basis to reflect the allocation of capital, funding cost and relevant risk premium.

5. Operating segments

Arion Bank introduced new organizational structure for the Bank which came in effect at the end of September 2019. The number of
divisions were reduced and the responsibility for various other tasks was redistributed within the Bank with the aim of simplifying the

Markets comprises Asset Management and Capital Markets. Asset Management manages financial assets on behalf of its customers
according to a pre-determined investment strategy. Asset Management also administers pension funds. The operation of Stefnir hf. is
presented under the segment. Stefnir hf. is an independently operating financial company owned by Arion Bank and manages a broad
range of mutual funds, investment funds and institutional investor funds. Capital markets is a securities and foreign exchange brokerage
and provides clients with a diverse range of fixed income services and risk management products. Asset management comprises
Institutional Asset Management, Private Banking and Pension Fund Administration.

Corporate & Investment Banking services large and medium-sized corporate clients and investors, both in Iceland and abroad. The
division is divided into Corporate Banking and Corporate Finance.

Corporate Banking’'s experienced account managers specialize in key economic sectors such as retail and services, seafood, energy and
real estate. The division provides a full range of lending products such as guarantees, deposit accounts, payment solutions and a variety of
value-added digital solutions to meet the needs of the Bank's larger corporate clients. The Corporate Banking portfolio includes several
larger international transactions, partly in syndicates with other Icelandic banks and international banks.

Arion Bank’s Corporate Finance works closely with Corporate Banking, providing customers with various financial advisory and capital
raising services, including M&A and LBO services. Furthermore, Corporate Finance offers financial structuring advice, as well as various
services on public offerings of securities.

Retail Banking provides a comprehensive range of products and services, including mortgage loans, savings and current accounts,
vehicle and equipment financing, factoring, payment cards, pension services, insurance and funds, to both individuals and SMEs. Retalil
Banking has a strong focus on digital banking solutions, using the online bank and the Arion Bank app as key channels. Retail Banking
operates out of 19 branches across Iceland with over 100,000 customers.

Treasury is responsible for the Bank's liquidity, currency and interest rate management. Treasury is a market maker in Iceland in domestic
securities and FX. Treasury is responsible for funds' transfer pricing and hedging and pricing of financial products. FX sales is part of the
Treasury unit. Treasury also handles all debt issuance both in the domestic and foreign markets and maintaining the Banks credit ratings.

Vérdur is the fourth largest insurance company in Iceland, providing non-life and life insurance.

Subsidiaries include the subsidiaries Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., which holds the main part of investment property of the Group and
the holding companies VISA island ehf., BG12 slhf. and other smaller entities of the Group. The subsidiary Valitor Holding is classified as
Disposal group held for sale. The subsidiary EAB 1 ehf. was sold in October 2018.

Supporting units include the Bank's headquarters which carry out support functions such as the CEO office, Risk Management, Finance
(excluding Treasury) and IT. The information presented relating to the supporting units does not represent an operating segment. A
significant proportion of expenses from support functions is allocated to operating segments in a separate line in the operating segment
overview.

At the beginning of 2019 the proportion of the loan book divided between Corporate & Investment Banking and Retail Banking changed.
SME loans amounting to approx. ISK 49 billion were transferred from Retail Banking to Corporate & Investment Banking. At the same time
20 employees were transferred between the operating segments. As a result of these changes the figures are not fully comparable with
those from 2018.

At the beginning of 2019 the allocation of cost changed so that total expense is now allocated to the following operating segments: Asset
Management, Corporate & Investment Banking, Retail Banking and Treasury. Prior to the change cost relating to the Board of Directors,
the CEO's Office and Compliance was not allocated to the operating segments. Comparative figures for 2018 have not been restated.
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5. Operating segments, continued Supporting
Corporate & Other units
Markets Investment Retail sub- and elimi-
2019 and Stefnir Banking Banking  Treasury Vordur  sidiaries nations Total
Net interest iNnCoMe .........ccccceeveeneeennns 1,017 9,129 17,303 3,438 228 (628) (170) 30,317
Net fee and commission income ........... 4,318 1,936 4,803 (196) (80) (940) 109 9,950
Net insurance iNCOMe .......ccceeeeevvvvvvnnnnns - - - - 2,929 - (43) 2,886
Net financial income ..........cocoeeevveeenns 219 (222) (26) 940 1,321 638 342 3,212
Share of profit of associates and
netimpairment ...........ccocceeee - - - - - - 756 756
Other operating income (loss) 25 17) 432 11 20 552 (146) 877
Operating inCoOMe ........ccocveevieeennneenne 5,579 10,826 22,512 4,193 4,418 (378) 848 47,998
Operating eXPeNnSse ........ccccuveeeeeriiivveeenn (1,920) (1,471) (6,802) (385) (2,240) (63) (13,982) (26,863)
Allocated exXpense ........cccccevvvivveeeeeannns (1,470) (3,401) (6,207) (1,040) (16) (6) 12,140 -
Bank [8VY ....ccooviieiiiiiiiiieic e (142) (726) (1,064) (1,052) - - - (2,984)
Net impairment .........ccccceevvvciiieeeeiiiiinns - (8,879) 2,287 3 - 6,208 1) (382)
Earnings before income tax ............... 2,047 (3,651) 10,726 1,719 2,162 5,761 (995) 17,769
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers ......... 2,832 20,244 34,637 (15,950) 4,157 1,199 879 47,998
Net seg. rev. from other segments ........ 2,747 (9,418) (12,125) 20,143 261 (1,577) (31) -
Operating inCoOMe ........cccceeveervenneene. 5,579 10,826 22,512 4,193 4,418 (378) 848 47,998
Depreciation and amortization 2 4 164 - 224 1 1,151 1,546
Total aSSetS ...ccovvveviiiiiiieeeieee e 69,692 320,545 475,199 457,579 27,028 58,515 (326,703) 1,081,855
Total liabilities ........ccccoovviieniiiiciee 62,540 251,581 416,197 436,229 16,869 37,530 (328,916) 892,030
Allocated equity .....ccccceevveeeenieeenniennins 7,152 68,964 59,002 21,350 10,159 20,985 2,213 189,825
Subsidi- Head-
Asset ariesand  quarters
Manage- Corporate Investment Retail Other and
2018 ment Banking Banking Banking  Treasury divisions Elimination Total
Net interest income ..........ccceeeeeeeeeeennne. 702 5,932 297 17,665 4,553 323 (153) 29,319
Net fee and commission income ........... 3,393 1,191 1,866 4,976 (324) (882) 130 10,350
Net insurance iNCOMe ...........cceevvveenns - - - - - 2,632 (43) 2,589
Net financial income ...........ccccccoeeeeeeene 50 (823) 5 4 480 2,098 488 2,302
Share of profit of associates and
net impairment .........ccccccveeeeviiiineenn. - 5 - - - 4 18 27
Other operating income ............c.ccc...... 19 1 - 696 - 564 304 1,584
Operating inCoOMe ........cccceevvervenneene. 4,164 6,306 2,168 23,341 4,709 4,739 744 46,171
Operating eXPense .........cccccceeeeereenennns (1,522) (526) (876) (6,830) (216) (2,092) (14,216) (26,278)
Allocated expense ..........cccceveereenneenns (835) (2,899) (672) (6,382) (1,032) 7 11,827 -
BanK [8VY ...oovvveiieeie e (165) (693) (46) (1,192) (1,290) - - (3,386)
Net impairment ...........cccccocoeeviiieninene - (3,753) 16 220 (22) 16 2) (3,525)
Earnings (loss) before income tax ..... 1,642 (1,565) 590 9,157 2,149 2,656 (1,647) 12,982
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers 1,341 16,416 1,727 37,984 (17,551) 5,298 956 46,171
Net seg. rev. from other segments 2,823 (10,110) 441 (14,643) 22,260 (559) (212) -
Operating iNCOMEe ........cccoeevvvviveeinnininns 4,164 6,306 2,168 23,341 4,709 4,739 744 46,171
Depreciation and amortization .............. 1 5 1 392 - 140 782 1,321
Total aSSetsS ...oovveiviiiiieiieeee e 71,244 289,076 16,302 594,154 486,982 91,852  (385,283) 1,164,327
Total liabilities ......ccovevvveeeiiieeieeeeen 66,028 223,176 15,685 512,992 475,811 58,976  (389,200) 963,468
Allocated equity ......cccceevverecrieennnenne. 5,216 65,900 617 81,162 11,171 32,876 3,917 200,859
Comparative amounts have not been restated based on the organizational structure changes in 2019.
Income taxes and discontinued operations held for sale are excluded from the profit and loss segment information.
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Quarterly statements

6. Operations by quarters, unaudited

2019

NEt INTEreSt INCOME ..ot

Net fee and commission income ..
Net insurance income ...............

Net financial INCOME .........ccooviiiiiiieiiiiiie e
Share of profit (loss) of associates and net impairment

OPErating INCOME ...c.uiiiiiiieiiiie ettt e et e st e st e enees

Salaries and related EXPENSE ........cccuuuiiieiiiiiiiiee e
Other OPerating EXPENSE .....uuuiiieiiiiiiiieee ettt e e et e e st e e e e e e e ennreeeas

OPErating EXPENSES ...vecviviviiviiriierieteteseeteeteseete et eseete st et etestesseseasessesseseeseneas

BANK JEVY oot
NET IMPAINMENT 1.ttt e e e e e e e e e ebbbeeee s

Earnings before inCome tax .......cccoooiiiiiiiiic i
INCOME tAX EXPENSE .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiisiieie e
Net earnings from continuing OpPerations ..........cccccoceeiieiiiciienciecee e
Discontinued operations, Net Of tAX ..........cccviiiieiiiiiiiie e
NEL BAININGS ...ooiiiiiie it

2018

NEt INtErESt INCOME .....iiviiiiii et e e e e e ereaaee e
Net fee and cOmMmMISSION INCOME ........ceeeeiiiiiiiee e
NEt INSUFANCE INCOME .. ..vviiiieeiiiiieie e e eeete e e e et e e e st e e e e s s e e e e e ennnaeaaeeens
Net finanNCial INCOME .......vviieiiiiie e e

Share of profit (loss) of associates and net impairment

Other operating iNCOME ..........cocuiiiiiiie i
OPErating INCOIME ....iiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e st e e e e s sebaees

Salaries and related eXPENSE ..........cociiiiiiiiiei e
Other Operating EXPENSE ........cocviiiiiieeie et

OPETALING EXPENSES ..cvvivirierieiiitesieresteeeseesestesesseseesessessessasessessesessessessssessesens

BaNK IBVY ...
NEt IMPAITMENT ...t

Earnings before iNCOME taX .......oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee i
INCOME tAX EXPENSE ..eeeiiiieiiieeeitie et e sttt ettt et e et e e st e e st e e st e e steeeans
Net earnings from continuing OPerations ........ccccecuvveeeeiiiiiieeees e
Discontinued operations, Net Of taX ...........cccuviiiiiiiiiiieecii e
NEL CAIMINGS -eeteitiieiiie ettt et e e e s

Other operating INCOME ...........uiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e st e e

&
LIS

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
7,434 7,808 7,382 7,693 30,317
2,218 2,478 2,639 2,615 9,950

253 823 1,087 723 2,886
766 1,023 934 489 3,212
727 (®) 30 7 756
310 94 272 201 877

11,708 12,218 12,344 11,728 47,998

(3.630) (3,805  (4,130)  (3,076)  (14,641)

(3232)  (25814)  (2,810)  (3,366)  (12,222)

(6,862)  (6,619)  (6,940)  (6,442)  (26,863)

(906) (912) (809) (357) (2,984)

(1,081) (988) 484 1,203 (382)

2,859 3,699 5,079 6,132 17,769
(622) (891)  (1,278) (923) (3,714)
2,237 2,808 3,801 5,209 14,055

(1,219) (715)  (3,040)  (7,981)  (12,955)
1,018 2,003 761 (2,772) 1,100
6,827 7,314 7,209 7,969 29,319
2,205 2,712 2,687 2,746 10,350

143 758 984 704 2,589
1,387 1,119 570 (774) 2,302
(20) 2 34 11 27
268 600 422 294 1,584

10,810 12,505 11,906 10,950 46,171

(3616)  (3,949)  (3,129)  (3,584)  (14,278)

(3.143)  (2,978)  (2.864)  (3,015)  (12,000)

(6,759)  (6,927)  (5,993)  (6,599)  (26,278)

(804) (879) (938) (765) (3,386)
(135) (166)  (2,651) (573) (3,525)
3,112 4,533 2,324 3,013 12,982
(890)  (1,302) (973) (881) (4,046)
2,222 3,231 1,351 2,132 8,936
(273) (169) (201) (516) (1,159)
1,949 3,062 1,150 1,616 7,777

The half-year results were reviewed by the Bank's auditors. Other quarterly statements and the split between quarters were not audited or

reviewed by the Bank's auditors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Income Statement

7. Net interest income

2019 Amortized Fair value Fair value
Interest income cost thr. P/L thr. OClI Total
Cash and balances with Central BankK ...........cccccviiiiiiiiiiiiniiic e 4,008 - - 4,008
Loans ... . 52,757 46 - 52,803
ST To U] [T RPN - 608 727 1,335
(@14 T= T PP PP P PRRTPR 161 - - 161
QN CeT =Y T aToTo] o 1 =T 56,926 654 727 58,307
Interest expense
DIBPOSIES ..ttt (11,949) - - (11,949)
BOMOWINGS ...ttt st e e e e e e e e e e saee e (15,473) - - (15,473)
Subordinated abilitIeS ...........c.ooiiiiii e (449) - - (449)
. (119) - - (119)
INTEIEST EXPEINSE oottt ettt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e s bbb et e e e e s bbb e e e e e e nnneeeeeaaas (27,990) - - (27,990)
NEL INTEIESE INCOME .ovviieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 28,936 654 727 30,317
2018
Interest income
Cash and balances with Central BankK ...........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiniicii e 4,625 - - 4,625
LOBINS ettt e e s 53,457 354 - 53,811
SECUIEIES .ottt ettt ekttt e e et e e e bt e et et e ne e e e s e e s e e s - 249 358 607
(@14 1= O T T PP P PP PPRP PRSPPI 273 - - 273
QY CeT =Y T ToTo] 1 1 1= T 58,355 603 358 59,316
Interest expense
DIBPOSIES ...ttt nr e sa e (13,323) - - (13,323)
BOMTOWINGS ...ttt r et e b e e e e e e e beesaee e (16,524) - - (16,524)
Subordinated labilitIeS ...........c.ooiiiiii e (29) (29)
(@] 1 =] SRS PP PP PP (131) - - (131)
INTEIEST EXPEINSE oottt e e e ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e e bbb et e e e s s nbb e e e e e e annaeeeeeaans (29,997) - - (29,997)
Net interest income 28,358 603 358 29,319
Interest spread 2019 2018
Interest spread (the ratio of net interest income to the average carrying amount of interest bearing assets) ............ 2.8% 2.8%
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8. Net fee and commission income 2019 2018

Net Net

Income  Expense income Income  Expense income

ASSEt MANAGEIMENT ...ttt 3,931 (504) 3,427 3,950 (433) 3,516
Capital markets and corporate finance 1,652 (36) 1,616 1,987 (34) 1,953
Lending and financial guarantees ............ccccooveeriveeniieeniie e 2,112 - 2,112 2,050 - 2,050
Collection and payment SEIVICES ..........ccovveeriieeiiieeiiiee e 1,542 (100) 1,442 1,597 (89) 1,508
Cards and payment SOIULION .........c..oovuiieiiiieiiiie e 1,557 (256) 1,301 1,374 (139) 1,235

[© 43 1T SO PPERTUPRRT 705 (653) 52 700 (613) 87
Net fee and cOmMmMISSION INCOME .......vceeviiiiiiiiiieee e 11,499 (1,549) 9,950 11,658 (1,308) 10,350

Asset management fees are earned by the Group for trust and fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests assets on behalf of the
customers.

Fee and commission income from capital markets and corporate finance includes miscellaneous corporate finance services plus
commission from capital markets relating to sales of shares, bonds, FX and derivatives.

Fee and commission income from lending and financial guarantees is mainly related to lending activities, extension fees, advisory services
and documentation, notification and payment fees plus fees from the issuing of guarantees on behalf of customers.

Fee and commission income on collection and payment services is generated billing services, such as issuing invoices and payment
collection notices, wire transfer services and other payment services.

Commission from cards and payment solutions is mainly from the Bank's issuance of credit and debit cards and other card related
commission, e.g. yearly fee on cards and transaction fee.

Other fee and commission income is mainly fees relating to FX transactions at branches and in ATMs, custody and market making on the
Icelandic stock exchange.

9. Net insurance income

2019 2018
Earned premiums, net of reinsurers' share
g TR LT T 11T R 11,796 10,974
Premiums Written, FEINSUMEIS' SNAES ......cciiiuuiiiiiei ittt e sttt e e e st e e e e e bbb e e e e s sasbbbeaeeesanarees (399) (347)
Change in provision for UNEArNEMd PrEIMIUMIS .......ciiuiriiieeaiiiiie e e e ettt e e s sttt e e e s s bt e e e e e e asbbeeeeesaasbbbeeeessabbbeeaeessnnnnnees (291) (400)
Earned premiums, Net Of reINSUIErS' SNAE .......ooiiiiiiiiie et 11,106 10,227
Claims incurred, net of reinsurers' share
CIAIMS PRI ...ttt et s et e st et e e bt et e e e e e sb e e e he e s he e e ae e et e e eh e e sbe e es b e e r e e nbe e se e e s aa e e e e e e e eneens (7,272) (7,018)
Claims Paid, FEINSUIEIS' SNAIE .......uiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt e ettt e e bt e e bt e e bb e e e ettt e e sebeeeanbeeeanteeeanneeeanneeeann 157 108
Change in Provision fOr CIAIMS .............oiiii ettt (1,104) (813)
Changes in provision for claims, reiNSUrers' ShAre ..o e 1) 85
Claims incurred, Net Of FEINSUIEIS' SNAIE ......ccuviiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e s nbbaeeee s (8,220) (7,638)
NS T E U= (o= R oTo ] 14 L= 2,886 2,589
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10. Net financial income 2019 2018
Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss .... 3,056 1,073
LOSS 0N PrepaymMeENnts Of DOITOWINGS ......oiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie ittt e ettt e e e sttt e e e s s bbb e e e e s asbb et e e e s snsbbaeeeeesnnnbees (405) -
Net (loss) gain on fair value hedge Of INEreSt FAte SWAP ........eiiiiiiiiiie it sb e (145) 673
Realized gain on financial assets carried at fair value through OCI ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiii e 585 151
Net fOreign EXCHANGE GAIN .....oiiiii ettt e bt e ekt s et e e sttt e et e e eab e e enneeeaaneeens 121 405
LY O TR P g LT F= VI T g oTo] 1 ¢ = RPN 3,212 2,302
Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss
o 01T Y L0 1 =T ) SRR PPTPIN 2,330 1,146
DT o T T] (g T= o € TSRO PP TP 803 216
DIBIIVALIVES ...ttt ettt s et e e st e bt et ee e h e e h e e e ae e e et e bt e e R e e eh e e e e e e Rt e et et e e e e e e e e ae e reenaee e (31) 72
(o= o PSP P PR OTP TPt (46) (361)
Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities

mandatorily measured at fair value through profit Or I0SS .....occuiiiiiiiiiii e 3,056 1,073
Net (loss) gain on fair value hedge of interest rate swap
Fair value change of interest rate swaps designated as hedging iNStrUMENLS .............ccovieiieiiieiiinie e 759 1,182
Fair value change on bonds issued by the Group attributable to interest rate risk ............ccccceiviiiiiiiiiiiis (904) (509)
Net (loss) gain on fair value hedge of iINtEreSt rate SWaP ......cccuvviiiiiiiiiiiiie e (145) 673

11. Other operating income
Fair value changes 0N iNVESIMENT PrOPEILY ......uiiiiiiiiiiiiee ittt et e e e ettt e e e s sttt e e s s st bbb e e e e e anssbeeeeesesbaeeeeessannbees - 471
Net gain 0N aSSELS NEIA FOF SAIE .....ccoiiiiiiiiii it e e e et e e e e et e e e s s e st b e e e e e e s abbbeeeeeennes 382 680
Other income 495 433
Other operating income 877 1,584
Net gain on assets held for sale
Income from real eStates and OTNEN @SSELS ........iiiiiiiiiiiii et ee et e e e e st e e st e e saeeeens 484 838
Expense related to real estates and Other @SSELS ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiiie e (102) (158)
Net gain 0N aSSES NEld FOr SAIE ......uiiiiiiiiiiiii et e e e e st b et e e e e e b et e e e s s sbbaeeeessanbbees 382 680

Real estates and other assets classified as assets held for sale are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and individuals.

12. Personnel and salaries

2019 2018
Number of employees
Average number of full-time equivalent positions during the Year ..............cccooiiiiiiiii e 866 928
Full-time equivalent positions at the end of the Year .............ccccooiiiii e 801 904
Number of employees at the parent company
Average number of full-time equivalent positions during the Year ..............cocciiiiiiiiiic e 755 820
Full-time equivalent positions at the end of the YEar ..o e 687 794
Salaries and related expense
EST= 1= U= 11,715 11,038
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ........coiiiiiiiii et 1,685 1,577
Salary-related expense 1,700 1,663
Capitalization of salaries due to implementation of COre SYStEMS ..........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e (459) -
Salaries and FElatEO EXPENSE ...c..uiii ittt e ke rh et ea e e ettt e ettt ettt e e 14,641 14,278
Salaries and related expense for the parent company
LST= 1F= T =TT 10,211 9,634
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ........oiiuiiiiiiii ittt ettt e et e et e st e st e e s tn e 1,469 1,377
SalArY-TEIAIEA EXPENSE ... .eiiiitit ettt etttk k et e bt e o he e ekt e e bt e ek bt e ek bt e eh e e ea e e et e e e nn e e e aaeeenan 1,477 1,463
Capitalization of salaries due to implementation Of COre SYSIEMS ..........eiiiiiiiiiii e (459) -
Salaries and related expense for the parent COMPANY ......oocuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e ree e 12,698 12,474
Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 Amounts are in ISK millions
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12. Personnel and salaries, continued

At the end of September 2019 a new organizational structure was introduced, resulting in a reduction in the number of employees of 12%,
or approximately 100 people. Salary and salary related expenses of ISK 1,079 million were expensed in 2019 in respect of these
redundancies.

Salary and salary related expenses of ISK 150 million were expensed in 2019 in respect of the resignation of Héskuldur H. Olafsson, the
Bank's former CEO, and ISK 102 million in respect of the resignation of two Managing Directors of the Bank; the Managing Director of the
Legal division and the Managing director of IT.

In June 2018 Arion Bank adopted a share-based remuneration programme, when a limited stock grant was offered to all employees of the
parent company, excluding internal control units, in connection with the IPO and listing of the Bank. Remuneration was paid in the form of
deferred shares with a vesting period of two years. The Bank recognizes expenses related to the programme as salaries and related
expenses, a total of ISK 651 million, over the vesting period, or approximately ISK 27 million per month from June 2018.

In 2019 the Group made a provision of ISK 37 million (2018: ISK 67 million) for performance plan payments, including salary-related
expense, for which the Bank made no provision (2018: nil). Forty percent of the payment is deferred for three years in accordance with FSA
rules on remuneration policies for financial undertakings. At the end of the year the Group's accrual for performance plan payments
amounted to ISK 371 million (2018: ISK 608 million), of which the Bank's accrual amounts to ISK 239 million (2018: ISK 452 million).

2019 2018
Remuneration to the Board of Directors Fixed Additional Fixed Additional
remuner-  remuner- remuner-  remuner-

ation* ation** Total ation* ation** Total
Brynjélfur Bjarnason, Chairman of the Board .............cccccceeeenen. 10.7 5.6 16.3 8.1 4.9 13.0
Herdis Dréfn Fjeldsted, Vice Chairman, Director from 15.3.2018 8.1 5.7 13.8 4.3 3.7 8.0
Gunnar Sturluson, Director from 9.8.2019 .........cccccvvvvvvvvvvvvvreennnns 2.2 0.8 3.0 - - -
Liv Fiksdahl, Director from 20.3.2019 .........covveieeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeiinen, 8.9 1.5 10.4 - - -
Paul Richard Horner, Director from 9.8.2019 ...................eeeeeennn. 4.5 0.8 5.3 - - -
Renier Lemmens, Director from 20.3.2019 ........cccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiennns 8.9 2.9 11.8 - - -
Steinunn Kristin Thérdardottir, Director *** ..........cccccevveeeeecinennen. 17.1 5.0 22.1 5.4 34 8.8
Eva Cederbalk, Chairman of the Board until 20.3.2019 ............... 4.8 0.6 5.4 21.5 3.1 24.6
Benedikt Gislason, Director from 5.9.2018 to 26.6.2019 ............. 2.8 2.6 5.4 1.7 1.2 3.0
Mans Hoglund, Director until 20.3.2019 .........cccoveviieerieieerenen, 2.4 1.1 35 10.7 4.9 15.7
Jakob Mar Asmundsson, Director until 30.5.2018 . - - - 2.2 1.9 4.1
John P. Madden, Director until 5.9.2018 .........ccceeervvriviieeeeerrinnnnn, - - - 2.4 0.9 3.3
Kirstin Th. Flygenring, Director until 15.3.2018 ............cccceoeeneene - - - 11 0.9 1.9
Théra Hallgrimsdottir, Director until 15.3.2018 .........cccceevveeenneenne - - - 1.1 1.0 2.0
Alternate directors of the Board ............ccccceevevvieieee i 4.5 1.5 6.0 3.7 0.9 4.6
Total reMUNEratioN ........ccoiiiiiieeeeeiiieee e e e eraaee e 74.9 28.0 103.0 62.1 27.0 89.1

* Fixed remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors.
** Additional remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their participation in Board Committees.

** The Annual General Meeting approved that members of the Board of Directors who reside outside of Iceland receive double the monthly salary of Board
members who reside in Iceland. In 2019 Steinunn Kristin Thérdardéttir, who resides abroad, received a retroactive correction in this respect.

2019 2018
Remuneration to key management personnel Performance- Performance-
based based
Salaries payments Salaries payments
Benedikt Gislason, CEO from 1.7.2019 ......c.uuviiiiiiiiiiiee et e e saavaee e e 28.1 - - -
Asgeir H. Reykfjérd Gylfason, deputy CEO from 5.9.2019 and
MD of Corporate & Investment banking from 26.9.2019 ............ccccooviiiiiiiiiieeneeen 22.5 - - -
Ida Bra Benediktsdottir, MD of Retail banking ...........ccccooveiiiiiiiiiiiciee e 40.0 19 36.9 4.3
Margrét Sveinsdottir, MD Of MArKets ..........cccoivirviiiieiieeesee s 34.8 2.7 34.1 5.8
StefaAn PELUISSON, CFO ......iiiiiie ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e aaa e e e e s e enbaaeaeesannranes 47.2 3.0 43.6 6.0
Hoskuldur H. Olafsson, CEO uUNtil 30.4.2019 .....c..eeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e 22.6 4.8 67.5 7.2
Lydur Thorgeirsson, MD of Investment banking until 26.9.2019 ...........ccccceeviiieniiecniieenns 25.6 - 36.4 0.2
Runar Magni Jonsson, MD of Corporate banking until 26.9.2019 ... 24.5 14 6.8 -
Freyr Thérdarson, MD of Corporate banking until 31.5.2018 ..........ccccveiiiieniiiennieeeieeae - - 24.7 2.4
Two managing directors (three until 26.9.2019) of the Bank's divisions who are
members of the Bank's Executive Committee (2018: three) .........ccccevvvevviieiriiieiiieennnns 87.2 5.1 104.0 7.2
o) LI = 1 LU T =T = Lo o RS, 332.5 18.9 354.0 33.1

Head of Investor relation, Sture Stdlen was a contractor of the Bank in 2018 and until 23 September 2019.

Performance based payments in 2019 are deferred payments based on the Group's performance in 2015.
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12. Personnel and salaries, continued

Board Members receive remuneration for their involvement in board committees. In addition to 14 Board meetings (2018: 21) during the
year 16 Board Credit Committee meetings (2018: 20), 6 Board Audit Committee meetings (2018: 5), 9 Board Risk Committee meetings
(2018: 9) and 5 Board Remuneration Committee meetings (2018: 7) were held. Four committee meetings with alternate directors of the
Board were held in 2019 (2018: 4).

The 2019 Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 20 March 2019 approved the monthly salaries for 2019 for the Chairman, Vice
Chairman and for other Board Members of amounts ISK 952,800, ISK 714,800 and ISK 476,600 (2018: ISK 907,423; 680,793; 453,900)
respectively. It was also approved that the salary of Alternate Board Members would be ISK 241,400 (2018: ISK 229,912) per meeting, up
to a maximum of ISK 476,600 (2018: ISK 453,900) per month. For Board Members resident abroad, the aforementioned amounts are
doubled. In addition, it was approved to pay Board Members who serve on board committees of the Bank a maximum of ISK 190,600
(2018: ISK 181,560) per month for each committee they serve on and the Chairman of the board committees ISK 247,600 (2018: ISK

235,777).

13. Other operating expense 2019 2018
LI o<1 T T PP PP TP PP TP PP P PP PP PP 4,527 4,074
PrOfESSIONAI SEIVICES .. .iviiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e e e et et e eeeeeee s b b e eee e s e et bt eeee e e e baaaeeeeesasabaaseessestbanans 1,198 1,351
[ [TV gL =)o 1T £ P PP PRTPPPPR 1,082 1,220
Other admiNISITAtION EXPENSE .. ...uuiiiieiiiiiieee e ettt e e e ettt e e e s sttt e e e s s bt e e eeeeaasbaeeeeesaastbbetaeessas bbb et eessansbbeeeeeeannbbeeeeenans 3,134 3,162
Depositors’ and INVEStOrs' GUArANtEE FUNG .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e s s et e e e e sbbbeeeeesannnbaes 735 872
Depreciation of property and @QUIPMENT .........oiiiiiiiieeeiiiiie ettt e e e e s s e e e e e s bbb e eeesaasbbbb et e e s sasbbbeeeeeasnnsbeeeeeans 638 556
Depreciation Of FIGNT Of USE @SSEL ........iiiiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e e bbb e e e e e st bbbt e e e s s anbbbeeeeeesnnsnnees 128 -
Amortization Of INTANGIDIE @SSELS .........ciiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e et e e e e s e bbbt e e e s s s bbbeeeaeesnnnarees 780 765

Other operating expense 12,222 12,000

Auditor's fee

Audit and review of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the relevant fiscal year ...........cccccccvveiiiiiiieneeiiiinnns 133 182
Other audit related services for the relevant fiSCal YEaI ..........ccuviiiiiiiiiiie e 10 56
Auditor's fee 143 238
Of which fee to others than the auditor of the Parent ComMPany ...........cccociiiiiiiiiiiii e - 1

14. Bank levy

The Bank levy is 0.376% on total debts excluding tax liabilities, in excess of ISK 50 billion. The tax is assessed on Financial Undertakings
but non-financial subsidiaries are exempt from this tax.

15. Net impairment 2019 2018
Net change in impairment of cash and balances with Central Bank .............ccccccueiiiiiiiiiiiicie e 2 5
Net change in impairment of loans to credit institutions .. 19 (32)
Net change in impairment of 08NS t0 COMPOTALES ...........cuiiiiiiiiiiiiie et (1,216) (2,771)
Net change in impairment of [0aNs t0 INAIVIAUAIS .............ccoiiiiiiiii e 930 1,119
Write offs on loans and receivables to corporates .... (1,796) (1,706)
Write offs on loans and receivables to iINAIVIAUAIS .............oooiiiiiiiii e (1,321) (1,045)
Payments on loans and receivables previously written off from Corporates ..............ccccoviiiiiiiiiie i, 20 42
Payments on loans and receivables previously written off from individuals ...............ccccccoiiiiiiii e 154 123
Net change in impairment of financial instruments at FVOCI ............oooiiiiiiiiii e 1) (5)
Net change in impairment of loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities ...............ccccoooeviiieiiiinns 207 (215)
Net impairment on financial instruments (3,002) (4,485)
Increase in book value Of 10aNS 10 COMPOTALES ............iiiiiiiiiieiiie e 91 54
Increase in book value of 10aNns t0 INAIVIAUAIS .........ccooiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e e et e aaeaeaeaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaes 2,529 906
Other value Changes OF JOANS .......uiiiiiiii ettt ekttt e et e e st e e e e e eaneee s 2,620 960

Net impairment (382) (3,525)

Increase in book value of loans to individuals and corporates is mainly due to release of discount from loans acquired with discount during
the years 2008 to 2013, both due to impairments and other discount rate than reflected in the interest rates of the loans. The discount
release was primarily related to loans that were paid up or sold during the year.
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16. Income tax expense 2019 2018
(010 =T o O = D Q) (o 1=T T TP PP PP P PPN 3,174 3,716
(D=1 = =To I v R =) (o 1T T OO PPP P POPPPPPPPTPPN 540 330
Income tax expense 3,714 4,046
Reconciliation of effective tax rate 2019 2018
EQrnings DEFOIE taX .....eeiiuiiieiiie et 17,769 12,982
Income tax using the Icelandic COrporate taxX rate ...........ccceevvvvreeeeeeiiiiieee e 20.0% 3,554 20.0% 2,596
Additional 6% tax on Financial Undertakings ............cccuviiiiiiiiiiieiniiiiieee e 2.3% 402 5.5% 709
NON-AEAUCTIDIE EXPENSES ......iiiiiiiie ittt e e e e e et e e e e e e 1.0% 181 0.0% 4
TaX EXEMPL FEVENUE ....vvviieiiiuiiiiteeeesitee e e e e e iteteee e e s sttt e eee e s st bbeeeeeeaasbbbeeeeeasbbeeeeessanbbreeeeesanns (6.4%) (1,132) (2.9%) (376)
Non-deductible taxes 3.4% 597 5.2% 677
Tax incentives not recognized in the Income Statement ...........ccccovviiiiiieiiiiiiiee e 0.1% 21 1.7% 222
OLhEI CRANGES ...ttt e e bt e e e s st bt e e e e e e bbbt eeeeeanaaes 0.5% 91 1.6% 214
EffECHIVE LAX TALE cooiveeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 20.9% 3,714 31.2% 4,046
Financial undertakings pay 6% additional tax on taxable profit exceeding ISK 1 billion.

Tax exempt revenues consist mainly of profit from equity positions.
Bank levy of 0.376% on liabilities exceeding ISK 50 billion is non-deductible.

17. Discontinued operations held for sale, net of income tax 2019 2018
Net loss from discontinued operations held fOr SAIE ..........uuuiiieiiiiiiii e (13,681) (1,269)
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE ...tttk b ettt ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eeaees 726 110
Discontinued operations held for sale, net 0f INCOME taX ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii e (12,955) (1,159)
Discontinued operations held for sale, net of income tax
V2= 1 (o o] Lo [T aTo o PP P PP STPPPPRRN (8,555) (1,271)
STAKKSDEIG ENf. ...ttt sttt e (3,799) 112
Yoo E=T o =T ) SO PP PPP S TOTPPPRPRTTOR (601) -
Discontinued operations held for sale, net 0f INCOME taX ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii e (12,955) (1,159)

Income Statement of Valitor Holding hf.
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Valitor contribution

Valitor Elimination 2019 2018
NEL INTEIESE INCOME ...ttt ettt et e e 512 88 600 820
Net fee and CoOmMMISSION INCOME .......coooiiieiiieee s 5,768 1,378 7,146 6,211
Net fiNANCIAI INCOME ....iiiiiiie e e e st e e e e s bbb eeeeas 168 - 168 (202)
Other operating INCOME .........cciiiiiii e 59 - 59 24
OPETALING INCOIME .ttt ettt e et et e s st e st e et e e enneenanree s 6,507 1,466 7,973 6,853
Salaries and related EXPENSE .........c.eii i (5,593) - (5,593) (4,366)
Other OPErating EXPENSE ....cc..eiiiiiieiiii ettt e et ettt et e e e nieee e (6,966) - (6,966) (3,868)
OPErating EXPENSES ....ooiiiiiiiiiie ittt e e s st e e e neee s (12,559) - (12,559) (8,234)
Net impairment .......... (4,112) - (4,112) (40)
Operating 10Ss before iNCOME taX ......c.ocoiiiiiiiiiii e (10,164) 1,466 (8,698) (1,421)
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE ...ttt etttk e et e et e st e e st entne e 250 (107) 143 150
Operating loss (9,914) 1,359 (8,555) (1,271)
Operating loss of Stakksberg and Sélbjarg of ISK 4,400 million are due to impairment of the entities underlying assets.
For further information about Valitor Holding hf., Stakksberg ehf. and Sélbjarg ehf. see Note 29.
18. Earnings per share Continued Discontinued
operations operations Net Earnings
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank ........ 14,051 8,275 (12,955) (1,159) 1,096 7,116
Weighted average number of outstanding shares ....................... 1,809 1,841 1,809 1,841 1,809 1,841
Basic earnings per sShare ........ccccccevviiieii i 7.77 4.49 (7.16) (0.63) 0.61 3.86

There were no instruments at the end of the year that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share (2018: none).
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

19. Cash and balances with Central Bank 2019 2018

Cashonhand ............... 4,206 5,059

Cash with Central Bank .... 81,543 67,492
Mandatory reserve deposit With CeNtral BANK ............c..ioiiiiiiiiiiiiii et e e 9,968 10,588
Cash and balances With CeNTIal BANK .......ccociviiiiiiiiieiii ettt e e e e e et s e e e e e e et e e e e e esaaa e e e esesaabaaes 95,717 83,139

The mandatory reserve deposit with the Central Bank is not available for the Group to use in its daily operations.

20. Loans to credit institutions

{2 F= T = TeoTo T[] N 16,437 38,038
Money market loans .. . - 17,101
(@)1 1= [oT=T g O 1,510 1,183
o1 o F (ol ot g=Te [L T Ty 4 U] A o] o F RN 17,947 56,322
21. Loans to customers Individuals Corporates Total
Gross Gross Gross

carrying Book carrying Book carrying Book
2019 amount value amount value amount value
(@Y= (o[- 11 SRS UPPRPPRNE 14,421 13,720 18,709 17,780 33,130 31,500
Credit CardS ...viiiiiie et 13,028 12,786 1,373 1,281 14,401 14,067
MOMQAgE J0ANS ......vvieiiiieeiiie e 310,562 310,195 23,475 23,211 334,037 333,406
Other I0ANS ..ot 33,105 31,868 368,453 363,114 401,558 394,982
LO@ANS 10 CUSTOMEIS .oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee ettt 371,116 368,569 412,010 405,386 783,126 773,955
2018
OVEIAIaftS ..oiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e 14,536 13,616 19,200 18,267 33,736 31,883
Credit Cards ....ooooeeeeeieeeeee 12,958 12,706 1,348 1,305 14,306 14,011
Loans to customers at fair value ..................ooe oo eeeeeeeeeeeeeee - - 4,812 4,812 4,812 4,812
Mortgage [0anS .........ccooviiiiiiiecee e 343,119 342,469 23,417 23,351 366,536 365,820
Other [0ANS ...t e e e s 33,560 31,692 390,767 385,608 424,327 417,300

Loans to customers 404,173 400,483 439,544 433,343 843,717 833,826

The total book value of pledged loans that were pledged against amounts borrowed was ISK 182 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2018:
ISK 203 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans to individuals.

Further analysis of loans is provided in Risk management disclosures.

22. Financial instruments 2019 2018
1270 g o SV To Ie [= o] T 1) 110 4 1=] ) P PSN 65,874 71,451
Shares and equity instruments with variable INCOME ...............cooiiiiii e 21,600 20,265
{01 Y= LY=o 6,617 6,241
Securities used for @CoNOMIC NEAGING .......vviiiiiiii e s e e 23,315 16,600
FINANCIAI INSTIUMENTS ...ttt e e e ettt e e e e s e ettt e e e e e e e tba e e e e e e eeaaa e e e e s sea bt s eeessee bbb aeseeeeenes 117,406 114,557
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23. Financial assets and financial liabilities

2019 Manda-

Fair value torily at
Financial assets Amortized through  fair value
Loans cost OClI thr. P/L Total
Cash and balances with Central BanK ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiee e 95,717 - - 95,717
Loans to Credit INSHIULIONS ........uuuiiiiiieeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e aab s eeeeees 17,947 - - 17,947
o= 1 g S (o o1 U] (0] 0 1 =T ¢ PPN 773,955 - - 773,955
[0 =13 PSP PPUPPRN 887,619 - - 887,619

[ (=T RSP SRRPPPP - 47,698 16,479 64,177
(81T (T SRRSO - 1,196 501 1,697
Bonds and debt iNSTTUMENTS .......uuiiiiiiiiiie e ab s - 48,894 16,980 65,874
Shares and equity instruments with variable income
[ (=T PRSP PPPP PP - - 9,632 9,632
(81911153 (o PP PUPRTPPPPR - - 7,417 7,417
Bond funds with variable income, unlisted ...................... - - 4,551 4,551
Shares and equity instruments with variable income ............cccocceiiiiiiiniii e - - 21,600 21,600
Derivatives
OTC AEIVALIVES .. .coeeiieie ettt ansnenneaneneenees - - 5,001 5,001
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ..........coiiiiiiiiiieiiie e - - 1,616 1,616
DEIIVALIVES ...tttk a et - - 6,617 6,617
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt inStruments, lISTEA ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e - - 10,852 10,852
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed ............ccooiiiiieiiiiieeeeeciie, - - 12,459 12,459
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, unlisted .............ccccooviviiiiiiiiiiieeeenn, - - 4 4
Securities used for economMIC hedgiNg ....uuviiiiiiiiiiiie e - - 23,315 23,315
Other financial assets
ACCOUNES FECEIVADIE ... 3,617 - - 3,617
Other financial assets ... 5,058 - - 5,058
Other financial assets 8,675 - - 8,675
FINANCIAl BSSELS ..ottt bbbttt s s e aesensnnnnnnneneees 896,294 48,894 68,512 1,013,700
Financial liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ...........cccooooiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,984 - - 5,984
DIBPOSIES .ottt ettt ettt ettt e e 492,916 - - 492,916
BOITOWINGS ..veiieeiiiiitte ettt ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e e asbbb et e e e e ssbbbeaeeeanabseaeeeannnneeeeas 304,745 - - 304,745
Subordinated HADIITIES ..........uuuiiiiiiiiieee e e et e e e e e e e e e eeaees 20,083 - - 20,083
Short POSItION 1N DONAS .......viiiiiic et - - 385 385
Short position in bonds, used for economic hedging ...........cccoccveiiiiiiiieii e - - 107 107
Short position in equity .. - - 24 24
[ LY V= LAY T N - - 2,054 2,054
Other finaNCial lADIIILIES .......coiiiiiiii e e e e e e st e e 6,408 - - 6,408
Financial labilitieSs .......oviiiiiiiiiii e e e e s e e e e e e s aaraaeeeens 830,136 - 2,570 832,706
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23. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

2018 Manda-

Fair value torily at
Financial assets Amortized through  fair value
Loans cost OClI thr. P/L Total
Cash and balances with Central BanK .............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieee e e 83,139 - - 83,139
LoaNns t0 Credit INSHEULIONS ........ueee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e s eaaba s eeeeees 56,322 - - 56,322
(o= 1 Eo (o o1V L] (0] 1 1 [=T TN 829,014 - 4,812 833,826
[0 =10 P PP TPPPPPPN 968,475 - 4,812 973,287

Bonds and debt instruments

[T (Lo SRR SUPPRTPPNY - 51,329 17,274 68,603
L83y LYo PR OPRRPPRROt - 2,459 389 2,848
Bonds and debt iNSTIUMENTS ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit ittt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeaaeees - 53,788 17,663 71,451

Shares and equity instruments with variable income

[ (=T RSP UPR PP - - 7,270 7,270
(81 TE] (=T OSSPSR - - 9,867 9,867
Bond funds with variable income, unlisted ... - - 3,128 3,128
Shares and equity instruments with variable iNCOMEe .........occcvveiiiiiiiiiiie s - - 20,265 20,265
Derivatives
(@ O o (=T Y = 1 (Y L<T TR - - 5,020 5,020
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........ooiuuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - - 1,221 1,221
Derivatives - - 6,241 6,241
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt instruments, listed . - - 10,010 10,010
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed - - 6,587 6,587
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, unlisted ...............c.coccoviiiiiiicnnene. - - 3 3
Securities used for economMic hedging .......ccveiiiiiiiiiei e - - 16,600 16,600
Other financial assets
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE .....vveeiiiiiiiiieee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e et reeeeees 3,751 - - 3,751
Other financial assets ... 2,056 - - 2,056
Other financial assets 5,807 - - 5,807
FINANCIAI ASSEBES ..uuiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e e e et e s e e e e e s b b eeeesseaaaaeaees 974,282 53,788 65,581 1,093,651
Financial liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ...............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiieieceeeeeeeeeeee 9,204 - - 9,204
(D=7 010 1] £ PO P O PP PPPPPPPPPIN 466,067 - - 466,067
BOITOWINGS .. eeieeeite ettt ettt e et e e e st e e e e s bbb e e e e e e nbn e e e e e eanneeeees 417,782 - - 417,782
51U o] o T F= 1 2= N TT= Lo L1 4= S 6,532 - - 6,532
Short POSItIoN IN DONAS ........ooiiiiic s - - 488 488
Short position in equity, used for economic hedging ...........ccceeioiiiiiiiiiiiei s - - 37 37
Derivatives .......... - - 1,795 1,795
Other financial labilities ..........oooii i eeeeeees 6,130 - - 6,130
FIiNANCIAl lHADITITIES ... et e e et e e e e e e aaaaans 905,715 - 2,320 908,035
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23. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Bonds and debt instruments measured at fair value, specified by issuer Mandatorily

2019 FVOCI FVPL Total
Financial and iINSUrANCE ACHIVILIES ......iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e et ie e e e e e e e e e e s e e e s e aabb s e eeseeeaaes 417 5,613 6,030
[odU] o] TR Y=Tox (o] O PTURTRRY 41,417 7,259 48,676
(O] g oo =1 =2 ST PP P PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPNY 7,060 4,108 11,168
Bonds and debt inStruments at faIr VAIUEG .........ooovvieiiiiiiiee et e e 48,894 16,980 65,874
2018

Financial and iINSUrANCE ACHIVILIES ......iiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e et e e e e e et et e e e e s e et b s e eeeeesaaes 2,962 7,364 10,326
[odU] o] TR Y=Tox (o RN 44,084 8,724 52,808
(O] g o To] =1 =2 ST P PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPINY 6,742 1,575 8,317
Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair Value ........cocceviiiiieiiiiiiiieci e 53,788 17,663 71,451

The total amount of pledged bonds was ISK 6.0 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2018: ISK 5.9 billion). Pledged bonds comprised
Icelandic Government Bonds and corporate bonds that were pledged against funding received and included in Due to credit institutions and
Central Bank as well as short positions included in Financial liabilities at fair value.

24. Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are market observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: valuation techniques which include significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

2019
Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt iNSIIUMENES ........iiiiiiiiieiice e e e e e e b e e e e eeaans 57,196 8,650 28 65,874
Shares and equity instruments with variable INCOME ...........ccccoviiiiiiii i 5,169 14,876 1,555 21,600
[ LY A= LAV T N - 5,001 - 5,001
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING .......cooiiiiiiieiiiiiiiii e - 1,616 - 1,616
Securities used for ecoNOMIC hEAGING .......vvviiiieiiiiiiee e 22,819 496 - 23,315
Investment property ... . - - 7,119 7,119
YN = £\ A £ LT V2= 1LV L= 85,184 30,639 8,702 124,525
Liabilities at fair value
Short POSItION 1N DONAS .......veiiiiii e 385 - - 385
ShOort POSItION 1N QUILY ....eeoiiriieiiii ettt 24 - - 24
Short position in bonds, used for economic hedging ...........cccoccveiiiieiiieii e 107 - - 107
[ LY V= LAY T N - 2,054 - 2,054
Liabilities at fair value 516 2,054 - 2,570
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24. Fair value hierarchy, continued

2018

Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o= 1 IS (o o1 U] (0] 0 1 =T ¢ PPN - 4,812 - 4,812
Bonds and debt INSIUMENES .......iiiiiiiiiieiiec e e e e e e b eeeeeeeans 61,909 9,500 42 71,451
Shares and equity instruments with variable income .. 3,980 14,956 1,329 20,265
[ LT 1Yz LAV T RN - 5,020 - 5,020
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNLING ........ooouuiiiieiiiiiiie e - 1,221 - 1,221
Securities used for ecoNOMIC NEAGING .......uvvviiiieiiiiiee e 16,597 3 - 16,600
INVESTMENT PIOPEITY ..ottt - - 7,092 7,092
YN = £\ A £ L V2= 1LV L= 82,486 35,512 8,463 126,461
Liabilities at fair value

Short POSItION IN DONAS ...cooiiiiiiiiiie e 488 - - 488
Short position in equity, used for economic hedging 37 - - 37
[ LY A= LAY T N - 1,795 - 1,795
Liabilities at fair VAIUE .......ooooeeeiiieeeeeee e 525 1,795 - 2,320

Transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 amounted to ISK 20 million in 2019 (2018: Transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 amounted to ISK 496
million).

Fair value of assets and liabilities

The fair value of asset and liabilities is the amount at which the asset and liability could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, i.e. not during a forced sale or liquidation. The existence of published price quotations in an active market is the best
evidence of fair value and when they exist they are used by the Group to measure assets and liabilities. If quoted prices for an asset fail to
represent actual and regularly occurring transactions in active market transactions or if quoted prices are not available at all, fair value is
established by using an appropriate valuation technique.

Methods for establishing fair value

The best evidence of the fair value of an asset and liability at initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value can be
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions, or is based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets.

In some cases, the carrying value of an asset in Note 23 is used as an approximation for the fair value of the asset. This is straight forward
for cash and cash equivalents but is also used for short term investments and borrowings to highly rated counterparties, such as credit
institutions, on contracts that feature interest close to or equal to market rates and expose the Group to little or no credit risk.

Level 1: Fair value established from quoted market prices

For listed and liquid stocks and bonds, certain financial derivatives and other market traded securities, the fair value is derived directly from
quoted market prices. These instruments are disclosed under Financial instruments and Financial liabilities at fair value in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Level 2: Fair value established using valuation techniques with observable market information

For assets and liabilities, for which the market is not active, the Group applies valuation techniques to attain a fair value using as much
market information as available. Valuation techniques include using recent market transactions between knowledgeable and willing parties,
if available, reference to current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models or other commonly accepted valuation techniques used by market participants to price the instrument.

For assets and liabilities for which quoted prices on active markets are not available, the fair value is derived using various valuation
techniques. This applies in particular to OTC derivatives such as options, swaps, futures and unlisted equities but also some other assets
and liabilities.

In most cases the valuation is based on theoretical financial models, such as the Black Scholes model or variations thereof. These
techniques also include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

Level 2 instruments include unlisted shares, unlisted funds with underlying bonds and equity holdings (share certificates), unlisted and less
liquid listed bonds and all OTC derivatives.
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24. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Level 3: Fair value established using valuation techniques with significant unobservable market information

In some cases there is little or no market data to rely on for fair value calculations. The most common valuation technique is present value
calculations. Such calculations involve the estimation of future cash flow and the assessment of appropriate discount rate. The discount
rate should both reflect current market rates and the uncertainty in the future cash flow. In such cases internal models and methods are
used to calculate the fair value. The models may be statistical in nature, based on internal or external history of assets with similar
characteristics and/or based on internal knowledge and experience. For example, the credit margin on most loans to customers which, is
added to the current and suitable interest rate to arrive at an appropriate discount rate, is estimated using credit rating and loss parameters
in case of default that have been derived from internal models.

Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price are evaluated using methods and guidelines from pertinent international
organizations. In most cases intrinsic value is the basis for the assessment but other factors, such as cash flow analysis, can also modify
the results.

The Group applies management valuation for determining fair value of investment properties. Management valuation is either based on
recent transactions and offers for similar assets or present value calculations which involve estimation of future cash flow and the
assessment of appropriate discount rate.

Movements in Level 3 assets measured at fair value

Investment Financial assets

2019 property Bonds Shares Total
Balance at the beginning Of the YEAr ..o 7,092 42 1,329 8,463
Net fair ValuE ChANGES .......cviiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e aeeeeas - 20 62 82
Additions 30 5 281 316
Disposals 3) (27) (117) (147)
Transfers out of Level 3 - (12) - (12)
Balance at the end Of the YEar .........ooiiiiiiie e 7,119 28 1,555 8,702
2018

Balance at the beginning Of the YEar ..o 6,613 39 1,130 7,782
Net fair ValUE ChANGES .......oviiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e aeeeeas 471 10 56 537
Additions 284 - 210 494
Disposal (276) ©) 1) (284)
Transfers OUL Of LEVEI 3 .....cooiiiiiiii ittt e e e eeeens - - (66) (66)
Balance at the end Of the YEar ........coiiiiiiii e 7,092 42 1,329 8,463

Line items where effects of Level 3 assets are recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement

Investment Financial assets

2019 property Bonds Shares Total
Net fiNANCIAI INCOME .....iiiiiiiee e e et e e e e s ibbeeee s - 20 62 82
Effects recognized in the Income Statement ............cccoooiiiiiiiiiie e, - 20 62 82
2018
Net fiNANCIAl INCOME .....iiiiiii e e e e et e e e e s s ntbeeeeeas - 10 56 66
Other OpPerating INCOME .......cooiiiiiiii ittt ettt 471 - - 471
Effects recognized in the Income Statement ............cccoooiiiiiiiie e, 471 10 56 537
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24. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Carrying values and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value

2019 Carrying Fair Unrealized
Financial assets not carried at fair value value value gain (loss)
Cash and balances With CENIal BANK .............uiiiiiiiiieeee et e et e e e e e e e e e e s e e et s eeeaees 95,717 95,717 -
LOANS t0 Credit INSHEULIONS ......vvviiiiiiiieeeece e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e ee s bt e e e e esesbba e e e e e eessaannns 17,947 17,947 -
Loans to customers 773,955 777,320 3,365
Oher fINANCIAI BSSELS ....eevveiiiieeeeeee ettt e e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e et ea et eesseeaaba e eeeeessannneeeeeeenns 8,675 8,675 -
Financial assets Not carried at fair VAIUE ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiii et e et e e e e raaaaaaas 896,294 899,659 3,365
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ................ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecceccccc b e e ereeaaaaes 5,984 5,984 -
[ DT oL | T OO P PO PP UPRRURUPPPTN 492,916 492,916 -
12104 (01T L PRSP PPOPPRON 304,745 316,589 (11,844)
IS0 o T o [Tat= L (=T M TE= Lo TR 20,083 20,177 (94)
Other financial lADIltIES .........oooi i e e e e e esaeeeeeseeeeeeaeraeeeeeeeeees 6,408 6,408 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair VAIUE ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e eeeaans 830,136 842,074 (11,938)
2018

Financial assets not carried at fair value

Cash and balances With CENral BANK .............oiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e s aabe s e eeeees 83,139 83,139 -
LoaNns t0 Credit INSHULIONS ........ooeeiie et b b e e eeassesesnnesnnnnnnns 56,322 56,322 -
o= 1 Eo (o o U ) (0] 0 1 =T 6 O SPPPRRPPPTS 829,014 837,153 3,327
Other fINANCIAI BSSELS ... ..ciiiiiieiiieeieeie bttt a e e e e e e eeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeeaaeaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaeaaaaens 5,807 5,807 -
Financial assets not carried at fair VAU ..o eeeenenees 974,282 982,421 3,327
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ...............coiiiiiiiiiiiiii i eeeneeneeeaaees 9,204 9,204 -
[D LT oL | T OO T P PTPP PP UPRRUPUPPPN 466,067 466,067 -
2104 (01T L PRSP PPOPPRIN 417,782 426,390 (8,608)
[0 oY o [Ta Tt (=T M TE= Vo1 [T =TT 6,532 6,454 78
Other financial lADIltIES .........oooiiiiii bbb e e e e eeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeraeeeeeeeeees 6,130 6,130 -
Financial liabilities Not carried at failr VAIUE ............uuureiiiriiieiiieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 905,715 914,245 (8,530)

Loans to customers are largely with variable interest rate. Those loans, including corporate loans, are presented at book value as they have
generally short duration and very limited interest rate risk. Loans with fixed interest rate, mainly long term retail mortgages are estimated by
using the discount cash flow method with the interest rates offered on new loans, taking into account loan to value. Defaulted loans are
presented at book value as no future cash flow is expected on them. Instead they are written down according to their estimated potential
recovery value.
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24. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Derivatives Notional Fair value

2019 value Assets  Liabilities
Forward eXChange rate agrEEMENLS ........oc.uiiiiuiie ittt et e et e e st e et e e bnee s 90,121 1,196 407
Fair value hedge Of INEreSt FALE SWAP .. .....eieiiiieiie ettt ettt e sbee e 114,337 1,616 -
Interest rate and exchange rate agrEEMENES .......ciueiiiuieiiiie ettt ettt et e e et 65,823 2,312 1,168
BONG SWAP OIEEIMENES ...ttt ittt ettt ettt s bt ekt e et bt e e se e e et e abe e e e bt e e ebb e e e aab e e e anbeeesnneeeans 9,936 46 48
SHAre SWAP AOFEEMENTS ....ccuiiiiiiieeitiit ettt ettt et et e e e e et e st et e st et e s b bt e e bt e e e bt e e e beeeanneeabneeeanaeeenan 12,710 1,447 431
DIBIIVALIVES .. .oeeiiiiee ittt e e e e et e e e e e ettt e e e et e ettt e e e e e e st eeeeeesaaaaa e eeeesaabasaeeeeesbbanneeeeeesrees 292,927 6,617 2,054
2018

Forward exchange rate agreemMENES ..........c.oocuiiiiiiieiie it 60,940 901 406
Fair value hedge Of INEreSt FAE SWAP ........eieiieieiiie ettt e e e et e e st e e steeesbeeeens 146,520 1,221 -
Interest rate and exChange rate agrEEMENES .......ccuuiiiueieiiie ettt sttt et e e e e e sbeeesbeeesntaee s 109,698 2,749 1,252
BONA SWAP QOrEEMENTS ...ttt sttt et e s et et e e s re e s e s e e e r e e nneeseeesaneanne 7,526 18 45
SHAre SWaP AQFEEMENTS ....ccuiiiiiiiieeitiiee it e ittt et e et e et e e e bt e e ate e e abe e e s bb e e e sbb e e e st eeeaneeeenneeesneeeanaeeennn 7,455 1,340 84
Options - purchased agreements . . 834 12 8
DIBIIVALIVES .. .eeiiiiei ettt e e et e e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt s e e e e e et e e e e e e s eaaa e e e e e e saabaeaeeseeabbaneeeseeeraas 332,973 6,241 1,795

Fair value hedge of interest rate swap

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting only with respect to interest rate swaps, whereby the Group pays floating rate interest and
receives fixed rate interest, with identical cash flows to the borrowings. The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of changes in the
fair value of certain fixed-rate euro bonds, see Note 32, arising from changes in interest rates. On 1 January 2018 the Group adopted IFRS
9, but has elected to continue to apply the hedge accounting principles under IAS 39. For further information about the Group's hedge
accounting policy, see Note 57.

Gain/loss
Notional Maturity Fair value on FV
2019 date Assets Liabilites ~ changes
Interest rates swaps - EUR ............cccooiiiiiiiiiini 108,667 1-5 years 1,608 — 457
Interest rates swaps - EUR ............cccoiiiiiiiiis 5,670 3-6 months 8 — 302
2018
Interest rates swaps - EUR .........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 146,520 1-5 years 1,221 - 1,182
Accumulated Gain/loss
Book fair value on FV
2019 value Assets Liabilites ~ changes
EUR 500 million - iSSU€d 2016/18 =5 YEAIS ....cceeiiuiiiieeeeiiiiiieeeeeiiiieee e s ssitbree e e e e siineeeesesnnnes 67,713 157 - (410)
EUR 300 Million - ISSUEA 2017 = 3 YEAIS ...c.uveeeiiieeiiie ettt 5,635 33 - (199)
EUR 300 Million - ISSUEA 2018 = 3 YEAIS ......vveeiiieiiiieeiiee ettt 41,601 - 756 (295)
Hedged DOITOWINGS ..o 114,949 190 756 (904)
2018
EUR 500 million - issued 2016/18 - 5 YEAIS .......cccceiiiiuiiiiiiiieiiiie et 65,845 640 - (161)
EUR 300 million - iSSUed 2017 - 3 YEAIS ......ceeeiieiiiieeciie e 40,034 1 - (29)
EUR 300 million - iSsued 2018 - 3 YEAIS .......ccevuiieiiiieiiieieieee e 40,328 - 343 (329)
Hedged DOITOWINGS ...coiiiiiiieeie ettt e e e 146,207 641 343 (509)

The effectiveness of each hedge is measured regularly with linear regression. The relationship between fair value changes of an interest
rate swap on the one hand and a borrowing on the other hand is examined. In all cases the effectiveness is within limits, or between 93-
105%.
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25.

26.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements

Netting potential not

Assets subject to netting recognized in the
arrangements Balance Sheet Assets not
Assets Assets after  subjectto Total assets
Gross assets Nettings recognized consideration enforceable recognized
before  with gross on Balance  Financial Collateral of netting netting arr-  on Balance
2019 nettings liabilities  Sheet, net liabilities received potential angements  Sheet, net
Reverse repurchase agreements .......... 6,539 (44) 6,495 (5,921) - 574 - 6,495
DerivatiVes ........cccccveviiieniiieniee e 4,601 - 4,601 (713) - 3,888 2,016 6,617
Total aSSetS ...ooovvveviiiiiiieeeee e 11,140 (44) 11,096 (6,634) - 4,462 2,016 13,112
2018

Reverse repurchase agreements . . 12,026 (50) 11,976 (10,387) - 1,589 - 11,976
DEriVALiVES .....eveeeiiieeiiieeeieee e 4,082 - 4,082 (840) - 3,242 2,159 6,241
Total aSSetsS ....coccvevviiiiiiieeeeeee e 16,108 (50) 16,058 (11,227) - 4,831 2,159 18,217

Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements

Netting potential not

Liabilities subject to netting recognized in the
arrangements Balance Sheet Liabilities Liabilities not Total
Gross Liabilities after  subject to liabilities
liabilities Nettings recognized consideration enforceable recognized
before  with gross on Balance  Financial Collateral of netting netting arr-  on balance
2019 nettings assets  Sheet, net assets pledged potential angements sheet
Repurchase agreements ...............ccuueees 5,965 (44) 5,921 (5,921) - - - 5,921
DeriVatiVeS .......ccocvveriiiiiiiiciiee e 761 - 761 (713) - 48 1,293 2,054
Total liabilities ... 6,726 (44) 6,682 (6,634) - 48 1,293 7,975

2018

Repurchase agreements ....................... 10,437 (50) 10,387 (10,387) - - - 10,387
Derivatives ..........ccocveveeniiicieeenee 878 - 878 (840) - 38 917 1,795
Total liabilities .......ccccovvveiiiieiiieceee 11,315 (50) 11,265 (11,227) - 38 917 12,182

Reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements are recognized within the line items Financial instruments and Due to credit
institutions and Central Bank respectively.

Investments in associates

The Group's interest in its principal associates 2019 2018
Audkenni hf., Borgartin 31, ReyKjavik, ICEIANG ...........c..oiiiiiiiiiieie et 25.4% 25.4%
Farice ehf., Smaratorg 3, KOPavogur, ICEIANG ............oiiiiiiiiiii e - 35.8%
JCC ehf., Borgartln 19, ReyKjavik, ICEIANG .........cocuiiiiiiiiii ettt 33.3% 33.3%
Reiknistofa bankanna hf., Katrinartin 2, Reykjavik, Iceland . 20.0% 20.0%
220 Fjordur ehf., Fjardargata 13-15, Hafnarfjérdur, Iceland 37.4% 37.4%
SER eignarhaldsfélag ehf., Borgartin 19, ReYKJAVIK ........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiee ettt 35.3% 35.3%
Investments in associates

Carrying amount at the beginning 0f the YEAr ...........coii e 818 760
oo 071 (T SR UU R PTRR PR 18 85
Transfers to assets held for sale - (55)
Disposals .......cccceveeviiiiiiiieeiieeee (740) -
Share of profit of associates and Profit fromM SAIE .............eviiiiiiiiiii 756 27
INVESTMENT IN @SSOCIALES ...vviiiiiiiiiiiiiite e ettt e e e ettt e e e e ettt e et ee e s s tbbeeeeeasssaeeaaeeassbseeeeesaasbbbeeaeeessbbeeeeeeansssseaeeeannsnneeeas 852 818

In March 2019 Arion Bank sold its entire shareholding in Farice ehf. The sale generated a profit of ISK 732 million and is recognized in the
Consolidated Income Statement.
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27. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise the following categories: Goodwill, which arises on business combinations; Infrastructure, Customer
relationships and related agreements which are identified during the acquisition of subsidiaries and related to the activities of the
businesses being acquired; and Software, which is acquired (i.e. software licenses) and expenses of implementation.

Infrastructure, which is capitalized as an intangible asset, is related to the asset management operation and branding of the insurance
operation. The business activity is based on years of developing expertise and systems, during which a valuable platform has been created
for future growth. An impairment test is performed annually as described below.

Customer relationships and related agreements are connected to business relationships and agreements which the Bank acquired in
subsidiaries. The asset is based on the assumption that business relationships and agreements generate regular payments and earnings to
the relevant business segments. The lifetime of these agreements is based on the experience of the Group and the industry. As a result,
these agreements are assessed as having an identified useful lifetime.

Acquired software and internally developed software is capitalized on the basis of the cost of acquiring and bringing the software into
service. Expenditure on internally developed software is recognized as an asset when the Group is able to demonstrate its intention and
ability to complete the development and use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and when it can reliably
measure the costs to complete the development. The capitalized costs of internally developed software include external expenses directly
attributable to developing the software and salary and salary related expenses of implementation of core systems. Capitalized costs of
software are amortized over its useful life. Computer software licenses and internally developed software recognized as intangible assets
are amortized over their useful life, which is estimated to be 3-10 years.

Policies applied to the Group's intangible assets Goodwill Customer relationship
and infrastructure and related agreements Software

Finite 6-15 years

USEIUITIVES oo Undefined and undefined

Finite 3-10 years

Straight-line basis over
Impairment test 6-15 years and
impairment test

Straight-line basis

Amortization method over 3-10 years

Internally generated Or aCqUIred .........cccceeeeeviiiiiieeeeeiiiiiieee s Acquired Acquired Acquired and internally

generated

Customer

relationship

Infra- and related
2019 Goodwill structure agreements  Software Total
Balance at the beginning of the year .. 669 2,383 787 2,558 6,397
F2Xe [0 11 o] o 1= PT T TPPPPPPN - - - 2,291 2,291
Additions, capitalized SAlArES ...........cccuviiieiiiiiiiiie e - - - 459 459
AMOTTIZATION .ottt e st e e e et e e e e s eeeee e e - - (60) (720) (780)
Intangible assets ... 669 2,383 727 4,588 8,367

2018

Balance at the beginning of the year ..............cocoiiiiii s 4,315 3,705 1,492 4,336 13,848
X Lo 1110 3 TSRS - - - 1,372 1,372
Transfers to assets and disposal groups held for sale ..............ccccoooeeeiiennen. (3,646) (1,322) (445) (2,645) (8,058)
AMOTTIZALION .ottt e e e st e et e e s e e nnneeennee - - (260) (505) (765)
Intangible assets 669 2,383 787 2,558 6,397

Goodwill is recognized among assets in the operating segment Vordur, see Note 5.

Impairment testing

The methodology for impairment testing on the Infrastructure and Customer relationship, which is part of intangible assets, is based on
discounted cash flow model which uses inputs that consider features of the business and the environment.

The model used, to determine the recoverable amount, is most sensitive to changes in the forecast earnings available to shareholders over
a five-year period, the cost of equity and to changes in the growth rate. As a result of this analysis no impairment was recognized in 2019

(2018: nil).
2019 2018
Discount and growth rates Discount Growth  Discount Growth
rates rates rates rates
Asset Management OPEIALION ..........eioiuieeiiieeeiie ettt e b e 10.8% 2.5% 13.0% 2.5%
INSUFANCE OPEIALION ....eiiuiiieiiiee ettt ettt ettt e st e e st e e e e e enneenaee 12.8% 2.5% 16.0% 2.5%
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28. Tax assets and tax liabilities 2019 2018
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
(@0 [ (=] 1 0 = PSPPI 3,461 - 4,650
DEFEITEA 18X ..ottt 2 943 90 469
Tax assets and taxX [abilitIES .......coiivuiiiie e 2 4,404 90 5,119
Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are attributable to the following:
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities ............ccccveeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2 (272) - (305)
Investment property and property and qQUIPMENT .........oouuiiiieeiiiiieee e - (261) - (221)
Financial @SSets ..........coceevivveiiiiieiiiie e 248 - 567 -
Other assets and liabilities ..............cccceeeennnns 149 (359) 157 (375)
Deferred tax related to foreign exchange gain . - (449) - (302)
TaX 0SS CAITY FONWAIT .....ceeiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e st e e e s st e e e s e naneeeeeaas 1 - 100 -
400 (1,341) 824 (1,203)
Set-off of deferred tax assets together with tax liabilities of the same taxable entities ........ (398) 398 (734) 734
Deferred tax assets and tax labilities .........cccccceiiiiiiiiiii e 2 (943) 90 (469)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has ISK 1,899 million (31.12.2018: ISK 2,347 million) of tax losses carried forward. These losses relate to subsidiaries that have
a history of losses, do not expire, and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries neither have any
taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as
deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognize deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.
If the Group was able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, profit and equity would have increased by ISK 380 million (2018:

ISK 469 million).

Changes Recognized Recognized

Changes in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities due to through in profit or

2019 At 1 Jan. Valitor equity loss At 31 Dec.
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities .............ccccveeeiiiiiiienennns (305) - - 35 (270)
Investment property and property and eqUIpPMENt ..........cccvvvveeriiiiiieeeeesiiinnes (221) - - (40) (261)
FINANCIAI @SSELS ..iiiiiiiiiiiiii et 567 - - (319) 248
Other assets and liabilities ............cooiiiiiiiiiii e (218) - (22) 30 (210)
Deferred foreign exchange differences ..........cccoovvviiiiiiiiiiiiei e, (302) - - (147) (449)
Tax 10SS CAITY FONWAIT ......ccceiiiiiiiiiiei ittt 100 - - (99) 1
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ..........ccccevvieiniiiniiennnns (379) - (22) (540) (941)
2018

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities .............ccccceeeiiiiiiiiinnnns 293 - - (598) (305)
Investment property and property and equipment . (982) 465 - 296 (221)
FINANCIAI @SSELS ...ttt 468 - - 99 567
Other assets and iabilities ...........cccuiiiiiiiiiiici e (259) 60 (222) 203 (218)
Deferred foreign exchange differences ..........ccccooiiiiiiiciiiicniicecccece 9) - - (293) (302)
Tax [0SS CArTY fOrWAIG ......cc..viiiiiiiiiii it 440 (303) - 37) 100
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ............cccccocoiiiiiiiiiinnnns (49) 222 (222) (330) (379)

29. Assets and disposal groups held for sale and associated liabilities

Assets and disposal groups held for sale 2019 2018
AV £z U1 (o g o] Lo [T g To o PSP PP P PP PPPPRPPPPPPTRON 30,657 40,003
SEAKKSDEIG ENT. .o et e et e et e e et e e st e e e e e e e e e e 2,711 6,516
SOIDJANG €N, et E e R et et e b nr e e nRe e reenree s 8,676 -
Disposal groups held for sale 42,044 46,519
REAI ESTALE .....eiiiiiie ettt et e e e R e e e e e e e e 1,553 2,021
ONEI ASSELS ..ttt e e et e e e Rt e R e e e e e et e et e e e e e s e e 29 44
Assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ......iiiiii e 43,626 48,584
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29. Assets and disposal groups held for sale and associated liabilities, continued

Liabilities associated with disposal groups held for sale 2019 2018
RV 1L (o gl o) [o 19T T o O OSSP UPR PRSI 22,052 26,337
ST0] o= 4o =] 21 PPV PR PPN 6,579 -

Liabilities associated with disposal groups held for sale 28,631 26,337

Real estates and other assets classified as assets held for sale are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and individuals.

Valitor Holding hf.

Arion Bank's shareholding in the subsidiary Valitor Holding hf. (Valitor) was 100% at 31 December 2019. The Bank is in the process of
potentially divesting the Bank's shareholding in Valitor and appointed Citi as a sales advisor. The Bank is aiming for having completed the
sale of Valitor within the next 12 months. In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale, Valitor is
classified as asset held for sale in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and balances With CENIAl BANK ...........uuveiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 9,363 7,441
o oY E (e (=Y 1 T 1Y (1 (V)10 1N 12,312 19,300
o= T E N (o U ] (0] 14 L= £ PRSPPSO 2,061 2,258
Financial instruments .......... . 28 174
INVESTMENES IN @SSOCIALES .....veiiieiiiiiiiiite e e ittt e e e e et ee e e e et e et e e et e ttaeeeeeassasaeeaee e sassaeeeeaasssseeaeeasassbseeaeesanssaaeeesnnnnnneens 66 58
Lale= gl 1o LoI= ET Y= PP PTR TP 4,720 8,267
L= =TT £ PRPPS 293 101
(@1 1T TIT=Y PP PPPPPPPPPPPIRY 1,814 2,404
TOLAI ASSEOIS oottt ——————————————————————————tttatataaaaaaaaaas 30,657 40,003
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and CeNTral BANK ............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e et a e e e e s e sbbb e e e e e s annbbbeeeeas 2 -
Financial [iabilities @t AN VAIUE .........cc.uviiiiieeiiiiee et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e s s st b e e e e e s ssstsaaeeeesssnsaaeeeeannnnns 26 8
LI R L o = PO PP PRPPPPPRRN 321 136
(@1 g T [F=T o111 1= RURRRRRRRRRRN 21,703 26,185
220 (01111 T [ PP P R UPPPPN - 8
TOLAl LIADTHTIES ooeeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e e a e e e a e e e e e aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaes 22,052 26,337
Elimination wWithin Arion BANK GIOUP .......eiieiiiiitieeeeeiiiiiee e e seiitete e e s sttt e e s s ssbbe e e e s e sasseeeeeaasbbeteeesaanbbaeeeeesannsaseeeesannnns (2,086) 2,116
BOOK VAIUE OF VAILOT .oeeeieeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ennnnnnes 6,519 15,782

Solbjarg ehf., a subsidiary of Eignabjarg ehf.

On 20 June 2019 Arion Bank acquired all shares in TravelCo hf. and its subsidiaries (hereafter "TravelCo") following the enforcement of
pledges. Sélbjarg ehf, of which the Bank is the beneficial owner, is the holding company of TravelCo. TravelCo was established following
the collapse of Primera Air ehf. and Primera Travel Group hf. and owns and runs tour operators in Scandinavia and Iceland. This
enforcement primarily represents a change in ownership and does not affect the daily operations or services of the tour operators. Arion
Bank's rationale for acquiring TravelCo was to safeguard the continued operation of the tour operators as well as the Bank's interests. Arion
Bank is in the process of divesting all of the Bank's shareholding in TravelCo and the company is therefore classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5. At year-end 2019 Arion Bank signed a sales and purchase agreement for the sale of a subsidiary of Sélbjarg ehf.,
Terra Nova S6l ehf. The sale has not been finalized and is subject to a due diligence process and an approval from the Icelandic
Competition Authority.

Stakksberg ehf., a subsidiary of Eignabjarg ehf.

On 22 January 2018 United Silicon was declared bankrupt following serious operational problems which resulted in its operating license
being temporarily suspended, following a failed attempt at reaching a composition arrangement with its creditors. In February 2018 an
agreement was reached between the administrator of the bankrupt estate of United Silicon and Arion Bank, whereby the Bank foreclosed
against its collateral and acquired all the company's main assets. The assets of the silicon plant are currently managed by Stakksberg ehf.,
which is held by the Bank through the subsidiary Eignabjarg ehf. Stakksberg ehf. has, since the transfer of the assets from United Silicon,
successfully worked to reduce uncertainties surrounding the recommissioning of the silicon plant, with measures including the securing of
all necessary operating permits, power supply and undertaking further engineering design groundwork necessary for the carrying out of
remedial work prior to the reopening of the plant. Stakksberg ehf. is currently engaged in the final stages of concluding a new
environmental impact assessment for the plant. The proposed remedial actions fully fit within the scope of the current local plan for
Stakksberg's plot in Helguvik. Nevertheless Reykjanesbeer will be required to amend the current local plan to reflect building licenses which
have already been issued by Reykjanesbzer. The Bank's objective is to divest Stakksberg ehf. on the basis of this preparatory work.
Stakksberg is therefore classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5.
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30.

Other assets 2019 2018
Property and EQUIPMENT ......ooiuiiiiiiie ettt ettt e bt e e b et e e b et e e b et e bt e bt ekt eeene e e e nt e e e ane e e e e e ane 5,243 5,797
Right of use asset ... . 902 -
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE .....vveiiii et e ettt e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e et s eee s e e et e e e e e eeasansasesssensbansaeanees 3,617 3,751
UNSEtHEd SECUILIES TTATING .. .veeiieee ettt ettt et e et e ettt e skt e ekt e e kb e e e bt e e ebeeeeaneeanbneeennne 3,178 92
Investment for life assurance policyholders where risk is held by policyholder ............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiienieceeeece 1,008 833
ST Lo [ V=TT =] (OO PRSP 2,916 3,029
(@)1 g LT =TT oY= £ UPPPUORRRY 16,864 13,502
Property and equipment Real Equip- Total Total

estate ment 2019 2018
Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year ..............cccoooeiiiiiiiie 6,058 6,407 12,465 14,071
Additions - 498 498 374
Disposals (274) (364) (638) (231)
Transfer to Assets and disposal groups held for sale .............cccocoiiiiiiiiiiinieee, - - - (1,749)
Gross carrying amount at the end of the year ... 5,784 6,541 12,325 12,465
Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year ..............ccocoiiiiiiiiiie (1,975) (4,693) (6,668) (7,510)
DEPIECIALION ... (138) (500) (638) (556)
DUSPOSAIS ...ttt - 224 224 198
Transfer to Assets and disposal groups held for sale .............cccocciiiiiiiiiiiceeee, - - - 1,200
Accumulated depreciation at the end of the year ...........cccccviiiiiii e (2,113) (4,969) (7,082) (6,668)
Property and @QUIPMENT ....uuiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e a e e s naraes 3,671 1,572 5,243 5,797

The official real estate value (Registers Iceland) amounted to ISK 6,024 million at the end of the year (2018: ISK 6,241 million) and the
insurance value amounts to ISK 11,038 million (2018: ISK 10,715 million).

Right-of-use asset 2019 2018
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases 1 JANUAIY 2019 .........eiiieiiiiiiieeaiiiiiitee e s sttt e e s s sibte e e e e e s siabeeeeessssbaeeeesssabbbeeeeessnnnnseeeeaas 984 -
X Lo 11T o ST PR PPN 20 -
LaTe Lo T o TSP PPR PSPPSR 26 -
DIEPIECIALION ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e b e e e et e e et e R e e e R s e e e e e et e bt e he e e e e e nre e e eanas (128) -
RIGNT-0F-USE @SSEL ..eeiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e ettt e e e e b bbbt e e e e s et bbbt e e e e e e nbb b e e e e e e nbbeeeeeeennnbaeeeeas 902 -

Right-of-use asset consists of real estates for own use.

31. Other liabilities
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e e 4o bbb e et e e e e s bbbt e e e e e s bb et e e e e ean bbb e e e e e s aanbbbeeeeeeannbbeeeeeennnnes 654 633
UNSEEA SECUNTIES TrATING ..vvviieiiiiiiiie ettt e st e e e e ettt e e e e e b bbb et e e e s st bbbt e e e e e anbb b e e e e e enbbeeeeeeasnnbaeeeeas 365 34
Depositors’ and INVEStOrs' GUAraNtEE FUNG .........ooiiuiiiiieiiiiiiie ettt e e st e e e e s st e e e s s bbbeeeeesannnbnes 167 226
Technical provision 14,709 13,324
Technical provision for life assurance policyholders were investment risk is held by policyholder ...............c.ccccc...... 1,008 833
L1 gl aTel o [T a o R = O S T T TSSO P PP PUPPPTPPPPPI 1,492 1,590
BANK IEVY ...ttt b E e h R bRt e ket e Rttt et et e e e e e e 2,984 3,386
AACCTUEBH EXPENSES ...ttt ettt ettt e ettt ettt e ekttt e e a et e 1h bt e 412ttt e 42t e e o2 b et oo sttt oo e b et e ea b et e 4o b et e 4ok et e et et e e bb e e e st e e aabeeeenbeeenabreeenene 3,441 3,018
Prepaid income ...........ccccceeiinnenne . 1,573 1,599
Impairment of Off-DAlANCE IEMS ...t 481 717
LEASE TADIIILY ...ttt ekttt n ettt e e 914 -
Sundry liabilities .. . 4,909 4,747
(@4 =T 1=V 11 3 (=SSR 32,697 30,107
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31. Other liabilities, continued

Technical provision Technical Reinsurers' Total Technical Reinsurers' Total

provision share 2019 provision share 2018
Claims reported and loss adjustment eXpenses .............ccccoeveenne 7,742 (221) 7,521 6,871 (192) 6,679
Claims incurred but NOt reported ............cceevueeiiieeinieeiniie e 1,426 (82) 1,344 1,193 (113) 1,080
Claims oUtSTANING ...vvviiiiiiiiiiieee e 9,168 (303) 8,865 8,064 (305) 7,759
Provision for unearned premiums ..........ccocceeviiiiiiiieeniee e 5,541 4 5,537 5,260 3) 5,257
Own technical ProviSion ........ccccoeeiiiiieiiiicecee e 14,709 (307) 14,402 13,324 (308) 13,016

Insurance claim consists of claims outstanding and provision for unearned premiums. Claims outstanding present unsettled claims
incurred. Claims outstanding is the total of claims reported and actuarial estimation of claims incurred but not reported. Provision for
unearned premiums presents the current insurance risk that will be conditional on future fiscal years.

Lease liability 2019 2018
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases 1 JANUAIY 2019 ........c.ccouiiiiiiiiiiieiie et sre e sne e 984 -
AdItION ..o, . 20 -
Indexation 21 -
L1 o] (S = o= T PP PP PP PP P T PP PP PP PP PP PPPPPPP 45 -
LEASE PAYIMENTS .....vviiiieeiiiittiee e e ettt e e e ettt e e e s s kbbbt e e e e e sabt bt e e e e e s sbb et e e e e aa kbt e et e e e 4R b bbbt e e e e e s bbb e e e e e annnb e e e e e e e nn bbbt e aeeeantbreeee s (156) -
LEASE TIADIITTY ..ottt e et n e 914 -
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32. Borrowings

First Maturity
Currency, original nominal value issued Maturity type Terms of interest 2019 2018
ARION CBI 19, ISK 4,500 million .......... 2013 2019 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 2.50% ................ - 4,743
ARION CB 19, ISK 2,740 million ........... 2016 2019 At maturity Fixed, 5.50% .......cccoeriviiiiiriiniennne - 1,746
ARION CBI 21, ISK 10,220 million ........ 2014 2021 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.50% ................ 10,176 9,950
ARION CB 22, ISK 28,720 million 2015 2022 At maturity Fixed, 6.50% ... 28,264 28,503
ARION CB 24 ISK 19,240 million 2019 2024 At maturity Fixed, 6.00% ........cccooviiriiriennennne. 16,060 -
ARION CBI 25, ISK 37,940 million 2017 2025 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.00% ................ 40,213 39,333
ARION CBI 26 ISK 12,960 million 2019 2026 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 2.00% .... 12,320 -
ARION CBI 29, ISK 25,220 million 2014 2029 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.50% 27,689 27,029
ARION CBI 48 ISK 11,680 million ......... 2018 2048  Amortizing Fixed, CPI linked, 2.50% ................ 10,647 10,606

Statutory covered bonds 145,369 121,910

ARION CB 2, ISK 51,125 million ........... 2006 2048 Amortizing - 79,399
[S3 (R[o (VT =10 I OTeXVZ=T =10 I o ToY o £ - 79,399
R0} € 1 @o V2=t = To [ o ToY g o £SO RRTTON 145,369 201,309
EUR 300 mMillion ......ccoovvvviiiieiiiiiiiiieeeees 2016 2019 At maturity Fixed, 2.50% ......ccoovvvvriiieriiiinienenn, - 19,376
RON 35 million ........ccoeevveiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee, 2016 2019 At maturity Fixed, 3.80% ........cccccveeriiiiiiiiieennnnns - 1,037
SEK 275 million ........cooeevieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeea, 2016 2019 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +2.65% - 3,601
SEK 100 million .......ccoeevieiviiiiiiiieeeeeeenas 2017 2019 At maturity Fixed, 0.29% ........cccccceeriiiiiiinieennnnns - 1,310
NOK 800 million ......ccceevvveeviieeiiieeinnn 2015 2020 At maturity Floating, NIBOR +2.95% ................ 11,143 10,846
NOK 320 million .....ccceeviveeviieeiiieeeen 2016 2020 At maturity Floating, NIBOR +1.95% ................ 4,439 4,326
EUR 300 million * .....cccvveviieeiiieeiiieeis 2017 2020 At maturity Fixed, 0.75% .......cccccevvveiiinieiinnens 5,635 40,034
SEK 300 million ........ccoeevveiviiiiiiiieeeeeeena, 2017 2020 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +1.35% 2,598 3,936
SEK 250 million ........ccoeevveiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeines 2017 2020 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +0.75% 3,241 3,276
EUR 500 million * 2016 2021 At maturity Fixed, 1.625% ......ccccoveeviuieeriiinennns 67,713 65,845
EUR 13 million .... . 2019 2021 At maturity Floating, 3. EURIBOR +0.58% ....... 1,765 -
NOK 750 MillioN .....eeveieiiiiiiiiieeeeeeviiinns 2019 2022 At maturity Floating, NIBOR +1.82% ................ 10,382 -
SEK 150 million ........ccooevveiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeias 2019 2022 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +1.33% 1,949 -
NOK 250 million .. 2017 2023 At maturity Fixed, 3.02% 3,512 3,423

EUR 300 million * 2018 2023 At maturity Fixed, 1.00% 41,601 40,328
NOK 250 million ........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiie 2017 2027 At maturity Fixed, 3.40% ........cccocevviiiiiniinnn. 3,521 3,432
157,499 200,770

Senior unsecured bonds

{23 U= N 1,680 15,505
OFNET DOITOWINGS ...ttt e ettt e et e b e e s e e e ee et e et e e E e e s he e e ee e e e e et e e s e e sbeeseeensneesneenneeneee s 197 198
(@)1 g T=T g F= T E I A o 11 TP 1,877 15,703
[22o1 4 o)V 4T ISR TPPPTN 304,745 417,782

* The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to these bond issuances and uses certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments, see Note 24.

The book value of listed bonds was ISK 303 billion at the end of the year (2018: ISK 402 billion). The market value of those bonds was ISK
315 billion (2018: ISK 411 billion). The Group repurchased own debts during the year for the amount of ISK 39 billion (2018: ISK 22 billion)
with a net loss of ISK 300 million recognized in the Income Statement.

33. Subordinated liabilities

Maturity

Currency, original nominal value Issued Maturity type Terms of interest 2019 2018
SEK 500 million * ......ooeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeein, 2018 2028 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +3.10% . 6,472 6,532
NOK 300 million ......ccccoocvvveviiiiieeen 2019 2029 At maturity Floating, NIBOR +3.65% ................. 4,183 -
SEK 225 million .......ooeevieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeees 2019 2029 At maturity Floating, 3 month STIBOR +3.70% . 2,918

ARION T2I 30 ISK 4.800 million ............ 2019 2030 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.875% .............. 4,913 -
ARION T2 30 ISK 880 million 2019 2030 At maturity Fixed, 6.75% 907 -
EUR S MIllioN ....ooooviiiiiiiieiiiiiiieeeeeeeee 2019 2031 At maturity Fixed, 3.24% 690 -
S0l o Je T go T aT= L=To M EF=T o 1T A= P PURTRRRNY 20,083 6,532

* The notes are eligible as Tier 2 capital under the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002. The notes are callable by the issuer on 22 November 2023
and on every interest payment date thereafter.
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34. Pledged assets

Pledged assets against liabilities 2019 2018
Assets, pledged as collateral againSt DOITOWINGS ..........eiiiiiiiiiii e 186,902 239,164
Assets, pledged as collateral against loans from credit institutions and short poSItionS .............cccocvveiiiieniieeiiieene 6,023 5,927

Pledged assets against liabilities 192,925 245,091

The Group has pledged assets against borrowings, both issued covered bonds and other issued bonds and loan agreements. The total
value of those pledged assets was ISK 187 billion at the end of the year (2018: ISK 239 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans
to individuals. The book value of those borrowings was ISK 145 billion at the end of the year (2018: ISK 201 billion).

The Group has pledged bonds against short term lending from the Central Bank of Iceland and against short positions, related to swap
agreements, to hedge market risk of those assets.

35. Equity

Share capital and share premium

According to the Bank's Articles of Association, total share capital amounts to ISK 1,814 million, with par value of ISK 1 per share. The
holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as approved by the general meeting and are entitled to one vote per share at
shareholders' meetings.

Share Share Share Share

capital  premium 2019 capital  premium 2018
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year .............ccccccc..... 1,814 57,196 59,010 2,000 73,861 75,861
Purchase of treasury StOCK .........cc.evveiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiieee e (41) (3,242) (3,283) (190) (16,949) (17,139)
EMPpIoyees STOCK Grant ..........occuveiieeiiiiiiiiieesiiiiieeeeeesiiieee e - (12) (12) 4 284 288
Shares outstanding at the end of theyear .........cccccoeoviiiinnnne 1,773 53,942 55,715 1,814 57,196 59,010
Own shares at year-end ...........cccoceveeiiieiieiieeee e 41 186
- as proportion of issued share capital ............cccocoveiiiienieniens 2.3% 9.3%

At the Annual General Meeting of Arion Bank hf. on 20 March 2019 a motion was passed to reduce the company's share capital by ISK 186
million at nominal value, by cancelling the company's own shares. The reduction took place in April 2019. The company's share capital was
reduced from ISK 2,000 million to ISK 1,814 million at nominal value, divided into an equal number of shares and with one vote attached to
each share.

The meeting also authorized the Board of Directors to acquire, on behalf of the Bank, up to 10% of issued share capital in the Bank. The
authorization remains in effect until the Bank's Annual General Meeting in 2020 or 15 September 2020, whichever occurs first. In 2019 the
Board of Directors authorized the Bank to initiate the share buy-back programs in Iceland and Sweden. The purpose of the programs is to
reduce the Bank's share capital (in line with the Bank's dividend policy). The Bank may purchase up to 59,000,000 shares in total under the
programs, corresponding to 3.25% of the issued share capital, or for up to ISK 4.5 billion market value. In January 2020 the FSA approved
the further buy-back of own shares for up to ISK 3.5 billion. The buy-back program will continue until the AGM in March 2020.

In 2018 Arion Bank acquired own shares following the decision to accept an offer from Kaupskil ehf., a subsidiary of Kaupthing ehf., to buy
back 9.5% of issued share capital in Arion Bank, or 190 million shares. Arion Bank paid ISK 90.087 a share, a total of ISK 17,139 million.

According to a decision made by the Board of Directors, own shares were allocated to employees in connection with the Bank's IPO and
listing in 2018. In total approximately 4 million shares were allocated to employees at ISK 75 per share, a total of ISK 295 million. In
accordance with the employees' stock grant programme, an employee who resigns within the vesting period of two years, returns the
shares to the Bank.
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Other information

36. Shareholders of Arion Bank 2019 2018
Taconic Capital (through TCA NeW SIAECAr S.A.1.L) ..eiiiiiiiiiiii e 23.53% 9.99%
Sculptor Capital MANAGEMENT ........coi.uiiiititeiiie ettt ettt e et et e e bb e e ek bt e e aa b e e e aab e e e aae e e e aas e e e abbeeeaabeeesabeeesnbneenanne 9.53% 6.58%
(1 [o [ 13237 415 [o Lo LU S USSRV PR PPN 8.79% 2.52%
[ =T o [0V Lol o - Ty (=T £ PRSPPI 5.02% 2.95%
SHOTIN N, et E b bbb bt h e it bbbt ettt 4.96% 0.61%
Goldman Sachs INLEINALIONAL ...........c.oiiiiiiii e s 3.72% 3.47%
Lifeyrissjodur VEIZIUNAIMEANNA ...........cocuiiiiiii ettt a e s e s e s e e e e s reeste e s e ene e 3.67% 0.38%
Lifeyrissjodur starfSManna rKISINS .........ccooiiiiiiiii et s 3.47% 0.53%
Eaton Vance funds .... 3.23% 3.35%
Stefnir rekstrarfélag hf. 2.46% 0.51%
ATON DANKI N L ettt e et r et 2.27% 9.31%
Frjalsi lifeyrissjodurinn .. 2.18% 0.09%
SEAPT HITEYFISSJOUU ...ttt st et h e e e s b e s e e e et e e s be e saeesieeaneenreeneee s 1.89% 1.37%
HVBIUE N ettt bbbt b H bRkt e s et b e he ettt nh ettt r et n et 1.45% 0.00%
Birta [HTEYTISSIOUUL ...ttt st s et e h et e s e e e e e e e s b e e s ae e s e e et eesneeseeeseneeree e 1.32% 0.21%
JUpPIter rekStrarfelag hif. ... et 1.10% 0.99%
MAINFIFSE BANK AG ...ttt ettt et e e b e s h e e s ae e e et e e b e e et e e s ee e eeneeneeneeesaeesanesaneas 1.09% 0.63%
TSIANASDANKI NIf. ..ottt s s st e ettt ettt 1.00% 0.88%
AATERITIS ..ttt ettt etttk h b h e h R E e E R £ R R e bR e R £ Rt R R £ Rt h Rkttt et nenne et en 0.41% 1.69%
JaNi (= (o] g O o] = TP PP OO P OP ORI PR 0.00% 7.35%
Miton Asset ManagemeNnt fUNGS ...........cocui it re e 0.00% 1.37%
Kaupskil ehf. (a subsidiary of Kaupthing hf.) ..o 0.00% 32.67%

18.91% 12.56%
100.00%  100.00%

Other shareholders with less than 1% shareholding

At year end 2018 Kaupskil ehf. was the largest shareholder of Arion Bank with a shareholding of 32.67% and Taconic Capital the second
largest shareholder with a 9.99% shareholding. In 2019 Kaupskil ehf. sold its entire shareholding. Taconic Capital increased its
shareholding in 2019 and is at year end the largest shareholder of Arion Bank.

37. Legal matters

The Group has in place formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the
likelihood and amount of loss reasonably estimated, the Group makes adjustments, if appropriate, to account for any adverse effects the
claims may have on its financial standing. Should the Group conclude that it is to the detriment of the Group's case to disclose such
potential amounts, relating to the legal claims raised, it elects not to do so. At the end of the year, the Group had several unresolved legal
claims.

Contingent liabilities

Legal proceedings regarding damages

The former chairman of the Board of BM Valla hf., together with Lindarflét ehf., has filed two cases against the Bank with a claim for
damages in the amount of more than ISK 4 billion, plus interest. The plaintiffs maintain that the Bank caused them, as shareholders of BM
Valla hf. and Fasteignafélagid Artin ehf., damage by not allowing the companies to be financially restructured and thereby forcing the
companies into bankruptcy. In April 2018 the District Court of Reykjavik dismissed one of the cases. The plaintiffs appealed the judgment
to the Court of Appeal. In June 2018 the Court of Appeal annulled the judgment of the District Court and ordered the District Court to hear
the case again. The District Court acquitted the Bank of all claims with a judgment in September 2018. The plaintiffs appealed the judgment
to the Court of Appeal. In December 2019 the Court of Appeal confirmed the District Court’s judgment. The plaintiffs have requested to
appeal the case before the Supreme Court. The second case awaits the result of this first case. The Bank believes that it will be acquitted
of the plaintiffs’ claims in both cases and has therefore not made any provision.
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37. Legal matters, continued

In a lawsuit brought in June 2013, Kortathjénustan hf. claimed damages from Arion Bank hf., islandsbanki hf., Landsbankinn hf., Borgun hf.
and the Bank's subsidiary Valitor hf. in the amount of ISK 1.2 hillion plus interest, as a result of damage Kortathjénustan hf. contended the
five parties caused the company due to violations of the Competition Act. In June 2017 the Supreme Court dismissed the case on
procedural grounds. Kortathjénustan hf. brought a new lawsuit in September 2017 regarding the same matter of dispute, claiming damages
in the amount of ISK 922 million plus interest from the same defendants. The Court of Appeal dismissed the case in May 2018.
Kortathjénustan tried to appeal the dismissal to the Supreme Court but the court dismissed the case as there was no right of complaint. In
November 2018 EC-Clear brought a new lawsuit against the same defendants regarding the same matter of dispute, demanding the
acknowledgement of liability for damages. EC-Clear was the largest shareholder in Kortathjonustan and according to the writ EC-Clear is
now the owner of alleged liability claims against the defendants. The District Court dismissed the case in February 2019. EC-Clear
appealed the dismissal to the Court of Appeal, which dismissed the case with a ruling in April 2019. In October 2019 EC-Clear brought a
new lawsuit against the same defendants regarding the same matter of dispute, claiming damages in the amount of ISK 922 million plus
interest from the same defendants, and demanding the acknowledgement of liability for damages. In December 2019 the case was
dismissed as EC-Clear did not provide an insurance for legal expenses. Should the defendants be found liable for damages, they would be
jointly responsible. Therefore the Bank has not made any provision.

Other legal matters

United Silicon

The company United Silicon was granted a moratorium on payments on 14 August 2017 and filed for bankruptcy on 22 January 2018. The
Bank had collateral in the company's assets and the estate transferred the assets to the Bank. The trustee in the estate approved the
Bank's secured claims but two unsecured creditors lodged a protest against the Bank's lien on the assets of United Silicon. The trustee in
the bankruptcy referred the disagreement to the District Court of Reykjanes. The Bank examined these protests and rejected them all. In
January 2020 the dispute was settled between the parties with minor effect on the Bank's value of the assets.

Legal matters concluded
Datacell case

In January 2015, Datacell ehf. and Sunshine Press Productions ehf. jointly filed a suit against Valitor hf. (a subsidiary of Valitor Holding hf.)
for compensatory damages amounting to approximately ISK 8.1 billion plus interest relating to Valitor hf.'s termination of Datacell's vendor
agreement. The Icelandic Supreme Court ruled on 24 April 2013 in case no. 612/2012 that Valitor hf. did not have the authority to terminate
the agreement. Following several rulings through the court system, during the last few years, a trial for the damages claim was held on 27
March 2019. On 24 April 2019 the District Court of Reykjavik issued a judgment. The conclusion was that Valitor should pay Sunshine
Press Production ISK 1,140 million and Datacell ISK 60 million in damages, a total of ISK 1,200 million plus interest from 24 April 2019. All
parties appealed the judgment to the Court of Appeal but the appeal was later withdrawn as part of a settlement between the parties,
whereas Valitor agreed to pay Datacell and Sunshine Press Productions, according to the judgment. When Arion Bank acquired a 38.62%
shareholding in Valitor Holding hf. in 2014, the Bank signed an agreement with the seller (Landsbankinn) which stipulated that the seller
would bear a part of the liability which Valitor might potentially sustain in relation to the compensatory damages described above. Hence,
Landsbankinn has taken on a part of the liability involved. Following the judgment, the Group made a provision of ISK 600 million in Q1
2019, after taking into accounts tax effects and aforementioned share of Landsbankinn. The Group will not have to make further provision
after having entered into the above described settlement.

Settlement with the Financial Supervisory Authority

The Financial Supervisory Authority informed Arion Bank in April 2018 that it was looking into the Bank's handling of conflicts of interest in
respect of the Bank’s role in the financing of the United Silicon plant at Helguvik. The Financial Supervisory Authority concluded its
investigation in November 2019 by means of a settlement in which Arion Bank recognized that the Bank failed to keep a formal and
systematic record of its analysis of conflicts of interest concerning the investment by pension funds in bonds in 2015 and their participation
in share capital increases of Sameinad Silikon hf. in 2016 and 2017. Matters of this nature may be brought to a conclusion by means of
settlement as it does not constitute a serious offence, and Arion Bank agreed to pay a fine of ISK 21 million.

38. Events after the reporting period

No event has arisen after the reporting period and up to the approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements that require additional
disclosures.
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Off balance sheet information

39.

40.

Commitments

Financial guarantees, unused credit facilities and undrawn loan commitments 2019 2018
FINANCIAI QUAIANTEES ......eiiiiiieiiiee ettt ettt oottt oo e bt e o2 bt eaa bt e 4 bt e o kbt e e bt e e e ase e e ebbeeebbeeeabneeeas 15,097 15,124
(8L TUEY=Te o1V Z=T 4o (= 1 £ TN 44,923 48,320
(8L a Lo =V (o T= Y I oTe Y a T8 1110 4[] 0 L £ 54,101 79,130
Financial guarantees, unused credit facilities and undrawn loan cCOMMItMENtS .........ccceevviiiiiiieeeniiiiieee s 114,121 142,574

Assets under management and under custody

JaS I S g Lo [l EoTaF= o =T =T o | PP TP OPPRRN 1,013,101 970,633
ASSELS UNAET CUSTOTY ..vveiiieiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiee e e ettt e e e s sttt e e e e s saeb b e e e e e e e ssbb et e e e e asabb et e e e a4 asb b b et e e e e an bbb e e e e e ennnbeeeeeeannbbbeeeeesnnbbnes 1,370,946 1,422,327

Assets under management represent the total market value of the financial assets which the Group manages on behalf of its customers.

The Group, acting as custodian, is responsible for safeguarding a firm's or individual's financial assets, hold in safekeeping securities such
as stocks, bonds and securities funds, arrange the settlement of trades and movements of securities, process corporate actions such as
income on bonds and dividends on shares; and pricing on securities.

Related party

41. Related party

The Group has a related party relationship with an entity with an influence over the Group as the largest shareholder of Arion Bank, which is
at year end 2019 Taconic Capital (23.53%). On 31 December 2018 Kaupskil ehf. (32.67%) and Taconic Capital (9.99%), the Board of
Directors of Kaupskil ehf. and Kaupthing ehf., being the parent company of Kaupskil ehf. and legal entities controlled by them, were defined
as related parties.

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank, key management personnel of the Bank and the Group's associates are defined as related parties,
as are close family members of the individuals referred to above and legal entities controlled by them.

Transactions with related parties have been conducted on an arm's length basis. There have been no further guarantees provided or
received for related party receivables or payables.

Balances with related parties Net
2019 Assets  Liabilities balance
Board of Directors and key Management PErSONNEL ..........ccvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 184 (252) (68)
Associates and other related PArtieS ............ooiiiiiiiiieiiiii e e e - (59) (59)
Balances With related PArties ..........oceoiiiiiiiii e e 184 (311) (127)
2018
Shareholders with iNflUENCE OVET the GIOUP ......c..eiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 70 (1,022) (952)
Board of Directors and key Management personnel ... . 246 (257) (11)
Associates and other related PAIIES ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 21 (71) (50)
Balances with related PArtieSs ..........coooiiiiiiii e 337 (1,350) (1,013)
Transactions with related parties Interest Interest Other Other
2019 income  expense income expense
Shareholders with influence over the Group ...........cccoeoiiiiiiii e 34 (73) 4 37)
Board of Directors and key Management personnel . 6 17) 17 (331)
Associates and other related Parties ...........cccoceeviiiiiiii i - - 28 (1,631)
Transactions with related Parties .........cooviiiiiiiii e 40 (90) 49 (1,999)
2018
Shareholders with influence over the Group ...........cccoeviiiiiiii e 47 (94) 112 -
Board of Directors and key Management Personnel ...........c.eeeeviiieireeeiiniiineeees e 12 (16) 7 (347)
Associates and other related PArties ............eveiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - - 21 (1,110)
Transactions with related PartieS .........ooeviiiiiiiiieiii e 59 (110) 140 (1,457)
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Risk management disclosures

The Group faces various risks arising from its day to day operations. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within the Group. The key to
effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure, actions to limit risk and
constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price the risk encountered is
critical to the Group's continuing profitability as well as to be able to ensure that the Group's exposure to risk remains within acceptable
levels.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Group's risk management framework and ensuring that satisfactory risk policies and
governance for controlling the Group's risk exposure are in place. The Board allocates risk management of subsidiaries to the relevant
subsidiary. For the parent company (the Bank) the Board sets its risk appetite, which is translated into exposure limits and targets
monitored by the Bank's Risk Management division.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for sustaining an effective risk management framework, processes and controls as well as
maintaining a high level of risk awareness among the employees, making risk everyone's business.

The Bank operates several committees to manage risk. The Board Risk Committee (BRIC) is responsible for supervising the Bank's risk
management framework, risk appetite and the internal capital and liquidity adequacy assessment processes (ICAAP/ILAAP). The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), is responsible for managing the asset-liability mismatch, liquidity risk, market risk, and interest rate risk and
capital allocation. The Underwriting and Investment Committee (UIC) decides on underwriting and principal investments. The Data
Committee (DC) is responsible for ensuring that data is managed properly; and the Security Committee (SC) is responsible for security
matters, both information security and physical security. The Bank operates three credit committees: The Board Credit Committee (BCC)
which decides on all major credit risk exposures, the Arion Credit Committee (ACC) which operates within limits specified as a fraction of
the Group's own funds, and the Retail Branch Committees (RBC) which operate within tighter credit granting limits.

The Bank's Internal Audit conducts independent reviews of the Bank's and several subsidiaries' operations, risk management framework,
processes and measurements. Internal Audit discusses its results with management and reports its findings and recommendations to the
Board Audit Committee (BAC).

The Bank's Risk Management division is headed by the Chief Risk Officer. It is independent and centralized and reports directly to the
CEO. The division is divided into three units: Credit Control, which monitors credit exposures on a customer-by-customer basis; Balance
Sheet Risk, which oversees all risks related to asset and liability mismatch, including capital and is responsible for the Bank's ICAAP and
ILAAP; and Operational Risk which monitors risks associated with the daily operation of the Bank. The Bank's Security Officer and Data
Officer is a part of the Risk Management division.

Arion Bank is a small bank in an international context, which nevertheless is classified as systemically important, operating in a small
economy which is subject to sectoral concentration, fluctuations in capital flows, and exchange rate volatility. The Group’s most significant
risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, concentration risk, cyber risk and business risk. These risk factors are to the largest
extent encountered within the Bank. Subsidiaries bear risk arising from real estate market and private equity prices and from asset
management and insurance activities.

Credit risk is one of the Group's primary risk factors. As a financial institution engaged in lending to individuals and companies, the Group
faces possible failure of repayment by the borrower and/or the loans not being secured sufficiently. The collateral coverage ratio of loans to
customers at year end 2019 was 89.6%.

Liquidity risk is a significant risk factor in the Group’s operation due to maturity mismatch between assets and liabilities. The maturity of
loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, of which 73.5% is on-demand or with less than 30 day term.

The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk associated with mismatches in the fixing period of interest rates between assets and
liabilities. Prepayment risk has been considerable in the past years due to favorable refinancing conditions.

Concentration risk arises from concentration to a single counterparty, a group of connected counterparties, industry sectors and geography.

The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk associated with mismatches in the fixing period of interest rates between assets and
liabilities. Prepayment risk has been considerable in the past years due to favorable refinancing conditions.

Cyber risk refers to the risk of financial loss, disruption or damage to the reputation of an organization from some sort of failure of its
information technology systems. With an expanding threat landscape, increasing frequency and complexity of cyber-crime this risk class is
of increasing concern for financial institutions. The Group is subject to cyber risk.

The Group faces business risk in the form of onerous taxes which are exclusive to financial institutions in Iceland. The excessive taxation
places an increased cost burden on the Group and subject it to a competitive disadvantages relative to other lenders that are not subject to
such taxes and fewer regulations.

The Bank and its subsidiaries face legal risk arising from its operations as well as risk to its reputation.

Further information on risk management and capital adequacy is provided in the Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures for 2019. The Pillar 3 Risk
Disclosures 2019 will be published in conjunction with the Financial Statements and be available on the Bank's website, www.arionbanki.is.
The Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures are not subject to external audit.
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42. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.

Credit risk arises anytime the Group commits its funds, resulting in capital or earnings being dependent on counterparty, issuer or borrower
performance. Loans to customers and credit institutions are the largest source of credit risk. Credit risk is also inherent in other types of
assets, such as bonds and derivatives, and off balance sheet items such as commitments and guarantees.

Managing and analyzing the Group's loan portfolio is of utmost importance. Great emphasis is placed on the quality of the credit portfolio,
by maintaining a strict credit process, critically inspecting loan applications, actively monitoring the credit portfolio and identifying and
reacting to possible problem loans at an early stage as well as restructuring of impaired credits.

The Group grants credit based on well informed lending decisions and seeks business with strong parties with strong collaterals and good
repayment capacity. The risk level of each credit is considered in the pricing.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by setting limits on the amount of risk the Group is willing to accept for individual counterparties and

group of connected clients, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The Group seeks to limit its total credit risk through
diversification of the loan portfolio across sectors and by limiting large exposures to group of connected clients.

Exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Statement of Financial Position before the effect of
mitigation due to collateral agreements or other credit enhancements. The table also shows related collateral and credit enhancements.
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty and the exposure type. The
main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- Retail loans to individuals: Mortgages on residential properties.

- Corporate loans: Real estate, fishing vessels and other fixed and current assets, including inventory and trade receivables, cash and

securities.
- Derivative exposures: Cash, treasury notes and bills, asset backed bonds, listed equity and funds that consist of eligible securities.

The value of collateral is based on estimated market value. The valuation of real estate is built on market price, official valuation of the
Icelandic Property Registry, or the opinion of internal or external specialists. The valuation of fishing vessels takes into account related
fishing quotas. The quality of collateral is evaluated in the lending process with regards to specialization, location, age and condition and
possibilities for reuse.

Collateral value is monitored and additional collateral requested in accordance with the underlying agreement. Collateral value is reviewed
in line with the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Collateral values are capped by the related exposure amount.

Maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral held against different types of financial instruments subject to the impairment requirements

of IFRS 9
Collateral

Maximum Cash and Real Fishing Other Total
2019 exposure securities estate vessels collateral collateral
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........ccccoooevviiiiieeeeeniinnnnn. 95,717 - - - - -
Loans to credit INStULIONS ..........veiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 17,947 - - - - -
Loans to customers at amortized COSt ..........cceeeeeeeiiiiiiieeieeniiinnnn, 773,955 20,792 544,723 54,601 73,091 693,207
INAIVIAUAIS . 368,569 198 328,243 13 10,996 339,450
COIPOFALES ..vvvviieeiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e et e e e et e e e e st e e e e e s nanaeees 405,386 20,594 216,480 54,588 62,095 353,757
Real estate activities and construction .. 129,856 1,972 113,465 55 8,022 123,514
Fishing industry ........cccocceeveeeieiieieenn 82,941 17 12,365 54,121 9,946 76,449
Information and communication technology .... 19,102 375 3,529 - 4,308 8,212
Wholesale and retail trade 54,989 375 32,508 7 15,980 48,870
Financial and insurance activities ... 33,669 17,726 7,254 - 7,622 32,602
Industry, energy and manufacturing 39,909 60 28,183 - 6,711 34,954
Transportation 11,066 - 1,048 313 3,285 4,646
Services ........ 17,580 61 9,137 92 5,669 14,959
Public sector . 8,617 4 2,194 - 289 2,487
Agriculture and forestry .. 7,657 4 6,797 - 263 7,064
Other assets with credit FiSK ...........cccoeeiiiiiiiiiieeie e 8,675 - - - -
Financial guarantees ...........ooccuvuiieeeiiiiiiiee e 15,097 2,232 6,322 1,403 2,262 12,219
Undrawn loan commitments and unused overdrafts .................. 99,024 - - - - -
Fair value through OCI .. 48,894 - - - - -
GovernMENt BONAS ..........oouvveeiiiiiiiiiee e 41,417 - - - - -
Corporate and finance bonds ...........cccccovvviiiieiiiiiiiieee s 7,477 - - - - -
Balance at the end of the year .........cccccoevviiiii s 1,059,309 23,024 551,045 56,004 75,353 705,426
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42. Credit risk, continued Collateral

Maximum Cash and Real Fishing Other Total
2018 exposure securities estate vessels collateral collateral
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............ccccccoviieiiiienninnne 83,139 - - - - -
Loans to credit iNStULIONS ..........occvviiiiiiiiiicc e 56,322 - - - - -
Loans to customers at amortized COSt ...........cevvevveeieviiiiiiieiiiennes 829,014 18,324 590,513 59,143 83,469 751,449
Individuals 400,483 837 363,615 18 11,027 375,497
Corporates 428,531 17,487 226,898 59,125 72,442 375,952
Real estate activities and conStruction ...........cccceeeevveeeeieccveeeeeeenns 140,955 1,280 136,935 22 2,484 140,721
Fishing industry 84,128 11 9,452 57,978 10,771 78,212
Information and communication technology ...........cccoceveereeneenene 20,635 550 3,562 - 6,618 10,730
Wholesale and retail trade ............ccoovieiiiiiienieiieneeeeee e 65,824 349 29,196 15 29,257 58,817
Financial and insurance activities ... 38,806 15,152 6,470 685 9,001 31,308
Industry, energy and manufacturing 35,406 61 23,801 - 7,520 31,382
TrANSPOMTALION ..eeuvieiiieieiaie ittt ettt eesree e eeneesnee e 11,958 17 1,055 307 1,673 3,052
Services . 16,531 64 7,407 118 4,535 12,124
PUDIIC SECION ..ttt 6,829 3 2,031 - 315 2,349
Agriculture and fOrestry .........cocceveerienienieieee s 7,459 - 6,989 - 268 7,257
Other assets with credit risk ...........ccooeeeiiiiiiiiiii i 5,807 - - - - -
Financial Quarantees ..........ccoccuveviieiiiiiiiee e 15,124 1,574 4,408 1,949 4,652 12,583
Undrawn loan commitments and unused overdrafts ... . 127,450 - - - - -
Fair value through OCI .........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieceeeeee e 53,788 - - - - -
GovernMeENt BONAS ..........oouvuieiiiiiiiie e 44,084 - - - - -
Corporate and finance bonds ...........ccccovviiiiiiieiiniiiiee s 9,704 - - - - -
Balance at the end of the year .......ccccccviiiiiii e 1,170,644 19,898 594,921 61,092 88,121 764,032

LTV ratio for residential mortgage lending

The following table describes the loan to value (LTV) and impairment status of the Group's mortgage loan book. LTV is calculated as the
ratio of the gross amount of the loan to the value of the collateral without adjusting for possible costs of obtaining and selling the collateral.
The collateral value is based on the value at origination, the most recent appraisal or official property valuation from the Icelandic Property
Registry. For credit impaired loans the value of collateral is based on the most recent appraisal.

2019 2018

Gross Thereof Gross Thereof

carrying credit carrying credit

amount  impaired amount impaired

LSS thAN 500 ...eiiuviieiiieeesiieeesiiee et ee ettt e e sttt e e st e et e e et e e e aa e e e ae e e e ae e e e taaeearbe e e nrbeeeantaeeannen 119,734 1,283 148,995 1,516
LT 0 40 PP OPRROURRNY 130,257 2,546 132,893 2,499
TO-90Y0 ..t e ettt et et e e et e e et t e e e at e e e ata e e taa e e nEbt e e nnbeeennraeennnee s 63,099 1,131 58,422 1,209
9010090 ...veeeeeeeeieee ettt et et e et — e et e e —— e ar bt e anta e e et aeenaaeenraeeeataeeeanbeeennraeanns 7,369 170 12,773 482
00 0L S S ST STRP 2,658 60 3,904 97
MOTE thAN L1L10Y0 ..eveeviieeeiiie ettt e e e ettt e et e et e e et e e et e e e tae e e stbeeessteeessseeesnseeennseeesnseeeas 10,873 698 9,543 656
NOT CIASSIFIEA ...ttt e bbbt e e e et e e e e e nnabeeeeeeans 47 - 6 -
Balance at the end Of the Year ..........ooiiiiii 334,037 5,888 366,536 6,459

At the end of the year the gross carrying amount of assets in stage 3 are ISK 20,155 million (31.12.2018: ISK 18,175 million) with ISK
13,618 million in collateral (31.12.2018: ISK 12,881 million), there of ISK 11,791 million in real estates (31.12.2018: 11,045 million).

Collateral repossessed

During the year the Group took possession of assets due to foreclosures. The total amounts of real estates the Group took possession of
during the year and still holds at the end of the year amount to ISK 501 million (31.12.2018: ISK 827 million) and in other assets ISK 9
million (31.12.2018: ISK 31 million). The assets are held for sale, see Note 29.
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42. Credit risk, continued

Credit quality

The Group uses internal credit ratings and external credit ratings if available to monitor credit risk. The Group's internal credit rating system
rates customers through application of statistical models based on a variety of information that has been determined to be predictive of
default. These include demographic, behavioral, financial and economic data, coupled with qualitative expert judgment for large corporate
exposures. Six exposure type models rate individuals' exposures — mortgages, consumer loans, auto loans, guarantees, loans to
individuals for work purposes and other loans. The models are updated at least annually and recalibrated with current data with the aim of
maintaining their predictive power. Year-on-year changes in risk classification of loans may in part be due to model refinement. All internal
models were updated during 2019 and new models and model structure first deployed at the end of 2019. External ratings are primarily
used for marketable securities and loans to credit institutions. For further information on the rating scales used, see Note 56.

The following tables show financial instruments subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 broken down by rating scale, where risk
class 5, DD denotes, the highest risk. Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are not subject to the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9. The tables below sum up the gross carrying amount of assets by rating class and current impairment stage. The gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance shows the book value of the underlying assets.

Exposures that are 'Unrated' are typically due to newly formed entities, entities for which the Bank's rating models are not applicable or no
external rating is available.

Credit quality profile by rating class Financial
Cash and Loans to instru-
2019 balances credit ments at

Loans to credit institutions, securities and cash with CB  institutions FVOCl

Investment grade ......... 95,717 16,099 48,900
Non-investment grade - 1,864 -
GrOSS CArrYiNG @MOUNT ..ottt ittt e et e ekt e ekt e e ekt e e nk b et e s ar e e e bn e e e ebneeenineeennneeeas 95,717 17,963 48,900
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...ttt sttt e e - (16) (6)
Book value 95,717 17,947 48,894
Loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Risk class 0 t0 1 (Grades AAA 10 BBB-) .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et 369,623 981 - - 370,604
Risk class 2 (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) .......cccccviuiiiiieiiieiiiiieeie e 196,133 35,291 - 81 231,505
Risk class 3 (Grades B+ 10 B-) ...ccoocuiviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 94,515 37,100 - 39 131,654
Risk class 4 (Grades CCC+ 10 CCC-) ..oouiiuiiniiiriiiiiiaiieieeie e sie e 11,669 15,828 - 114 27,611
RISK ClaSS 5 (DD) ..euueeiiieiiiieiieitie sttt ettt ettt 2 - 20,158 503 20,663
L8411 (T T T USRS PSP UPP PP 661 426 2 - 1,089
GroSS Carrying @mMOUNT ......coiiuiieiiieeaiiee e e e st et e e e e e e nneeeennes 672,603 89,626 20,160 737 783,126
LOSS @IIOWANCE ....uvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaa s (974) (921) (7,067) (209) (9,171)
BOOK VAIUE ..ttt 671,629 88,705 13,093 528 773,955

Loans to customers - Individuals

Risk class 0 to 1 (Grades AAA t0 BBB-) ......cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiceccc e 272,967 723 - - 273,690
Risk class 2 (Grades BB+ t0 BB-) .......ccccvciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiieeee e 60,165 2,257 - 81 62,503
Risk class 3 (Grades B+ t0 B-) .....cccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiecceeeee e 13,882 3,125 - 39 17,046
Risk class 4 (Grades CCC+t0 CCC-) ....oovviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 4,156 6,573 - 114 10,843
RISK ClASS 5 (DD) ...ceiiiiiiiiie it - - 6,450 503 6,953
L (Yo N 25 54 2 - 81
Gross Carrying @amMOUNT .......coouiiiiiiieiiie et e e 351,195 12,732 6,452 737 371,116
Loss allowance .... . (418) (319) (1,601) (209) (2,547)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt ettt e e seabeeeaeas 350,777 12,413 4,851 528 368,569
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Loans to customers - Companies and sovereign Stagel  Stage2  Stage3 POCI Total
Risk class 0 t0 1 (Grades AAA t0 BBB-) .....ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 96,656 258 - - 96,914
Risk class 2 (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) .......ccccooiieiiiiiiiiiieeniie e 135,968 33,034 - - 169,002
Risk class 3 (Grades B+ t0 B-) .....cc.coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 80,633 33,975 - - 114,608
Risk class 4 (Grades CCC+ 10 CCC-) ....uiiiiiiiniiiiiiiieeiiee e 7,513 9,255 - - 16,768
RISK ClaSS 5 (DD) ..ceuveeiuieeiieenieesteesiieaiteeteesteesiee s e eeeaneeesbeeseeesneeanbeenneeseeeas 2 - 13,708 - 13,710
UNFAEEA ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e eaaeeesaree s 636 372 - - 1,008
GroSS Carrying @mMOUNT .....ocuvvviiieeiiiiiiee e e e et sianeee e 321,408 76,894 13,708 - 412,010
LOSS @lIOWANCE ..o s (556) (602) (5,466) - (6,624)
BOOK VAIUE ..ot e e e st e et e e a e e 320,852 76,292 8,242 - 405,386
Loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Risk class 0 t0 1 (Grades AAA t0 BBB-) ....ccocuuiiiiiiiiiiee e 53,650 1 - 53,651
Risk class 2 10 4 (Grades BB+ 10 CCC-) ...ccueiviiiiiiiiiiiiieiee et 43,205 8,349 1,790 53,344
L0311 =To SRS PTR 5,688 1,438 - 7,126
GrOSS CArrYiNg @MOUNT ...oiiiiiieiiiee ettt et et et e et e e et e e e sbae e e sbbe e e snbeeennteeenneeeas 102,543 9,788 1,790 114,121
LOSS @IIOWAINCE ....eeiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt e e e sttt e e e ettt e e e e e bbbt e e e s s nbb e e e e e e e nes (165) (244) (73) (482)
BOOK VAIUE ..ottt ettt e e et e et e e et e e e eate e e sabe e e sabeeesbaeeanes 102,378 9,544 1,717 113,639
Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 Amounts are in ISK millions

53



A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial
Cash and Loans to instru-
2018 balances credit ments at
Loans to credit institutions, securities and cash with CB  institutions FvoCl
INVESTMENT GIAGE .....eeeieiie ittt ettt s bt e ke e e hb e e e bt e e e et e e bb e e e esb e e e ssbeeesnbeeeannee 83,141 55,954 53,795
NON-INVESTMENT GrAUE ....eeieiieiitie ettt ettt et e et e e bt e e bt e s bb e e e bt e e e nnneeeneee s - 403 -
GrOSS CAITYiNG @IMOUNT oottt ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e e ettt e et e e e s aab b b e et e e e s abb e e e e e e e bbb e eeeeaanbbbreeeas 83,141 56,357 53,795
LOSS @IIOWANCE ...tttk e ettt ekt h e ea et et e e ) (35) ()
Book value 83,139 56,322 53,788
Loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Risk class 0to 1 - (Grades AAA 10 BBB-) .......cccociiiiiiiiiiiciccscceeeee 370,832 78 - - 370,910
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) .......cccceoiiiiiiiiieiiiee e 265,361 18,521 - 41 283,923
Risk class 3 - (Grades B+ 10 B-) ....ccceoiiiiiiiiieiieiie e 107,897 24,582 - 87 132,566
Risk class 4 - (Grades CCC+ 10 CCC-) ...ouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 15,287 11,318 - 48 26,653
RISK ClaSS 5 = (DD) ...veeeiutiieiiieeeiieeeieee ettt sttt e e e e e e nnaeeeneee - - 18,175 3,640 21,815
L0 0T LT RSP 1,977 1,061 - - 3,038
GrOSS Carrying @mMOUNT ...coviiviiiiee et e e e et e e e e et e e e e s s bbb e e e e s snbeeeeeeaennes 761,354 55,560 18,175 3,816 838,905
LOSS @lIOWANCE ... (1,415) (931) (6,301) (1,244) (9,891)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt 759,939 54,629 11,874 2,572 829,014
Loans to customers - Individuals
Risk class 0t0 1 (Grades AAA 10 BBB-) .....ccooiiuiiiiieeiiiiiiieee st 222,003 - - - 222,003
Risk class 2 (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) .......cccccvciviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeiiieee e 118,271 4,831 - 41 123,143
Risk class 3 (Grades B+ 10 B-) .....cccuvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiceeeeeee e 32,562 3,255 - 87 35,904
Risk class 4 (Grades CCC+ t0 CCC-) ..uiuvviiiiiiiieiiiiiiieee e e e eeiiieee e 8,368 5,390 - 48 13,806
Risk class 5 (DD) . . - - 8,467 815 9,282
UNFAEEA ...ttt 32 3 - - 35
GroSS Carrying @mMOUNT ......coiiuieiiiieeiiieeriee et ee e e e e e saeeenneee 381,236 13,479 8,467 991 404,173
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...ceeeiiiiiiiie ettt e e e (739) (311) (2,408) (233) (3,691)
BOOK VAIUE ..ttt 380,497 13,168 6,059 758 400,482
Loans to customers - Companies and sovereign
Risk class 0to 1 (Grades AAA 10 BBB-) .....ccooiieiiiiiiiiieieceene e 148,829 78 - - 148,907
Risk class 2 (Grades BB+ to BB-) ... . 147,090 13,690 - - 160,780
Risk class 3 (Grades B+ 10 B-) ....cccccovviiiiiiiiiienieese e 75,335 21,327 - - 96,662
Risk class 4 (Grades CCC+ 10 CCC-) ...uuiviiiiiieiieiiiiie e 6,919 5,928 - - 12,847
RISK ClaSS 5 (DD) ...eeeiuteieiuiieeiiiieiittee s sitee ettt et e et esnbeeeaneeeas - - 9,708 2,825 12,533
L (Yo N 1,945 1,058 - - 3,003
GrosSs Carrying @mMOUNT .......coouiiiiiiieiie et 380,118 42,081 9,708 2,825 434,732
LOSS @lIOWANCE .....vveieiiiie e (676) (620) (3,893) (1,011) (6,200)
Book value 379,442 41,461 5,815 1,814 428,532
Loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Risk class 010 1 - (Grades AAA t0 BBB-) .....cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiciiiee e 78,151 1 - 78,152
Risk class 2 t0 4 - (Grades BB+ t0 CCC-) ..cccuviiiiiiiiiiieiiiee ittt 55,751 6,589 1,676 64,016
(8] 7= 1 (=T PP PP PP OOPPPPPPPPINE 368 38 - 406
GrOSS CarryiNg @MOUNT ....ooiiiiiiiiiie ittt e ettt b nebe e san e e e s 134,270 6,628 1,676 142,574
LOSS @lIOWANCE ... (147) (485) (57) (689)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt ettt ettt b e bt e st e e b e nbeesbe e nneenee 134,123 6,143 1,619 141,885
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The following tables reconciles the opening and closing allowance balance for loans to customers and debt securities at amortized cost and

FVOCI and loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities by their impairment requirements.

The reconciliation includes:

Transfers of financial assets between impairment requirements: include transfers to 12 month expected credit losses, to lifetime
expected credit losses and credit impaired financial assets. All transfers are presumed to occur before any corresponding

remeasurement of the loss allowance.

Net remeasurement of loss allowance: comprise the impact of changes in model inputs or assumptions, including changes in forward-
looking macroeconomic conditions, partial repayments and additional draws on existing facilities, inflation, changes in the measurement
following a transfer between stages, impairment of interest income due to impaired debt instruments and unwinding of the time value

discount due to the passage of time.

New financial assets: include purchases and originations and reflect the allowance related to assets newly recognized during the period.

Derecognitions and maturities, reflect the allowance related to assets derecognized during the period without a credit loss being

incurred, including those assets that were derecognized following a modification of terms.

Write-offs: the amount after net remeasurements of loss allowance written off during the year.

Foreign exchange: the effects of foreign exchange on the loss allowance between years.

During the fourth quarter new PD and LGD models were implemented into the expected credit loss calculations. The effect of implementing
the new models was a decrease in impairments of approximately of ISK 250 million. The effects is measured under net remeasurement. For

further information on the models, see Note 56.

2019
Impairment loss allowance * Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year .........c.ccccviiiiiiii e 1,607 1,416 6,358 1,244 10,625
Transfers of financial assets:

Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ...ccuevvieiiiiiiiiieeiiiiieeeeeeiiieee e 2,193 (1,761) (432) - -

Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .......cccuvviieiiiiiiiiiieeeiiieeee e (675) 779 (104) - -

Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .. (136) (1,139) 1,275 - -
Net remeasurement of 10SS allOWANCE ** .........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiieecceeee s (2,291) 1,945 3,181 650 3,485
New financial assets, originated or purchased .............cccccviviiiiieiiiiiieeee e 1,037 325 1,488 - 2,850
Derecognitions and MAtUTILIES ........c.uuviiiiiiiiiiiiee i (544) (392) (1,696) (1,675) (4,307)
WWIIEE-0FFS % Lottt b et (20) - (2,987) (102) (3,109)
Foreign exchange differenCe .........ccuvviieiiiiiiiii e 13 (8) 57 92 154
Impairment 10Ss allowanCe **** ... 1,184 1,165 7,140 209 9,698
Impairment loss allowances for assets only carrying 12-month ECL ............... 22 - - - 22
Total impairment 10SS AllOWANCE .......ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,206 1,165 7,140 209 9,720

* These amounts are a combination of all impairments, including an allowance for loan commitments and guarantees presented as a liability in these Financial

Statements.

** During the year the loss allowance balance for stage 3 loans was raised by ISK 789 million due to unwinding of interest income.

*** During the year an amount of ISK 2,672 million was written off but is still subject to enforcement activities subject to Icelandic law.

***x | oss allowance for all assets other than cash, bonds and loans to credit institutions.

| . Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
mpairment loss allowance for loans to customers
Balance at the beginning of the year .........c.cccccoiiiiiie 1,415 931 6,301 1,244 9,891
Transfers of financial assets:
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) .....cccooooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee 1,939 (1,507) (432) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ........ccoceviiiiiiiiiicccceee (624) 728 (104) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) ....................... (133) (675) 808 - -
Net remeasurement of l0ss allowance ................cccooee e (1,981) 1,542 2,754 650 2,965
New financial assets, originated or purchased ..............ccccocviiiiiiiniinennns 637 85 1,462 - 2,184
Derecognitions and Maturities .............ccccoooiiiiiiiiee e (270) (168) (788) (1,675) (2,901)
Write-offs ...oocvviviiiiiicee a7) (@) (2,991) (102) (3,117)
Foreign exchange differences 8 (8) 57 92 149
Total loss allowance for |0ans to CUSTOMErS ......cooeeeivivieeiieeiieiiiiieens 974 921 7,067 209 9,171
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2019
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Individuals Stagel  Stage2  Stage3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........cccccccviiiniiiiiieieeee 740 313 2,406 232 3,691
Transfers of financial assets

Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) .....cccoovviiiiiiieiiiieeieeeeen 1,195 (948) (247) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ......cccocveviveiiiieiiiieeieeeeee (341) 423 (82) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) ................ (96) (393) 489 - -
Net remeasurement of 10SS alloWancCe ...........ccccvvvveiiiieiiieeiiieeeen (1,197) 993 415 75 286
New financial assets, originated or purchased .............c.ccccooviiciinieens 246 3 13 - 262
Derecognitions and Maturities ............ccccceriiiieiienie e (112) (66) (210) - (388)
WIIEE-OFFS .o a7) 7) (1,198) (99) (1,321)
Foreign exchange differences ............cccoooiiieiiiiiiiiinic e - 1 15 1 17
Total loss allowance for individuals .........cccooeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 418 319 1,601 209 2,547

Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Companies and sovereign
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........ccccociiiiiiiiiieeieeeee 675 618 3,895 1,012 6,200

Transfers of financial assets
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ......ccccceviiiviiiiieiiiniees 744 (559) (185) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .......ccccevieiiinenieeeeeeeee (283) 305 (22) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) ................. 37) (282) 319 - -
Net remeasurement of l0Ss allowance ..............cccoeoveieeniniic e, (784) 549 2,339 575 2,679
New financial assets, originated or purchased .............ccccccooviiinieens 391 82 1,449 - 1,922
Derecognitions and MAaturities ...........ccccccerviiieiienie e (158) (102) (578) (1,675) (2,513)
WIIEE-OFFS . e - - (1,793) 3) (1,796)
Foreign exchange differences ............cccoovivieiiiiiiiiiiic e 8 9) 42 91 132
Total loss allowance for companies and sovereign .........ccccceeeeene 556 602 5,466 - 6,624
Impairment loss allowance for loan commitments, guarantees and
unused credit facilities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at the beginning of the YEar ..........cccouiiiiiiiiiiii e 147 485 57 689
Transfers

Transfers to 12-month ECL 254 (254) - -
Transfers to ifetime ECL .........ccoo i e (51) 51 - -
Transfers to credit IMPAIred ...........ccccoeiieiiiiie e ?3) (464) 467 -
Net remeasurement Of [0SS @llOWANCE ...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e (310) 403 427 520
New financial commitments originated ..............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 400 240 26 666
Derecognitions and MALUTIIES ...........coiiiiiiieiiiiei e (274) (224) (908) (1,406)
Foreign exchange differences ... 3) 7 4 8
O <. 5 - - 5
Total loss allowance for loan commit., guarantees and unused credit facilities . 165 244 73 482

Large exposures

A large exposure is defined as an exposure to a group of financially related borrowers which is equal to or exceeds 10% of the Group's
eligible capital according to Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002 and Regulation No. 233/2017 on prudential requirements. The legal
maximum for individual large exposures is 25% of eligible capital, net of eligible credit risk mitigation.

The Group has two large exposures at year end 2019, one of which is an exposure against a rated bank with better credit rating than the
Icelandic Government, totaling ISK 36.8 billion (21.3% of eligible capital) before taking into account eligible credit risk mitigation
(31.12.2018: no large exposure). The total exposure is ISK 36.6 billion (21.2% of eligible capital) after taking into account eligible credit risk
mitigation.
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43. Market risk

Market risk is the current or prospective risk that changes in financial market prices and rates adversely affect the Group's earnings and
equity position due to changes to the value and cash flows of its assets and liabilities.

Market risk arises from imbalances in the Group's balance sheet as well as in market making activities and position taking in bonds,
equities, currencies, derivatives, and other commitments which are marked to market.

The Group keeps close track of market risk and separates its exposures for the trading book and the banking book. Market risk in the
trading book arises from market making activities and non-strategic derivatives positions arising from the Bank's operations of meeting
customers' investment and risk management needs. Market risk in the banking book arises from various mismatches in assets and
liabilities in e.g. currencies, maturities and interest rates. Market risk in the trading book and in the banking book is managed separately.

Market risk allowance is set by the Board in the Bank's risk appetite and limit frameworks are in place for each trading desk. The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the Bank's overall market risk. Risk Management is responsible for measuring and
monitoring market risk exposure, and reporting the exposure, usage and limit breaches.

The Group aims to manage and limit market exposures and imbalances between assets and liabilities in accordance with its risk appetite
and strategic goals for net profit.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in market rates adversely affect net interest income and fair value of interest-
bearing instruments on the Group's balance sheet. The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk due to mismatches in the fixing
of interest rates between assets and liabilities, resulting in a repricing risk for the Group. The Group also faces interest basis risk between
interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities due to different types of floating-rate indices in different currencies.

The Group's interest rate risk for foreign currencies is limited as foreign denominated assets predominantly have short fixing periods and
the Group generally applies cash flow hedging for its foreign denominated fixed rate borrowings. For domestic rates, longer fixing periods
are more common. The sale of the Arion Bank Mortgage Institutional Fund mortgage portfolio, executed in October 2019, with resulting full
prepayment of the remaining matched structural covered bonds issuance, significantly shortens the interest fixing profile of the Bank for
indexed rates.

Due to favorable refinancing spreads, prepayments and/or refinancing of loans have been considerable over the past few years, resulting in
reduced average duration of fixed rates for the Bank's assets. Prepayment risk is mitigated by prepayment fees and the Group's own
prepayment options. The Group's prepayment of structured covered bonds is a reaction to mortgage prepayments and mortgage
refinancing. Decreasing domestic interest rates furthermore put pressure on the Group's net interest income as a result of tighter margins
for deposit funding.

Interest rate risk in the banking book

The following table shows the Group's interest-bearing assets and liabilities by interest fixing periods. The figures for loans to customers
and borrowings are shown on a fair value basis, see Note 24, and are therefore different from the amounts shown in these Consolidated
Financial Statements. The fair value reflects the likelihood of prepayment. Defaulted loans are presented at book value, which is based on
the value of the underlying collateral, and are therefore assumed to be independent of interest adjustment periods and placed in the 'Up to
3 months' category. The assets and liabilities of Valitor holding hf. are not included in the figures as they are classified as held for sale.

2019 Upto3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10
Assets months months years years years Total
Balances with Central Bank ...........ccccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee, 91,511 - - - - 91,511
Loans to credit iNStItUtIONS ........cooeeeieie e 17,947 - - - - 17,947
LOANS t0 CUSTOMEIS ....ccevviiieeieieeiice et e e e 497,936 84,260 148,015 9,076 38,033 777,320
Financial iINStrUMENES .........covvvviieeiieeeeeice e 24,470 9,625 9,743 1,150 3,925 48,913
ASSEES ..ttt e e e e e aaaee 631,864 93,885 157,758 10,226 41,958 935,691
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ............cccccoeevvviunnnnns 5,984 - - - - 5,984
DEPOSIES ettt 449,627 30,875 9,826 1,474 1,114 492,916
BOITOWINGS .eeiiieiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e 35,359 5,668 174,814 89,264 11,484 316,589
SUbOrdinated [0ANS .......coivieiiiiieeiieee e 13,975 - - 6,202 - 20,177
LIADilItIES ooeeeieee e 504,945 36,543 184,640 96,940 12,598 835,666
Derivatives and other off-balance sheet items (net position) ....... (102,295) 25 104,180 869 - 2,779
NEet INtEreSt gap ...cvvvvvviiiiiiiiee e 24,624 57,367 77,298 (85,845) 29,360 102,804
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43. Market risk, continued

2018 Upto3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10

Assets months months years years years Total
Balances with Central Bank ... 78,081 - - - - 78,081
Loans to credit INSHIULIONS ...........vveiiiiiiiiiiii e 56,322 - - - - 56,322
LOANS 10 CUSTOMENS ...eveeiiiieiiiieeiiiieesiie e siee e e e sieeeeneeeennaeeennaeas 498,065 88,553 148,853 7,794 93,888 837,153
Financial instruments 9,543 10,941 30,847 664 2,015 54,010
ASSELES ..t 642,011 99,494 179,700 8,458 95,903 1,025,566
Liabilities

Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ............ccccceeeevvvnnnnnnn. 9,204 - - - - 9,204
DEPOSIES .eevviteiitie ettt 430,260 20,277 13,156 1,383 991 466,067
Borrowings ......... 37,497 33,242 190,111 44,425 121,115 426,390
SUbOrdinated [0ANS ..........uvuveeiriiiiiiiiiireieeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e eaaaaees 6,532 - - - - 6,532
LI@DITITIES ©vvieiiieeciii et 483,493 53,519 203,267 45,808 122,106 908,193
Derivatives and other off-balance sheet items (net position) ....... (185,255) 40,259 150,397 (2,484) - 2,917
NEt INLErESt GAP vvveiviieiiiie et et eaee e (26,737) 86,234 126,830 (39,834) (26,203) 120,290

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk in the banking book

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group's net present value (NPV) of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and variation of
annual net interest income (NII), due to changes in interest rates by currencies. The variation is calculated on the basis of simultaneous
parallel shifts upwards or downwards of yield curves. The choice of shifts is not an estimate of risk likelihood. Behavioral maturities are
taken into account in the NPV calculations, including prepayment likelihood and expected behavior of non-maturing deposits. The change
to NIl is however primarily based on contractual interest rate adjustments where it is simplistically assumed that all rates are equally
sensitive to the presumed change in market rates. Behavioral maturity assumptions are however applied for non-maturing deposits and a
zero percentage floor is applied to krona deposit interest rates

2019 2018

NPV change -100 bps  +100 bps -100 bps  +100 bps
ISK, CPI iNEX-INKEU ......evveeei e (3,198) 2,651 (4,544) 4,872
ISK, NON iNeX-NNKEA ........coiiiiiiiiiie e (135) 210 624 (139)
Foreign currencies 365 (392) 700 (708)
NIl change

ISK, CPI index-linked (751) 719 (828) 828
ISK, Non index-linked (1,078) 434 (90) 90
FOF@IGN CUIMTEINCIES ...ttt 200 (200) 232 (232)

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk in the trading book

The following table shows the interest sensitivity of the Group's net positions in the trading book by currencies. Sensitivity is quantified as
the net change in value when assuming a simultaneous parallel shift upwards and downwards of all yield curves by 100 basis points. The
sensitivity does not relate to variation of annual net interest income and is not an estimate of risk. The calculations are based on duration
and convexity in this table.

2019 2018
Currency -100 bps  +100 bps -100 bps  +100 bps
ISK, CPIINAEX-INKEA ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiieic e 83 (74) 123 (111)
ISK, NON INAEX-TNKEA ...ttt 107 (100) 62 (54)
FOT@IGN CUITENCIES ...ttt n e e st e 77) 73 13 (13)
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43. Market risk, continued

Indexation risk

A significant part of the Group's balance sheet is linked to the Icelandic Consumer Price Index (CPI). For index-linked instruments, principal
and interest payments are adjusted proportionally to the CPI. The Group is exposed to indexation risk as indexed assets exceed indexed
liabilities. Financial instruments held for liquidity or market making purposes are assumed to be on demand.

Book value and maturity profile of indexed assets and liabilities

2019 Uptol 1to5 Over 5

Assets, CPI index-linked year years years Total
LOANS 10 CUSIOMIEIS ...ttt et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e eaaaaans 18,945 57,405 207,514 283,864
FINANCIAI INSTIUMEBNES ....ueiiiiiiiiice et e e ettt s e e e e et e e e e e e e aaaeeeeeaeaes 13,647 - - 13,647
ASSEtS, CPIINAEX-TNKEA ....ooiiiiiiiiie e 32,592 57,405 207,514 297,511

Liabilities, CPI index-linked

[T 0oL PSPPSR 75,944 13,381 2,582 91,907
BOMOWINGS ..eveeiie ettt sttt et et e et easee e st e e e e beesteesmeeanbe e teesteeaseeaneeenseenseeneenneeaes 269 11,329 89,644 101,242
Subordinated HADIlItIES ...........vuuriiieiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e - - 4913 4913
(=Y PSSRSO 1,046 210 1,427 2,683
Off-balance Sheet POSItION .........cuii i 1,036 6,675 125 7,836
Liabilities, CPIINAeX-INKEA .........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 78,295 31,595 98,691 208,581
Net on-balance sheet POSItION ..o (44,667) 32,485 108,948 96,766
Net off-balance sheet POSItION ...........coooiiiiiiiii e (1,036) (6,675) (125) (7,836)
CPIBAIANCE ..ttt b ettt et e b e bt s bbbttt e nbe e (45,703) 25,810 108,823 88,930
CPI Balance for prudential consolidation, which excludes insurance operations * ... (52,586) 26,020 109,256 82,689
2018

Assets, CPI index-linked

(o= L g IS (o N o1 £y (0] 1 1 1=T £SO PTPRRN 30,455 79,761 246,605 356,821
FINANCIAI INSTIUMEBNES ...uueiiiiiiiiiee e e e e et s e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaeeeeeaaaes 12,791 - - 12,791
Off-balance ShEEt POSITION .......c.uviiiiieiiiiiiee et e e ee e s 532 (995) - (463)
PN = £ O d T [0 L=y R T T =T I 43,778 78,766 246,605 369,149

Liabilities, CPI index-linked

(DT 0oL PRSPPI 72,766 12,735 2,367 87,868
BOITOWINGS ...ttt ettt et e et e e it e ettt e skttt esh e e e snbe e e anbeeesnneeeenneeeanneeennne 6,482 17,567 147,209 171,258
[ 11 =T PSSO 875 208 1,420 2,503
Off-balance ShEEt POSITION .......c.uviiiiieiiiiiiee et e e ee e s 895 4,999 1,082 6,976
Liabilities, CPlLIindexed INKEA ........ccooiiiiiiieic et eeeeeeeeeeeeeees 81,018 35,509 152,078 268,605
Net on-balance Sheet POSITION .........coiiiiiiii e (36,877) 49,251 95,609 107,983
Net off-balance ShEet POSILION .........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiit et (363) (5,994) (1,082) (7,439)
CPIBAIANCE .ottt ettt ettt (37,240) 43,257 94,527 100,544
CPI Balance for prudential consolidation, which excludes insurance operations * ... (36,662) 42,540 91,304 97,182

* Consolidated situation as per EU Regulation No 575/2013 (CRR)
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Currency risk

e
RS

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to currency risk through a
currency mismatch between assets and liabilities. ISK denominated deposits are a primary source of funding for the Group whereas a
substantial part of the Group's assets consists of foreign currency denominated loans to customers. Net exposures per currency are

monitored centrally in the Bank.

Breakdown of assets and liabilities by currency

2019
Financial assets

Cash and balances with CB ......................

Loans to credit institutions .......................
Loans to CUStOMErS .......cccvvvvvveeeeieeeeeeenn.
Financial instruments .............cc.cccecvvee...
Other financial assets ............c.ccccvvveeenns
Financial assets ........cccococvveeriiiiiieeennnns

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ........
DEPOSIES ..vviieiiiiiiieeeeeiiiiiee e
Financial liabilities at fair value ................
Other financial liabilities .............cccccceeenne
BOITOWINGS ..ooovviviiiiiee it
Subordinated liabilities .............ccccoecvvvennn.
Financial liabilities .........cccccoevvveeiiiinnnns

Net on-balance sheet position .................
Net off-balance sheet position

Net POSItioN ....oovcvviiieiiiiiee e

Non-financial assets

Investment property .........ccccceeeeeviiininnnn,
Investments in associates ..
Intangible assets ..........ccccocveiiiiiiinn.
TAX ASSELS 1vvviiieeiieeieeesiee e e
Assets and disposal groups

held for sale .........cccoevvveeiiiiiiiiee s
Other non financial assets ............c.c........
Non-financial assets ........ccccccoevveeeeennns

Non-financial liabilities and equity
Tax liabilities .......cocooveviiiiiieecec
Liabilities associated with disposal
groups held for sale ..........cccocveenineennns
Other non-financial liabilities ....................
Shareholders' equity ..........ccccovveeeiieennnen.
Non-controlling interest ..........ccccccveveeennne
Non-financial liabilities and equity .......
Intangible assets of Valitor in foreign
operation excluded * ............cccoceevineene
Management reporting
of currency risk ** ...

ISK EUR usD GBP DKK NOK Other Total
94,363 534 286 173 65 53 243 95,717
2,024 5845 4,835 1,355 628 656 2,604 17,947
608,144 116,793 35,113 3,956 4,578 2 5369 773,955
73,482 18,253 22,618 35 2 2,868 148 117,406
5,354 160 3,096 - 22 4 39 8,675
783,367 141,585 65,948 5,519 5,295 3,583 8,403 1,013,700
2,548 1,748 1,675 13 - - - 5,984
424,136 28,730 30,729 2,071 2,504 2,900 1,846 492,916
1,665 561 66 17 - 192 69 2,570
4,178 335 967 201 371 53 303 6,408
147,245 116,712 - - - 32,999 7,789 304,745
5,820 690 - - - 4,183 9,390 20,083
585592 148,776 33,437 2,302 2,875 40,327 19,397 832,706
197,775  (7,191) 32511 3,217 2,420  (36,744)  (10,994)
(2575) 1,522 (36,242)  (4,825)  (4,694) 36,252 10,562
195,200  (5,669) (3731)  (1,608)  (2,274) (492) (432)
7,119 - - - - - - 7,119
852 - - - - - - 852
8,367 - - - - - - 8,367
2 - - - - - - 2
20,632 13,080 1,302 5,637 1,206 307 1,462 43,626
7,963 119 27 56 1 18 5 8,189
44935 13,199 1,329 5,693 1,207 325 1,467 68,155
4,404 - - - - - - 4,404
11,442 8,667 71 2,849 2,597 496 2,509 28,631
26,097 141 46 - 5 - - 26,289
189,644 - - - - - - 189,644
181 - - - - - - 181
231,768 8,808 117 2,849 2,602 496 2,509 249,149
1,534 - - (1,455) (79) - -
9,901  (1,278) (2,519) (219)  (3,748) (663) (1,474)

* Based on an authorization from the Icelandic FSA to exclude Valitor's intangible assets in the currency balance.

** The net position of the currency risk is presented in accordance with IFRS. The management monitors currency risk with more assets and liabilities underlying,
such as tax assets and liabilities and intangible assets, as it is considered to be a more accurate measurement of the Group's currency exposure. The net position,
as seen by the management, is the position used for managing the currency imbalance.
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2018
Financial assets

Cash and balances with CB ...
Loans to credit institutions .......................
Loans to CUStOMErS .......cccveeveveeeiiieeeieeenn
Financial instruments ...
Other financial assets ..........cccccoccvvvveeennne

Financial assets ........cccccecvvveeeiiiiiiieeennns

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ........
Deposits
Financial liabilities at fair value ................
Other financial liabilities .............ccccceeeen.
BOMMOWINGS ..o
Subordinated liabilities ............c.ccocceernee.
Financial liabilities ........cccccoevviiiiiiniinnns

Net on-balance sheet position .................
Net off-balance sheet position .................

Net POSItion .......cceeveeriiiiiceceeee

Non-financial assets

Investment property .......ccccccveeeviniiveennnn.
Investments in associates .............cc.......
Intangible assets ........cccccvevveiiiiiiiiinennns
TAX ASSELS ..evvvvvvrriririiiriiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees
Assets and disposal groups

held for sale ........ccocoveveiiiiiiiiiieiies
Other non financial assets ..

Non-financial assets ............cceevvvveeeennns

Non-financial liabilities and equity
Tax liabilities .......cocoeveviieiiieeee
Liabilities associated with disposal
groups held for sale ............ccoceeieennne
Other non-financial liabilities ....................
Shareholders' equity .....
Non-controlling interest
Non-financial assets .........cccccocvvveeeennns
Management reporting
of currency risk * ......ccccoovviiiieiiinens

&
ISK EUR usD GBP DKK NOK Other Total
81,245 833 222 168 179 59 433 83,139
3,158 16,418 14,055 1,484 1,101 15722 4,294 56,322
680,413 103,775 33,473 3,290 6,912 692 5271 833,826
53,852 30,915 26,930 771 189 1,649 251 114,557
5,381 318 54 - 48 4 2 5,807
824,049 152,259 74,734 5,713 8519 18,126 10,251 1,093,651
7,144 945 1,109 4 - 1 1 9,204
398,789 35,773 22,615 2,110 1,632 1,954 3,194 466,067
1,281 494 383 54 - 39 69 2,320
3,599 353 1,458 148 333 41 198 6,130
218,049 165,583 - - - 22,027 12,123 417,782
- - - - - - 6,532 6,532
628,862 203,148 25,565 2,316 1,965 24,062 22,117 908,035
195,187 (50,889) 49,169 3,397 6,554 (5.936)  (11,866)
5071 44,881  (48,840)  (7,403)  (10,536) 5,963 10,864
200,258  (6,008) 329 (4,006)  (3,982) 27 (1,002)
7,092 - - - - - - 7,092
810 8 - - - - - 818
6,397 - - - - - - 6,397
90 - - - - - - 90
23,959 9,849 1,010 7,603 4,003 532 1,628 48,584
7,536 107 19 8 2 23 - 7,695
45884 9,964 1,029 7,611 4,005 555 1,628 70,676
5,119 - - - - - - 5,119
19,843 1,254 793 3,378 577 400 92 26,337
23,883 70 20 - 1 - 3 23,977
200,729 - - - - - - 200,729
130 - - - - - - 130
249704 1,324 813 3,378 578 400 95 256,202
(3562) 2,632 545 227 (555) 182 531

* The net position of the currency risk is presented in accordance with IFRS. The management monitors currency risk with more assets and liabilities underlying,
such as tax assets and liabilities and intangible assets, as it is considered to be a more accurate measurement of the Group's currency exposure. The net position,
as seen by the management, is the position used for managing the currency imbalance.
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43. Market risk, continued

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at the end of the period. The analysis calculates the
effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the ISK, with all other variables held constant, on the Consolidated
Interim Income Statement (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). A negative amount in the
table reflects a potential net reduction in the Consolidated Interim Income Statement or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net
potential increase. An equivalent decrease in each of the below currencies against the ISK would have resulted in an equivalent but
opposite impact (+10% denotes a depreciation of the I1SK).

2019 2018
Currency -10% +10% -10% +10%
EUR .. 128 (128) (263) 263
252 (252) (55) 55
22 (22) (23) 23
375 (375) 56 (56)
66 (66) (18) 18
147 (147) (53) 53

Equity risk

Equity risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as the result of changes in the level of equity indices and individual stocks.
For information on assets seized and held for sale and equity exposures, see Notes 30 and 23 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis for equity risk

The analysis below calculates the effect of a reasonable possible movement in equity prices that affect the Consolidated Financial
Statements. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the Consolidated Income Statement or equity, while a
positive amount reflects a potential net increase. Investments in associates are excluded. The result of value-at-risk calculations for the
trading book are shown in the Group's Pillar 3 Disclosures.

2019 2018
Equity -10% +10% -10% +10%
Trading DOOK - lISTEA ........ooiiiiee e (301) 301 (231) 231
Banking DOOK - lISTEA .........ccuiiiioieee e (486) 486 (487) 487
Banking book - UNNSE ...........ociiiiiiii s (296) 296 (617) 617

Derivatives

Derivatives are a part of the Group's customer product offering. The types of derivatives currently offered are forward contracts, swaps and
options. Eligible underlying market factors are interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities and commodities. Exposure limits, hedging
requirements and collateral requirements are determined in accordance with the Group's risk appetite and monitored by Risk Management
on a daily basis. The Group also uses derivatives to hedge market risk on its balance sheet. Note 24 provides a breakdown of the Group's
derivative positions by type.
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group, though solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its
liabilities when they fall due, or can secure them only at excessive cost. Liquidity risk arises from the inability to manage unplanned
decreases or changes in funding sources.

A primary source of funding for the Group is from deposits from individuals, businesses and financial undertakings. The Group's liquidity
risk stems from the fact that the maturity of loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, of which 71% is on-demand.

Liquidity risk is one of the Group's most significant risk factors and a great deal of emphasis is placed on managing it. The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing liquidity and funding risk within the risk appetite set by the Board of Directors. The
Bank's Treasury manages liquidity positions on a day-to-day basis. Risk Management measures, monitors and reports the Bank's liquidity
and funding risk on a daily basis.

The Group's strategy in relation to liquidity risk is to actively manage its liquidity positions and risks to meet payment and settlement
obligations on a timely basis under both normal and stressed conditions. The Group seeks to maintain a stable funding profile which
supports its business strategy and liquidity profile, ensuring that the Group can withstand periods of market turbulence, without reliance on
volatile funding or external support.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The maturity analysis is based on contractual cash flows. The amounts are not discounted and include future interest payments, but CPI-
linked amounts do not include accrued indexation due to future inflation. The total amount for each item is higher than the corresponding
amount on the Bank's balance sheet, since the amounts on the balance sheet are either at amortized cost and do not contain future interest
payments, or at fair value where future cash flows have been discounted.

Contractual cash flows differ in many ways from expected cash flows. The difference is most significant for deposits on the liability side and
bonds on the asset side. Deposits are always assumed to be withdrawn at the earliest possible date, despite the fact that a large part of the
deposit base is considered to be stable funding where behavioral maturity considerably exceeds contractual maturity. Furthermore,
although contractual cash flows are presented for bonds held by the Bank, a large portion of the bonds are a part of the Bank's liquidity
buffer and are considered to be highly liquid and can be sold and/or pledged to the Central Bank of Iceland and thus converted into cash at
very short notice.

Contractual cash flow of assets and liabilities

2019 On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 With no Book
Financial assets demand  months months years years maturity Total value

Cash and balances with CB 6,352 84,434 5,059 - - - 95,845 95,717
Loans to credit institutions ....................... 15,652 2,295 - - - - 17,947 17,947
Loans to CUStOMErS .......cccvveeveveeeriieeeieenn, 6,191 124,040 105,974 299,695 578,647 - 1,114,547 773,955
Financial instruments ..........ccccccveeviiveennns 16,381 28,346 11,451 22,612 10,238 34,063 123,091 117,406
Derivatives - assets 1eg ..........cccoeeeriererianns - 69,432 12,020 48,571 357 - 130,380 124,911
Derivatives - liabilities leg . - (66,935) (11,006)  (43,875) (294) (122,110)  (118,295)

16,381 25,849 10,437 17,916 10,175 34,063 114,821 110,790

Other financial instruments ... .
Other financial assets .........cooeovvvvvvieeeens 577 4,618 2,656 824 - - 8,675 8,675
Financial assets ..........cccccceeeiiiin, 45,153 243,733 125,140 323,131 588,885 34,063 1,360,105 1,013,700
Financial liabilities
Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ......... 5,997 - 26 - - - 6,023 5,984
DEPOSIES .ovevvieeiiiieeiiie e 350,451 78,459 42,423 14,318 9,279 - 494,930 492,916
Financial liabilities at fair value ................ - 1,506 1,318 1,812 44 - 4,680 2,570
Derivatives - assets 189 .........c.cocovvevrrrnnn. - (4833YH) (6,983) (8,218) (1,360) - (64,896) (63,456)
Derivatives - liabilities leg . - 49,326 8,301 10,030 1,404 - 69,061 65,510
Short position bonds and derivatives .......... - 408 - - - - 408 409
Short position securities used
for economic hedging .........ccccoceeveviennennn. - 107 - - - - 107 107
Other financial liabilities ............ccccceeeeees 141 3,856 119 559 1,733 - 6,408 6,408
BOITOWINGS ..eveeeiiieeeee e - 7,416 32,028 202,725 101,862 - 344,031 304,745
Subordinated liabilities ............cccccvvveeeenn. - 479 566 3,316 23,908 - 28,269 20,083
Financial liabilities ........cccccoeviiiiiiiiiinnns 356,589 91,716 76,480 222,730 136,826 - 884,341 832,706
Net position for assets and liab. ........... (311,436) 152,017 48,660 100,401 452,059 34,063 475,764 180,994
Off-balance sheet items
Financial guarantees ............ccceeevvevviinnnes 554 2,617 1,202 3,560 7,164 - 15,097 15,097
Unused overdraft ...........ccoeeeeeeeiieiiiiiieenes - 44,923 - - - - 44,923 44,923
Undrawn loan commitments .................... - 43,406 9,455 1,240 - - 54,101 54,101
Off-balance sheet items .........cccccoeeenns 554 90,946 10,657 4,800 7,164 - 114,121 114,121
Net contractual cash flow ..................... (311,990) 61,071 38,003 95,601 444,895 34,063 361,643 66,873
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk, continued

2018 On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 With no Book
Financial assets demand months months years years maturity Total value
Cash and balances with CB ..................... - 77,854 5,373 - - - 83,227 83,139
Loans to credit institutions ....................... 34,635 20,714 585 403 - - 56,337 56,322
Loans to customers ... 2,937 116,527 126,990 332,488 655,349 - 1,234,291 833,826
Financial instruments 17,081 7,375 15,674 44,436 8,768 26,856 120,190 114,557

Derivatives - assets 1eg ..........cccoocevvvenicnnens - 41,746 23,340 45,303 3,184 - 113,573 105,449

Derivatives - liabilities leg . . - (41,110) (21,143)  (39,681) (3,039) - (104,973) (99,209)

Other financial instruments ..........c.ccocevenns 17,081 6,739 13,477 38,814 8,623 26,856 111,590 108,317
Other financial assets ............cccccvveeeeeennns 393 1,921 2,592 896 5 - 5,807 5,807

Financial assets 55,046 224,391 151,214 378,223 664,122 26,856 1,499,852 1,093,651

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ......... 9,230 - 27 - - - 9,257 9,204
DEPOSIES ..vvvveeiiiiiiiiiie et 335,644 83,059 32,413 13,316 2,527 - 466,959 466,067
Financial liabilities at fair value ................ - 1,133 1,036 3,256 270 - 5,695 2,320
Derivatives - assets l1eg ........cccovevveeriiennens - (22,574) (2,823) (19,861) (6,733) - (51,991) (49,578)
Derivatives - liabilities leg .............cc.cocvnee - 23,182 3,859 23,117 7,003 - 57,161 51,374
Short position bonds and derivatives .......... - 487 - - - - 487 487
Short position securities used
for economic hedging .........cccccevvenienen. - 36 - - - - 36 37
Other financial liabilities ............cccoeeeeeenis 45 3,680 1,652 753 - - 6,130 6,130
BOITOWINGS ...eeeeeiiiiiiieeeeiiiiiee e - 19,568 42,677 248,808 198,821 - 509,874 417,782
Subordinated liabilities ................cccevvvnnnen. - 44 146 782 7,509 - 8,481 6,532
Financial liabilities ...........cccoccvveieiiiinnns 344,919 107,484 77,951 266,915 209,127 - 1,006,396 908,035
Net position for assets and liab. ........... (289,873) 116,907 73,263 111,308 454,995 26,856 493,456 185,616
Off-balance sheet items
Financial guarantees ............ccceceveeeiiinnns 4,130 1,712 4,288 3,204 1,790 - 15,124 15,124
Unused overdraft ..........cccceeeeeeeieiiiiiiieeenens - 48,320 - - - - 48,320 48,320
Undrawn loan commitments .................... 95 53,531 21,333 4,171 - - 79,130 79,130
Off-balance sheet items .........ccccccuvnneee. 4,225 103,563 25,621 7,375 1,790 - 142,574 142,574
Net contractual cash flow ..................... (294,098) 13,344 47,642 103,933 453,205 26,856 350,882 43,042

Net Stable Funding Ratio

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) measures the amount of available stable funding (ASF) at the Group against the required stable
funding (RSF) as per the definition of the Central Bank of Iceland rules No. 1032/2014. In general, RSF is determined by applying different
weights to different asset classes depending on the level of liquidity. ASF however is calculated by applying weights to the Group's liabilities
depending on maturity and/or stickiness. The NSFR for foreign currency shall exceed 100%.

At year-end the NSFR calculations are based on figures solely for the Bank as following the sale of Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional
Investor Fund (ABMIIF) the Bank's subsidiaries have negligible impact on the funding ratio. At year-end calculations of the NSFR are based
on consolidated figures for the Bank and ABMIIF. When calculating the ratio for foreign currencies, a negative foreign currency balance is
subtracted from the numerator and a positive balance is subtracted from the denominator. The foreign currency balance used is different
from that of this Consolidated Financial Statement due to the sub-consolidation applied.

Foreign
2019 ISK currency Total
Available stable FUNAING ........iiiiii e e e 640,719 182,728 823,447
Required stable fFUNAING ........oooiiiiii e e e e 566,797 141,533 708,330
FOreign CUrrenCy DAIANCE ..........ooiiiiiiiieee e (4,122)
Net stable funding ratio ... 113% 126% 116%
2018
Available stable FUNAING .......oviiiii e et 681,074 215,434 896,508

Required stable funding .. 615,717 134,082 749,799

FOreign CUIreNCY DAIANCE ........uviiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e st e e e s st e e e e s snnnnees (7,102)
Net Stable fFUNAING FALIO ..oooeiiiieie e 111% 155% 120%
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk, continued

Liquidity coverage ratio

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is one of the standards introduced in the Basel Il Accord. The LCR is the result of a stress test that is
designed to ensure that banks have the necessary assets on hand to withstand short-term liquidity disruptions. More precisely, LCR
represents the balance between highly liquid assets and the expected net cash outflow of the Group in the next 30 days under stressed
conditions.

To qualify as highly liquid assets under the LCR rules, assets must be non-pledged, liquid and easily priced on the market, traded on an
active market and not issued by the Group or related entities.

The Bank complies with the Central Bank of Iceland's liquidity rules No. 266/2017, which effectively adopt the liquidity rules of the EU
Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR). The Bank is required to maintain a 100% minimum LCR ratio for both the aggregate position in all
foreign currencies and all currencies.

The following table shows the breakdown for the Group's LCR calculations broken down by currencies. All amounts are weighted by their
respective LCR weights. For year-end the calculations are based on consolidated figures for the Bank and Valitor Holding hf., whereas at
year-end the consolidation also includes the Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional Investor Fund, which was liquidated in 2019.

Foreign

2019 ISK currency Total
LIQUID BSSELES TEVEI 1 * ...ttt ettt et e et e e eb e e s et e e s nb e e et e e et eeenneee s 107,918 28,973 136,891
LiQUI @SSEES IOVEI 2 ...t 291 - 291
LEQUIT @SSBES ...veiutietiiiiteit etttk et a bbbtk he e e he e e et b e ekt e e b bt ea bt e bt e b e et e nresareenne s 108,209 28,973 137,182
D T=T 0L £ USSP 89,609 23,655 113,264
2T o T o L PSSP RPPRROY 2,081 10 2,091
Other Cash OUHIOWS .......ooeveiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 7,479 11,082 15,610
[OF= 1S A I e U1 8 i o1 2T 99,169 34,747 130,965
Short-term deposits with other Danks ** ... ... - 18,185 18,185
(@1 g T o= Y] a1 ][0 1Y 30,743 9,201 39,944
CASH INTIOWS ..ttt he et b e bt e sb et bt et et e et e e e naeeeane s 30,743 27,386 58,129
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) ** ... e 158% 334% 188%
2018

LiQUI @SSEES IEVEI L * ittt e e et e e e ettt e e e s s b bbb et ee e e snsb b b e e e e e annbeeeeeeans 75,340 48,806 124,146
LiQUIA @SSEES TEVEI 2 ...ttt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e e bbbt e e e e e e bbb e e e e e eanes - - -
[ Lo [0 = Y= £ PP RRPRROY 75,340 48,806 124,146
(D170 1o | PP TP PP OUPR VR URPPON 91,008 33,983 124,991
120 (011 1T [P PP RTPPPPPPN 4,413 109 4,522
Other Cash OULFIOWS ... es 9,229 10,347 19,576
(O£ 1] o e UL 81 1o 1VLVZ= 104,650 44,439 149,089
Short-term deposits with 0ther Danks ** ... . ..o 4,011 56,527 60,538
Other CaSh INFIOWS ...t e et et nebe e e s e 10,719 2,314 13,033
[ 1S T T 031 1011 14,730 58,841 73,571
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) ™ ... ittt 84% 439% 164%

* Level 1 assets include the Group's cash and balances with the Central Bank, domestic bonds eligible as collateral at the Central Bank and foreign government
bonds which receive 100% weight. Under Rules No. 266/2017 the Group's foreign covered bonds also classify as Level 1 assets and receive 93% weight.

** Short-term deposits with other banks are defined as cash inflows in LCR calculations.

** | CR is defined as: LCR = Weighted liquid assets / (weighted cash outflows - weighted cash inflows) where weighted cash inflows are capped at 75% of
weighted cash outflows.
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Composition of liquid assets
The following table shows the composition of the Group's liquidity buffer.
2019 ISK UsD EUR Other Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........ccooooiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiee e 103,726 286 534 534 105,080
Short-term deposits in other Banks ..o - 5,410 5,771 7,004 18,185
Domestic bonds eligible as collateral at the Central Bank ... . 11,878 - - - 11,878
Foreign government DONAS ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e - 13,930 12,234 1,373 27,537
LiQUITILY FESEIVE iuiiiiiiiie e ciiee ettt ettt e saae e e e s raeesnaeeennes 115,604 19,626 18,539 8,911 162,680
2018
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiineeeeeeviineeeees 88,687 222 833 838 90,580
Short-term deposits in other banks ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 4,012 14,141 16,265 26,120 60,538
Domestic bonds eligible as collateral at the Central Bank .... . 4,844 - - - 4,844
Foreign government DONAS .........cuviiiiiiiiiiiie e - 21,152 21,961 757 43,870
Covered bonds with a minimum rating of AA- ... - - 1,340 1,625 2,965

Liquidity reserve 97,543 35,515 40,399 29,340 202,797

LCR deposit categorization

As per the LCR methodology, the Group's deposit base is split into different categories depending on customer type. A second
categorization is used where term deposits refer to deposits with residual maturity greater than 30 days. Deposits that can be withdrawn
within 30 days are marked stable if the customer has a business relationship with the Group and the amount is covered by the Deposit
Insurance Scheme. Other deposit funds are considered less stable. A weight is attributed to each category, representing the expected
outflow under stressed conditions, i.e. the level of stickiness.

The table below shows the breakdown of the Group's deposit base according to the LCR categorization, with the associated expected
stressed outflow weights.

LCR categorization - amounts and LCR outflow weights Deposits maturing within 30 days
Less Term Total
2019 Stable Weight (%) Stable Weight (%)  deposits* deposits
INAIVIAUAIS ..ot 130,942 10% 52,735 5% 74,580 258,257
Small and medium enterprises . 50,339 10% 4,998 5% 6,156 61,493
COIPOFALIONS ...vviiieeiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e s eebaeeee s 56,694 40% 829 20% 7,170 64,693
Sovereigns, central banks and PSE ............ccccccieiiiiiiiieee s 13,501 40% - - 716 14,217
PenSion fUNAS ........oovviiiiiiiieee e 34,024 100% - - 16,431 50,455
20,857 100% - - 27,051 47,908
1,877 100% - - - 1,877
308,234 58,562 132,104 498,900
2018
INAIVIAUAIS ..ot 126,196 11% 51,232 5% 69,000 246,428
Small and medium enterpriSes ..........cccvveeeerniirieeeenniieee s 48,961 11% 4,836 5% 5,417 59,214
COIPOFALIONS ...vveieeieiiiiie ettt e 48,033 40% 852 20% 7,605 56,490
Sovereigns, central banks and PSE ...........cccoceeeiiiiiiiieeinniines 14,052 40% - - 5,067 19,119
PeNSION fUNAS ....ouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e aaaees 45,671 100% - - 10,038 55,709
Domestic financial entities ............ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiis 22,494 100% - - 12,630 35,124
Foreign financial entities ...........c.coeeiriiiiiieiii e 3,187 100% - - - 3,187
TOTAD et 308,594 56,920 109,757 475,271
* Here term deposits refer to deposits with maturities greater than 30 days.
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45. Capital management

Capital adequacy

The focus of capital management at the Group is to normalize the capital structure in the medium term and consequently maintain the
Group's capitalization comfortably above the regulatory requirement, including capital buffers and Pillar 2 requirements.

The Group's capital ratios are calculated in accordance with the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002 and Regulation No.
233/2017 on prudential requirements. Iceland has adopted the EU Capital Requirements Directive and Regulation (CRD IV / CRR), but has
temporarily excluded Article 501 on capital requirements relief for small and medium enterprises. On 1 January 2020, CRR was however
incorporated into the EEA Agreement, introducing the SME supporting factor for capital adequacy for Icelandic institutions. The Group's
capital ratio for 1 January 2020 is shown below. The Group applies the standardized approach to calculate capital requirements for credit
risk, credit valuation adjustment, market risk and operational risk.

The Group's consolidated situation as stipulated in CRR is the Group's accounting consolidation excluding insurance subsidiaries. The
capital position and solvency requirements of Vordur tryggingar hf. should be viewed independently from capital adequacy for the Group's
consolidated situation.

Valitor Holding hf. has been classified as held for sale in these Consolidated Financial Statements. This does not affect the Group's capital
adequacy calculations. For disclosure, assuming a cash sale of the subsidiary at book value, the Group's capital adequacy ratio would
increase from 24.0% to 25.3%. The sale of Valitor would result in reduction in the Group's regulatory own funds adjustments, with positive
effect on capital adequacy.

Own funds 2019 2018
LI 2= L =T (U1 PP R T RPPPRRRN 189,825 200,859
Deductions related to the consolidated SIUALION ............eiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e st e e e s be e e e e e ane (10,159) (8,986)
Non-controlling interest not eligible for inclusion in CETL CaPital .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (181) (130)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjusStments ...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiic i 179,485 191,743
[Lale= gL 1o CoI= EE Y= PP TP PPP TP (10,604) (12,152)
LI = 3T T PP P PP TOTPPPPPRTOIR (296) (191)
Indirect holdings Of OWN CETL INSTIUMENTS ......uviiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e s st e e e s e bbb e e e s aesbbereeeessnbbb e e e e e s s nnbbaeeeeeannnes - (190)
(7= 1] T { [0V g T=To [o =T OO PR PPPPRRPPP (1,616) (1,221)
AdditioNal Value AQJUSTMENES ....coiiiiiiiiiiei ittt e et e e e s sttt e e e s bbbt e e e e e abeeeeeeaesbbbeeeeesabbbbeeaeesannbrees (125) (126)
FOreseeable GIVIAENG * ........iiiiiiie ittt e e e e sttt e e e ettt e e e e e st bbbt e e e s san bbbt e e e e e ansbbeeeesannnnbeeeeesannbaes (14,153) (9,069)
Common equity Tier 1 capital .... 152,691 168,794
Non-controlling interest not eligible for inclusion in CET1 capital .. 181 130
BT o7 T oY - L PSPPSR 152,872 168,924
Y] o Jo T (o [T F= 1 (=To W F= o1 [ =TT 20,083 6,532
BT A o7 oY1 - L USRS PSR 20,083 6,532
Lo ) 2= U X1V 0 10 (0T [ TR 172,955 175,456

Risk-weighted assets
(@1 =Y [ ] S o T T PP 561,602 639,788

Credit risk, securities and other . 49,163 50,112

COUNLEIPANTY CrEAIL FISK ....iiiiiieiiiiiii ettt e ettt e e e sttt e e e e s st e e e e e e e s bbbt e eeeeanbbb b et e e s s anbbb e e e e e e snbbeeeeeaan 3,347 4,405
Market risk due to CUrrenCY IMDAIANCE .........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e s et e e e e e e s bbbt eeeesannbbbeeaeesansnaees 10,070 4,280
LY E= T G A 1] o 11 T (RN 10,609 8,928
Credit Valuation @dJUSTMENT ........couiiiiiii ittt b et e e bt e et e e et e et e e e et bt e e ae bt e e sebeeenaneeens 1,477 2,228
[ o1=T = o o Fo L (] T PO P TS O OO PP O P PP PUPPPPPPPOE 83,487 86,957
TOtAl FISK-WEIGNTEU @SSELS .. ..eeeiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e st e e e et et e e e e e e e e e e sbbe et e e e s aab e e e e e e nnaes 719,755 796,698

Capital ratios

CET1 ratio 21.2% 21.2%
Tier 1 ratio 21.2% 21.2%
(O o1 e= I Lo (=T o [UF= Ty o (T O OO P U UP PP PPPPRPPRPROS 24.0% 22.0%
Capital ratio 1.1.2020 with application of SME supporting factor

Total risk weighted assets 1.1.2020 707,817

Capital adeqUuAaCy ratio 1.1.2020 ........ccoiuuteiiurieiitiie ettt e et et e et e e sa et sa bt e e aa b e e et e e e et et e e e e et ne et e s 24.4%

* On 31 December 2019, the foreseeable dividend is the aggregation of the Bank's own shares buy-back and dividend distribution. The on-going program of own
shares buy-back was approved by the Board and the FSA in 2019 and in January 2020. The dividend distribution is proposed by the Board of Directors and is
adjusted for the Bank's own shares. On 31 December 2018, the foreseeable dividend corresponds to the ISK 10 billion dividend payment proposed by the Board of
Directors on 13 February 2019 adjusted for the Bank's 9.31% own shares.
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45. Capital management, continued

Capital ratios of the parent company 2019 2018
(08 = I = o TP TP U TP UOTOP PRI 23.5% 23.5%
LI L = 1L OO SO P PRSP PR PPRT PP 23.5% 23.5%
(0= Vo1 2= 1 I To [=To [ F= oy Y = Li[o J PP P PR PPPPPRTN 26.2% 24.3%

The following table outlines the implementation of the capital buffer requirements in accordance with the Icelandic Financial Undertakings
Act No. 161/2002, as prescribed by the Financial Stability Council (FSC) and approved by the FSA.

Capital buffer requirement, % of RWA 31.12.2019  1.2.2020
Capital CONSEIVALION DUFET ... e et e e e s bbbttt e e s st b b et e e e e e bbb eeeesasbbneeaeeans 2.50% 2.50%
Capital buffer for systematically important iINSHIULIONS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2.00% 2.00%
Systemic risk buffer * 3.00% 3.00%
Countercyclical capital buffer * .. 1.75% 2.00%
Combined capital buffer requirement 9.25% 9.50%

The Bank carries out an ongoing process, the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), with the aim to ensure that the
Group has in place sufficient risk management processes and systems to identify, manage and measure the Group's total risk exposure.
The ICAAP is aimed at identifying and measuring the Group's risk across all risk types and ensure that the Group has sufficient capital in
accordance with its risk profile. The FSA supervises the Group, receives the Group's internal estimation on the capital adequacy and sets
capital requirements for the Group as a whole following the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP). The Group's own funds
exceeds the FSA's SREP requirements.

The Bank's Pillar 2R capital add-on, which is the result of the ICAAP/SREP, may comprise 56.25% CET1 capital, 18.75% AT1 capital and
25% Tier 2 capital.

Capital requirement, % of RWA, current

2019 CET1 Tier 1 Total
Pillar 1 capital requirement ..... 4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
Pillar 2R capital reqUIrEMENT ** ... ... ..o 1.7% 2.3% 3.1%
Combined buffer reqUIFEMENT * ..o 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%
Regulatory capital FEQUITEMENT .......ccuiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e 15.2% 17.3% 20.1%
AVAIIADIE CAPITAL ..o e 21.2% 21.2% 24.0%
Capital requirement, % of RWA, 1.2.2020

Pillar 1 capital FeQUITEIMENT ...........ooiiiiieiie it 4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
Pillar 2R capital requirement ** 1.7% 2.3% 3.1%
Combined buffer requirement * .... 9.2% 9.2% 9.2%
Regulatory capital FEQUITEMIENT . ......iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e st b e e e e s nbbbeeeeeeannaneeeas 15.5% 17.6% 20.3%
AVAIIADIE CAPITAL ..o e e 21.2% 21.2% 24.0%

* The effective countercyclical capital buffer is determined by calculating the weighted average of the corresponding buffer levels of each country, the weights being
the total risk weighted exposures for credit risk against counterparties residing in those countries. The systemic risk buffer only applies to domestic exposures and is
calculated using the same weighting method.

** The SREP result based on the Group's Financial Statement at 31.12.2018. The Pillar 2 requirement is 3.1% of risk-weighted assets based on the Group's
prudential consolidation under CRR, which excludes Vérdur tryggingar hf.
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45. Capital management, continued

Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio is seen as a complementary measure to the risk-based capital ratios. The ratio is calculated on the basis of the Group's
consolidated situation as per the CRR, which excludes the Group's insurance subsidiaries. The minimum leverage ratio requirement is 3%
as stated in the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002.

2019 2018
ON-DAIANCE SNHEEL EXPOSUIES ...ttt ettt ettt e et e kbt e ettt e e e e e ebeeesbeeesbneeanee 1,022,521 1,106,368
DEIIVALIVE EXPOSUIES ....ceueiieiiieesiteee ittt e e bt e e it e e st e e eaae e e e ae e e e kbt e e ob bt e e 1h bt e e oa b et e eat et e ea b e e e ea bt e e aa bt e e anb et e e kbt e e bt e e e nnteeennee s 10,217 8,239
Securities finanCiNg traNSACHION EXPOSUIES ......c.uuiiiiiiieiitiie ettt ettt et s et e e ts e e e ae e e st e e sbeeesnbaeeennne 577 8,194
Off-balance sheet exposures . . 52,299 68,316
LI E= U o o 1 UL = TP PP PP PPN 1,085,614 1,191,117
BT R o7= T oY - L USSR 152,872 168,924
YT Vo [ - o PR PPPRTTP 14.1% 14.2%
Solvency I

According to the Icelandic Insurance Companies Act the solvency capital requirement (SCR) of Vordur Group was I1SK 4,580 million at the
end of the year (31.12.2018: ISK 3,679 million) and calculated solvency of Vérdur Group was ISK 6,610 million (31.12.2018: ISK 5,418
million). The solvency ratio, which is the ratio of calculated solvency to the solvency requirements was 144% at the end of the year
(31.12.2018: 147%).

46. Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damage to the Group's reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes or systems, from human error or external events that affect the Group's image and operational earnings.

Each business unit within the Group is primarily responsible for taking and managing their own operational risk. The operational risk
function is responsible for developing and maintaining tools for identifying, measuring, monitoring and reporting the Group's operational risk.

The Group uses the standardized approach for the calculation of capital requirements for operational risk.
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Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 except for new and amended IFRS adopted by the
European Union, that became effective as of 1 January 2019, see Note 2, and amendments to Icelandic Annual Accounts Act, Financial
undertakings Act and Rules on Accounting for credit institutions.

47. Going concern assumption

The Group's management has made an assessment of the ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Group has the
resources to continue. In making this assessment, management has taken into consideration the risk exposures facing the Group, which
are further described in the Risk Management Disclosures. The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

48. Principles underlying the consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Financial Statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent accounting policies.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, i.e. when control is transferred to the
Group. The Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

— power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
— exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
— the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including (i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee, (ii) rights arising from
other contractual arrangements and (i) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights. The Group re-assesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

— the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

— the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; less

— if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
— the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in administration expense.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and equity not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group; such interests are
presented separately in the Income Statement and are included in equity in the Statement of Financial Position, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Group.

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either:
— at fair value; or
— at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
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48. Principles underlying the consolidation, continued

Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other
components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup balances, income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements. This also applies to subsidiaries classified as disposal groups held for sale.

Funds management

The Group manages and administers assets held in unit trusts and investment vehicles on behalf of investors. The Financial Statements of
these entities are not included in these Consolidated Financial Statements except when the Group controls the entity.

When assessing whether to consolidate investment funds, the Group reviews all facts and circumstances to determine whether the Group,
as fund manager, is acting as agent or principal. The Group is deemed to be a principal, and hence controls and consolidates a fund, when
the Group acts as fund manager and cannot be removed without cause, has variable returns through significant holdings, and is able to
influence the returns of the funds by exercising its power. The Group is defined as agent in all instances.

49. Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group has a significant influence, i.e. the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the associates but not control or joint control over those policies. Significant influence generally exists when the Group
holds 20% or more of the voting power, including potential voting rights, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investments in associates includes intangible assets and
accumulated impairment loss.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.
The Group's investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method.

The Financial Statements include the Group's share of the total recognized income and expenses of associates from the date that
significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its carrying
value of associate, the Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognizing its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognized.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment on investments in associates

After applying the equity method to account for investments in associates, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to its investments in associates. The Group first determines whether there is any objective evidence that an
investment in an associate is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Group then tests the entire carrying amount of the investment for
impairment, by comparing its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, with its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of an investment in an associate is assessed for each associate, unless the associate does not generate
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Group. The excess of the carrying amount
over the recoverable amount is recognized in the Income statement as an impairment loss. Impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through the Income Statement if the reasons for the impairment loss no longer apply.
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50. Foreign currency

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of each of the Group's subsidiaries are measured using the functional currency of
the respective entity.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the Income
Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported at historic cost.

51. Interest

Interest income and expense are recognized in the Income Statement using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or,
where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective interest rate is established on
initial recognition of the financial asset and financial liability and is not revised subsequently.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial
asset or financial liability.

Interest income and expense presented in the Income Statement include Income and expenses of assets and liabilities carried at:

— amortized cost;
— fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL); and
— fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

52. Fee and commission

The Group provides various services to its clients and earns income therefrom, such as income from Corporate Banking, Retail Banking,
Capital Markets, Corporate Finance, Asset Management and Private Banking. Fees earned from services that are provided over a certain
period of time are recognized as the services are provided, i.e. point in time. Fees earned from transaction type services are recognized
when the service has been completed, i.e. point in time. Fees that are performance linked are recognized when the performance criteria are
fulfilled, i.e. point in time.

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability are included in the
measurement of the effective interest rate.

53. Net financial income

Net financial income comprises Dividend income, Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value and Net foreign exchange gain.
i) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.

ii) Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value comprises all realized and unrealized fair value changes, except for interest
(which is included in Interest income and Interest expense) and foreign exchange gain and losses (which are included in Net foreign
exchange gains as described below).

iii) Net foreign exchange gain comprise all foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement of foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities and on translating foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the year or in previous Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net foreign exchange gain also include foreign exchange differences arising on translating non-monetary assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair value in foreign currencies and whose other gain and loss are also recognized in profit or loss.

54. Net insurance income

Premiums recognized as income comprise the premiums contracted during the fiscal year including premiums transferred from last years
but excluding next periods premiums, which are recognized as provision for unearned premiums. Provision for unearned premiums is a part
of the technical provision in the Statement of Financial Position.

Claims recognized in the Income Statement are the periods claims including increases or decreases due to claims from previous fiscal
years. Outstanding claims included in technical provision in the Statement of Financial Position are the total amount of reported but unpaid
claims as well as actuarial provision for claims occurred but unreported.
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55. Income tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax for the year has been calculated and recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Taxable profit may differ from earnings before tax as reported in the
Income Statement as it may exclude income or expense that is deductible in other years and it excludes income or expense that are never
taxable or deductible.

Current and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the realization of
foreign exchange gain or loss, for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

56. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date that they are originated at the fair value of consideration
paid. Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date at which the Group commits to purchase or sell
assets. All other financial assets and liabilities are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value and for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or when the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation of the Group specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Debt instruments
Debt instruments, including loans and debt securities, are classified into one of the following measurement categories:

— amortized cost;
— fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL); or
— fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and
— its contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (here after SPPI).

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
— its contractual cash flows are SPPI.

All other debt instruments are carried at FVTPL.
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56. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Business model assessment

Business model assessment involves determining whether financial assets are managed in order to generate cash flows from collection of
contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. The Group assesses the business model at a portfolio level reflective of how groups
of assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. For the assessment of business models the Group takes into
consideration the following factors:

- how the performance of assets in a portfolio is evaluated and reported to group heads and other key decision makers within the Group's
business lines;

- the risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business model and how those risks are managed;

- whether the assets are held for trading purposes, i.e. assets that the Group acquires or incurs principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is manage together for short-term profit or position taking;

- how compensation is determined for the Group's business lines' management that oversee the assets; and

- the frequency and volume of sales in prior periods and expectations about future sales activity.

Cash flow characteristics assessment

The contractual cash flow characteristics assessment involves assessing the contractual features of an instrument to determine if they give
rise to cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement are considered SPPI.

Interest is defined as consideration for the time value of money, the banks funding costs, the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding and other costs (e.g liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. Indexation of loans to the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) are considered part of interest as CPI guarantees the time value of money of the original outstanding balance.
Principal may change over the life of the instruments due to repayments. Indexation on principal accumulates over time.

In performing this assessment, the Group takes into consideration contractual features that could change the amount or timing of
contractual cash flows, such that the cash flows are no longer consistent with a basic lending arrangement. If the Group identifies any
contractual features that could modify the cash flows of the instruments such that they are no longer consistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial assets is classified at FVTPL.

Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

Debt instrument are measured at amortized cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. After initial measurement, debt
instruments in this category are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts contractual cash payments or receipt through the contractual lifetime of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, transaction cost and fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. Amortization is included in interest income in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Impairment on debt instruments measured at amortized cost is calculated using the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. Loans and debt
securities measured at amortized cost are presented net of allowance for credit losses in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

Debt instrument are measured at FVOCI if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold for collection of contractual
cash flows and/or selling financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent payments that are solely payments of principal and
interest. Subsequent to initial recognition, unrealized gains and losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recorded in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). At realization the accumulated profit or loss recognized in OCI in previous periods is recycled to the
Consolidated Income Statement. Foreign exchange gains and losses of the debt instrument are recognized in the Consolidated Income
Statement. Interest income from received payments are recognized in interest income in the Consolidated Income Statement upon
payment.

Impairment on debt instruments measured at FVOCI is calculated using the expected credit loss approach. The ECL on debt instruments
measured at FVOCI does not reduce the carrying amount of the asset in the Statement of Financial Position, which remains at its fair value.
Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in OCI with a
corresponding charge to net impairment in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. The accumulated allowance recognized
in OCl is recycled to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income upon derecognition of the debt instrument.
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Debt instruments measured at FVTPL

Debt instrument are measured at FVTPL if they are held for short term gain before maturity, held as part of a portfolio managed on a fair
value basis or the cash flows do not represent payments that are solely payments of principal and interest. These instruments are
measured at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized as
part of Net financial income in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Purchased loans

All purchased loans are initially measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. As a result no allowance for credit losses would be
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positions on the date of acquisition. Purchased loans may fit into either of the two
categories: Performing loans or Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired (POCI) loans.

Purchased performing loans are reflected in Stage 1 and will follow the same accounting as other performing loans. They will be subject to
a 12-month allowance for credit losses which is recorded as provision for credit losses in the Consolidated Income Statement. The fair
value adjustments set up for these loans on the date of acquisition is amortized into interest income over the life of these loans.

POCI loans do not have allowance at initial recognition but subsequently the allowance will reflect the changes in the lifetime expected
losses. At recognition the discount of each POCI loan is split up into two categories, impairment discount and interest discount or premium.
Interest is calculated with a credit adjusted effective interest rate and is posted to interest income. Periodically the Group recalculates the
carrying amount by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financial instrument's original credit adjusted effective
interest rate, any changes in the expected cash flows since the date of acquisition are recorded as a charge/recovery in net impairment in
the Consolidated Income Statement at the end of all reporting periods subsequent to the date of acquisition.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments are measured at FVTPL unless an election is made to designate them at FVOCI at initial recognition.

For equity instruments measured at FVTPL, changes in fair value are recognized as part of Financial income in the Consolidated Income
Statement.

The Group can elect to classify non-trading equity instruments at FVOCI. This election will be used for certain equity instruments for
strategic or longer term investment purposes. The FVOCI election is made upon initial recognition, on an instrument-by-instrument basis
and once made is irrevocable. Gains and losses on these instruments including when derecognized/sold are recorded in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement. Dividends received are recorded in Financial income in the Consolidated
Income Statement. Any transaction costs incurred upon purchase of the security are added to the cost basis of the security and are not
reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement of the security.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the
Group has a legal right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or for gains or losses arising from a
group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading activity.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2019 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

56. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Expected credit losses

Expected credit loss (ECL) is established for all financial assets, except for financial assets classified or designated as FVTPL and equity
instruments designated as FVOCI, which are not subject to impairment assessment. Assets subject to impairment assessment are primarily
debt instruments (including loans to customers) measured at amortized cost or FVOCI. ECL on financial assets is presented in Net
impairment. Other financial assets carried at amortized cost are presented net of ECL in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Off-balance sheet items subject to impairment assessment include financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments. ECL for
Off-balance sheet items is separately calculated and included in Other Liabilities.

The Group measures the ECL on each balance sheet date according to a three-stage expected credit loss impairment model:

Stage Criteria rates.
1 Exposures not impaired and with no significant increase 12 month expected credit loss is recorded. The expected credit
in credit risk loss is computed using a probability of default occurring over

the next 12 months. For those instruments with a remaining
maturity of less than 12 months, a probability of default
corresponding to remaining term to maturity is used. The
effective interest rate is calculated on the gross carrying

amount.
2 Exposures not impaired with significant increase in credit Lifetime expected credit loss is recorded, based on the
risk subsequent to origination. probability of default over the remaining estimated life of the

financial instrument. Effective interest rate is calculated on the
gross carrying amount.

3 Exposures in default / Credit impaired Lifetime expected credit loss is recorded. Effective interest rate
is calculated on the book value.

The ECL is an unbiased discounted probability-weighted estimate of the cash shortfalls expected to result from defaults occurring in the
next 12 months or, in cases where credit risk has significantly increased, in the expected lifetime of an exposure. For guarantees and loan
commitments, credit loss estimates consider the portion of the commitment that is expected to be paid out or expected to be drawn over the
relevant time period, contingent on significant financial difficulty.

Increases or decreases in the required ECL attributable to purchases and new originations, derecognitions or maturities, and
remeasurements due to changes in loss expectations or state migrations are recorded in net impairment. Write-offs and recoveries of
amounts previously written off are recorded against ECL.

The ECL represents an unbiased estimate of expected credit losses on our financial assets as at the balance sheet date. Judgement is
required in making assumptions and estimations when calculating the ECL, including movements between the three stages and the
application of forward looking scenarios. The underlying assumptions and estimates may results in changes to the provisions from period to
period that significantly affect our results of operations.

Definition of default
The Group considers a financial assets to be in default when:

— the borrower is more than 90 days past due, or
— the borrower is considered to be unlikely to pay.

In assessing whether a borrower is unlikely to pay, the Group considers both qualitative and quantitative indicators, e.g. overdue status,
debt and equity ratios, market circumstances and other data developed internally or obtained from external sources.

For corporate counterparties it is assumed that if one exposure is in default, all other exposures to that counterparty are also in default
(cross-default). For individuals however, each exposure portfolio is assessed separately, meaning that if an individual is in default on a loan
belonging to one portfolio, e.g. mortgages, his other exposures, belonging to other portfolios, e.g. consumer loans, are not assumed to be
in default, and vice versa. A default event for a mortgage can however be an indicator for the likelihood of default for the borrower's other
exposures, and vice versa. The Bank now defines six different exposure portfolios for individuals and has different statistical credit risk
model for each of them - mortgages, consumer loans, auto loans, guarantees, loans to individuals for work purposes and other loans.

Frequent default events within a year are treated as a single default event. A defaulted exposure is considered to be cured if all the
exposure belonging to certain portfolio has returned to non-default state, with no amount in arrears, within 18 months from default and
without any incurred loss for the Group.

Probability of default and credit risk rating

The Group allocates to each exposure a credit risk rating (e.g. A+, A, A-, BBB+, etc.) based on the calculated 12 month probability of
default (‘the PD'). The PD is assessed through the Group's credit rating models or based on external ratings if available. The Group's credit
rating models are statistical models based on a variety of information that has been determined to be predictive of default. These include
demographic, behavioral, financial and economic data, coupled with qualitative expert judgement for large corporate exposures. Factors
vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the profile of the borrower. The PD estimates used for the purpose of calculating IFRS 9
impairments are point-in-time, i.e. dependent on the economic cycle. The Group's credit rating models are subject to annual performance
tests and are recalibrated on a regular basis if needed.
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The Group's rating scale is shown below, including mapping of external ratings. The lower bounds are inclusive.

Risk S&P /
class Rating Lower PD Upper PD Fitch Moody's Description
0 0.000%  0.006% AAA Aaa Investment Grade
0.006% 0.018% AA+ Aal
0.018%  0.029% AA Aa2
0.029%  0.045% AA- Aa3
1 0.045%  0.070% A+ Al Investment Grade
0.070% 0.110% A A2
0.110% 0.170% A- A3
0.170%  0.260% BBB+ Baal
0.260%  0.410% BBB Baa2
0.410%  0.640% BBB- Baa3
2 2] = OO PRRRN 0.640%  0.990% BB+ Bal Non-investment
BB ittt ettt en 0.990%  1.540% BB Ba2 Grade
BB e 1.540%  2.400% BB- Ba3
3 Bt et nraa e 2.400%  3.730% B+ Bl Non-investment
B ettt ettt 3.730%  5.800% B B2 Grade
B i a e 5.800% 9.010% B- B3
4 ClCH it 9.010% 14.000% Non-investment
CCC et 14.000% 31.000% Grade
GG ittt s 31.000% 99.990%
5 DD e 99.99% 100.00% D C Default / Impaired

The Group uses external ratings for counterparties that receive such ratings from recognized rating agencies such as Moody's, Standard &
Poor's and Fitch. The Group's internal rating scale was originally calibrated to match historical default rates shown in publications of the
aforementioned rating agencies and using smoothing techniques. External ratings are primarily used to assess expected losses for
counterparties of marketable securities, money market and deposit accounts positions which fall under the Impairment requirements of
IFRS 9. The Bank's ECL is broken down by investment grade and non-investment grade classes for such exposures, as per the definition of
the corresponding rating agency.

Each exposure is allocated a credit risk rating at initial recognition. The calculations are based on rules and available information at the time
of origination. Exposures are continuously monitored and revaluated, which may result in transitions between risk ratings. The monitoring
typically involves the use of credit history, audited financial statements, management accounts, budgets, KPI's, projections, quality of
management, data from credit reference agencies, overdue status and other qualitative and quantitative information available.

Probability of default

The Group's PDs and PD term structures are based on both quantitative and qualitative factors and in some cases external ratings are
used. PD's are re-assessed on a regular basis with different frequencies depending on the type of counterparty and/or exposure.

In addition to calculating PD and allocating a credit risk rating to each exposure, the Group calculates the lifetime probability of default
(LPD), which is an assessment of the probability that a default event occurs over the lifetime of the exposure. The LPD incorporates
management's view of possible future macroeconomic developments and the likelihood of rating transitions over the lifetime of the
exposure. For the determination of LPD, the Bank calculates PD term structures — which effectively provides the probability of default for
any given time period, one for each rating grade, PD model and economic scenario. The annualized lifetime probability of default (ALPD) of
an exposure is the fixed 12 month PD (without transitions) that corresponds to the exposure's LPD. The credit risk rating that corresponds
to the ALPD is defined as the lifetime credit risk rating.

The assessed 12 months PDs are the basis for the determination of the term structure of PDs for exposures. The Group applies transition
models, developed on the basis of historical data, to predict the development of risk grades for periods that exceed one year. The Group
has separated transition behavior due to specific and general risk and applies its macro-economic forecasts to the latter. The analysis of
credit rating transitions due to general risk includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and
changes in key macro-economic factors. Unemployment rate is the predominant predictive variable. Among other indicators examined are
GDP growth and benchmark interest rates.

Assumptions on key macro-economic indicators are on an ongoing basis estimated based on internal and external information available at
each time. The Group formulates a 'base case' view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range
of other possible forecast scenarios. The Group uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of lifetime probability of default and other
factors that affect the lifetime expected credit loss.
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A new internal credit model structure was introduced in 2019 - new PD models were created and other updated. The Bank now has six
different exposure specific PD models for individuals replacing the two model for prime mortgages and other exposure - mortgages,
consumer loans, auto loans, guarantees, loans to individuals for work purposes and other loans. The Bank now has a different model or
rating logic for the following corporate portfolios — large corporates, retail SMEs, holding companies, financial institutions (external ratings),
municipalities, state related entities, organizations and cooperatives.

Loss given default

Each credit facility is assigned an LGD. The LGD is an assessment of loss conditional on a default occurrence. The Group splits LGD into
three components; the probability of cure, the expected recovery from liquidation of collateral, and the recovery rate for the unsecured part
of the exposure. The cure rate is modeled on the groups historical data of assets returning to performing status after being in default without
loss. The expected recovery is the outcome of The Group’s collateral allocation algorithm which takes into account the seniority of debt and
collateral type. Haircuts are applied to different types of collaterals based on expert judgment, supported by historical data, and takes into
account costs and the time value of money. Different haircuts are applied for different macro-economic scenarios in the ECL calculations.
In some instances assets are considered to be fully covered by collateral after haircut application and therefore carry no ECL. The recovery
rate for the unsecured part of the exposure is based on expert judgment taking into account historical loss experience.

The internal cure rate models were updated in 2019 using a new definition of cure. The cut-off period for cure has been increased from 12
months to 18 months from default, which means that a return to non-default after that period is not considered a cure. Furthermore, cure is
now defined on a portfolio level instead of on a loan level i.e. the same level as the PD models. In this version statistical cure rate models
were created for the largest portfolios — mortgages, consumer loans and large corporates and retail SMEs. As the explanatory variables in
the statistical cure rate models can be related to variables in PD models, this change prompts a consideration of PD-cure correlation. The
correlation effects are taken into account in the Bank’s ECL calculations. Furthermore, long-run average cure rate models using macro-
economic variables have been created. The model can be used to assess cure rate under different economic conditions to be able to apply
different cure rates for different economic scenarios given different economic conditions.

Exposure at default

The EAD represents the expected exposure at the event of a default. For a given exposure, the Group derives the EAD from the
contractual amortization schedule and taking into account the likelihood of pre-payments, drawdowns, rollovers, extensions and use of
unused allowance in the period leading up to default. These behavioral estimates, which are based on historical observations and forward-
looking forecasts, apply differently to each type of exposure.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk requires significant judgment. In determining whether the risk of default for an exposure
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers relevant, reasonable and supportable information on an ongoing
basis. Assumptions are drawn based on the Group's historical experience and expert judgement including forward-looking expectations. If a
debt investment security has low credit risk and is considered investment grade at the reporting date, the Group will determine that the
credit risk on the asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

For a given exposure, the Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred if one of the following holds:

— the exposure's credit risk rating on reporting date is not in risk class 0 or 1 and has deteriorated by more than one risk rating compared
to the credit risk rating at origination;

— the exposure's lifetime credit risk rating on reporting date is not in risk class 0 or 1 and has deteriorated by more than one risk grade
(two or more) compared to the lifetime credit risk rating at origination. As the Group does not have the benefit of hindsight, this
comparison is only used for exposures that originate on or after 1 January 2018;

— the number of days in arrears exceeds 30 days; or

— the exposure is on the Group's watch list.

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that the
criteria is capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default and there is no unwarranted volatility in
loss allowance from transfers between 12-month ECL (stage 1) and lifetime ECL (stage 2).
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Exposures in default

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the assets, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data
relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults in the group. When estimating impairments the following is considered:

— the Group's aggregate exposure to the customer;

— the amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

— the likely distribution available on liquidation or bankruptcy;

— the complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the extent to which legal and insurance
uncertainties are evident;

— the realizable value of collateral (or other credit mitigates) and likelihood of successful repossession; and

— the likely deduction of any costs involved in recovery of amounts outstanding.

The amount of the loss impaired is the difference between the assets' carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flow. In
some instances exposures do not require impairment due to collateral coverage.

Impairment losses are recognized in net impairment, see note 42. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through net impairment.

Expected credit loss measurement
The expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are based on three main components:

— probability of default (PD),
— loss given default (LGD); and
— exposure at default (EAD).

Each component is derived from internally generated models, apart from external credit ratings. The models are developed with statistical
methods and/or expert judgement supported by historical data and adjusted for expected macro-economic effects.

The Group measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any extension periods) over which
it is exposed to credit risk. The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require repayment of an
advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee. However, for overdrafts and credit card facilities that include both a loan and an
undrawn commitment component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual period if the Group’s
contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment structure. The Group can cancel them with immediate
effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an
increase in credit risk at the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the
Group expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the
outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms. The ECL calculations involve discounting using the exposures' effective
interest rates.

Forward looking scenarios

The ECL for an exposure is the weighted average of the expected credit loss for different macro-economic scenarios provided by the
Group's management. The Group currently considers three scenarios: 'base case', 'optimistic' and 'pessimistic' and assign its best estimate
of likelihood of occurrence to each one. The development of macro-economic variables and the corresponding weights are based on expert
judgement supported by historical data. The Group incorporates forward-looking macro-economic information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition (via the lifetime credit risk rating comparison)
and its measurement of ECL as the PD term structures, LGD and EAD include macro-economic adjustments for each of the scenarios.

The predominant macro-economic variable used across all portfolios is the unemployment rate in Iceland, as measured by the Directorate
of Labor. The default rate observed for the Group's exposures has been shown to be highly correlated with unemployment rate. The
average cure is also correlated with unemployment rate, depending on portfolio, and collateral haircuts are adjusted for different scenarios.
Exit and pre-payment rates, which affects EAD, are dependent on refinancing spreads and due to the correlation between interest rates and
unemployment rate they are adjusted for different scenarios.

Write-off of loans

Loans are written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery i.e. the bankruptcy of the borrower or an
ineffective attachment or distraint. Collateralized loans are generally written of when the realization of collateral have been received. After
write-off, exposures continue to be subject to collection activities in accordance with Icelandic law.
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56. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Modifications

The original terms of a financial asset may be renegotiated or otherwise modified, resulting in changes to the contractual terms of the
financial asset that affect the contractual cash flow. The treatment of such modifications is primarily based on the process undertaken to
execute the renegotiation and the nature and extent of changes made. Modifications which are performed for credit reasons, primarily
related to troubled debt restructurings, are generally treated as modifications of the original financial asset unless modifications are
significant. Significant modifications are generally considered to be an expiry of the original cash flows; accordingly, such renegotiations are
treated as a derecognition of the original financial asset and recognition of a new financial asset.

If a modification of terms does not result in derecognition of the financial asset, the carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated as
the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate and gain or loss is
recognized. The financial asset continues to be subject to the same assessments for significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition and credit-impairment, as described above. A modified financial asset will migrate out of Stage 3 if the conditions that led to it
being identified as credit-impaired are no longer present and relate objectively to an event occurring after the original credit-impairment was
recognized. A modified financial asset will migrate out of Stage 2 when it no longer satisfies the relative thresholds set to identify significant
increase in credit risk, which are based on changes in its PD, lifetime PD, days past due and other qualitative considerations.

If a modification of terms results in derecognition of the original financial asset and recognition of the new financial asset, the new financial
asset will generally be recorded in Stage 1, unless it is determined to be credit-impaired at the time of renegotiation. For the purposes of
assessing for significant increase in credit risk, the date of initial recognition for the new financial asset is the date of modification.

57. Hedge accounting

From the applying of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018, the Group has chosen to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS
39, in line with exemption from IFRS 9. However, the Group will provide the expanded disclosures on hedge accounting introduced by IFRS
9's amendments to IFRS 7, as the accounting policy election does not provide an exemption from the new disclosure requirements under
IFRS 7.

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting with respect to designated hedging relationship of certain fixed-rate foreign currency
denominated notes issued by the Bank as the hedged items and certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps as the hedging
instruments. The Group recognizes the changes in fair value of the interest rate swaps together with changes in the fair value of bonds
attributable to interest rate risk immediately in profit or loss in the line item of Note 10, Net gain on fair value hedge of interest rate swap.
Calculated accrued interest on both swaps and bonds are included in the line item of Note 7, Interest expense.

Other derivatives, not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, are used to manage its exposure to foreign currency, interest rate,
equity market and credit risk. The financial instruments used include, but are not limited to, interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps,
forward contracts, futures, options, credit swaps and equity swaps.

On initial designation of the hedges, the Group formally documented the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items,
including the risk management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge, together with the method that will be used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relationships. The Group makes an assessment, both at inception of the hedge relationships and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments are expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value of the
hedged items during the period for which the hedge is designated, and whether the actual results of each hedge are within the range of
80-125%.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for fair value hedge
accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. Any adjustments, up to the point of
discontinuation, to a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used, is amortized to profit or loss as part of the recalculated
effective interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

58. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows consist of cash, demand deposits with the Central Bank and demand deposits

with other credit institutions. Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial position.
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59. Loans

Loans are financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the Group does not
intend to sell immediately or in the near term. Loans include loans provided by the Group to credit institutions and to its customers,
participation in loans from other lenders and purchased loans.

Loans are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
asset to the lessee, the arrangement is classified as a capital lease and a receivable equal to the net investment in the lease is recognized
and presented within loans.

When the Group purchases an asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a
fixed price on a future date reverse repo or stock borrowing, the arrangement is accounted for as a loan, and the underlying asset is not
recognized in the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements.

60. Derivatives

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract, the value of which changes in response to a change in an underlying variable, such
as share, commodity or bond prices, an index value or an exchange or interest rate, which requires no initial net investment or initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes
in market factors and which is settled at a future date.

Derivatives are recognized at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in the Income Statement. Changes in fair values of derivatives
are split into interest income, foreign exchange differences and net financial gain or loss. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Derivatives with positive fair values are recognized as Financial instruments and derivatives with negative fair values are recognized as
Financial liabilities at fair value.

61. Intangible assets

Goodwill and infrastructure

Goodwill and infrastructure that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets. Subsequent to initial recognition
goodwill and infrastructure is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Customer relationship and related agreements
Customer relationship and related agreements are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Software

Software acquired by the Group is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets is recognized in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, from the date
that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of intangible assets for the current and comparative periods is three to ten years.
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62. Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the Income Statement.

63. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than assets held for sale, investment property and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine, whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of intangible assets is assessed annually.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of other assets, where impairment losses have been recognized in prior periods, are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

64. Deposits

Deposits are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

65. Borrowings

Borrowings are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption amount being recognized in the Income
Statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. Accrued interest is included in the carrying amount of the
borrowings.

66. Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are financial liabilities in the form of subordinated capital which, in case of the Group's voluntary or compulsory
winding-up, will not be repaid until after the claims of ordinary creditors have been met. In the calculation of the capital ratio, they are
included within Tier 2. The Group may only retire subordinated liabilities with the permission of the Icelandic Financial Supervisory Authority.

Subordinated liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, subordinated
liabilities are stated at principal amount due plus accrued interest, which is recognized in the Income Statement based on the contractual
terms of the borrowing.

67. Assets and disposal groups held for sale

The Group classifies a Asset or disposal group as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset or disposal group and the sale must be highly probable.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the qualifying assets and all assets and liabilities in a disposal group
is brought up-to-date in accordance with applicable IFRS. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, Assets and disposal groups are
recognized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale are
included in the Income Statement, even when there is a revaluation. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement.
Revaluation through the reversal of impairment in subsequent periods is limited so that the carrying amount of the held for sale, Assets or
disposal groups does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior
years.
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68. Other assets and other liabilities

Property and equipment

Iltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. When parts of an item of
property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of the expenditure will flow to the Group.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The depreciable amount of property and equipment is determined after deducting its residual value. Depreciation is charged to the Income
Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and equipment. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Real estates ... . 33 years
=L U1 01001 o | SRR UTP R TPPPPPPPRTPORY 3-7 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually.

Right-of-use asset and lease liability

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding
lease liability. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Other assets and other liabilities
Other assets and other liabilities are stated at cost less impairment.

Technical provision

Estimate is made in accordance with Solvency Il rules. Data from the company's claim system are extrapolated to predict the final amount
of the claims that will be paid at the end of the reporting period with corresponding expected payments from reporting date until the
settlement of claims that occurred prior to the reporting date. In addition, estimation of settlement cost, risk and other factors is made in
accordance with the instructions in Solvency Il rules. This approach is consistent with the valuation of insurance liabilities in IFRS 4.

69. Equity

Dividends
Dividends on shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are approved by Arion Bank's shareholders.

Reserve for investments in subsidiaries and associates

According to the Financial Statements Act No. 3/2006 the difference between share of profit of subsidiary or associate in excess of dividend
payment or dividend payment pending, shall be transferred to a restricted shareholding equity reserve, net of tax, which is not subject to
dividend payments. When shareholding in subsidiary or associate is sold or written off the shareholding equity reserve shall be released
and the amount transferred to retained earnings.

Reserve for investments in securities

According to the Financial Statements Act No. 3/2006 fair value changes of financial assets from the initial reporting, shall be transferred
from retained earnings to a fair value equity reserve, net of tax. The fair value equity reserve is not subject to dividend payments. The fair
value equity reserve shall be released in accordance with fair value changes recognized when financial asset is sold or redeemed or the
assumptions for the fair value change is no longer in force.

Reserve due to capitalized development cost

According to the Financial Statements Act No. 3/2006 entities that capitalize development costs shall transfer a corresponding amount from
retained earnings to a separate reserve. The reserve is not subject to dividend payments. The reserve shall be eliminated in an amount
corresponding to the annual depreciation of the capitalized development cost. The reserve shall be released if the asset is sold or fully
depreciated.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI

Unrealized fair value changes net of tax for assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value reserve is
released in correlation with realization of gains or losses of financial assets at derecognition.
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69. Equity, continued

Statutory reserve

According to the Icelandic Companies Act No. 2/1995 at least 10% of the profit of the Group which is not devoted to meeting losses from
previous years and is not contributed to other legal reserves must be contributed to the statutory reserve until it amounts to 10% of the
share capital. When that limit has been reached the contribution must be at least 5% of the profit until the statutory reserve amounts to 25%
of the share capital of the Bank.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of foreign operations.

70. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank hf. by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

71. Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees and acceptances.
Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value, being the premium received.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognized
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in the Income Statement, and the best estimate of expenditure required to
settle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded in
the Income Statement. The premium received is recognized in the Income Statement in Net fees and commission income on a straight line
basis over the life of the guarantee.

72. Fiduciary activities

The Group provides asset custody, asset management, investment management and advisory services to its clients. These services
require the Group to make decisions on the treatment, acquisition or disposal of financial instruments. Assets in the Group's custody are
not reported in its Statement of Financial Position.

73. Employee benefits

All entities with employees within the Group have defined contribution plans. The entities pay fixed contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory and contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once these contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognized as an expense in the Income Statement when they become due. The Group does not
operate any pension fund which confers pension rights.

74. Standards issued but not yet effective

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2019, and have not been applied in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements. Relevant to the Group's reporting is IFRS 17
Insurance contracts.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, is comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance). The
overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. IFRS
17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with comparative figures required. This standard will be applicable
to the Group's subsidiary Vérdur, which is currently assessing the potential effect of the standard.
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5-year overview

Income Statement

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
NEt INtEreSt INCOME ... .cciviiiiii e 30,317 29,319 28,920 29,900 26,992
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME .......covvviiieeiiieiiieee e 9,950 10,350 10,211 13,978 14,484
NEt INSUIANCE INCOMIE .....cevviiieieeeiiee et e e e aabaas 2,886 2,589 2,093 1,395 760
Net fiNanCial INCOME ........ouvriiiiiiieee e 3,212 2,302 4,045 5,162 12,844
Share of profit of associates and net impairment .............cccovvvvveeeeennns 756 27 (927) 908 29,466
Other operating iNCOIME ........ccuuviiiiiiiiiiiee et 877 1,584 2,521 3,203 2,074
OPErating INCOME ....couiiiiiiieiiiie ettt 47,998 46,171 46,863 54,546 86,620
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......c..eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e (14,641) (14,278) (13,602) (16,659) (14,892)
Other Operating eXPENSE .........cccocuiiiieiieiie e (12,222) (12,000) (9,291) (13,881) (12,919)
Operating EXPENSES .......cccciiiiiiiiiii i (26,863) (26,278) (22,893) (30,540) (27,811)
BANK TEVY .ottt (2,984) (3,386) (3,172) (2,872) (2,818)
NEt IMPAIMMENT ..ot (382) (3,525) 312 7,236 (3,087)
Earnings before iNCOmMEe taX .........ccveiiiieiiiieiieecee e 17,769 12,982 21,110 28,370 52,904
INCOME taX EXPENSE ..ot (3,714) (4,046) (5,966) (6,631) (3,225)
Net earnings from continuing OPerations ..........ccccvvveeviiiiieeeeesiiiieeeeens 14,055 8,936 15,144 21,739 49,679
Discontinued operations, Net Of taX ..........cccveeiieiiiiiiieeee e (12,955) (1,159) (725) - -
NEL AIMINGS .eiieiiiiee ettt et e et eeseneas 1,100 7,777 14,419 21,739 49,679
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Cash and balances with Central BankK ...........ccccccccovvvvviiiiiiiiiiii 95,717 83,139 139,819 87,634 48,102
Loans to credit iNSHIULIONS .........ccvvvvieeiiiiiiee e 17,947 56,322 86,609 80,116 87,491
LOANS tO CUSIOMENS ...ttt eeeeaaaes 773,955 833,826 765,101 712,422 680,350
Financial INSIUMENTS ........cvvvviiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 117,406 114,557 109,450 117,456 133,191
Investment property ... 7,119 7,092 6,613 5,358 7,542
INVEStMENtS IN ASSOCIALES .....cceeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e 852 818 760 839 27,299
INtANGIDIE @SSELS ..o 8,367 6,397 13,848 11,057 9,285
TAX @SSELS ..ttt 2 90 450 288 205
Assets and disposal groups held for sale ...........ccooceviiiiiiieinieeieee 43,626 48,584 8,138 4,418 5,082
(@) (g1 o= 1YY= 16,864 13,502 16,966 16,436 12,496
TOtal ASSELS ..oieiiiiiici 1,081,855 1,164,327 1,147,754 1,036,024 1,011,043
Liabilities and Equity
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ............cccceevvviiieeniiiiiieenennnns 5,984 9,204 7,370 7,987 11,387
(D=7 010 1] £ TP TPPPPRRPIOY 492,916 466,067 462,161 412,064 469,347
Financial liabilities at fair value .. 2,570 2,320 3,601 3,726 7,609
TaX IADIIILIES ...vveveeeeeeiieee e 4,404 5,119 6,828 7,293 4,922
Liabilities associated with disposal groups held for sale ................c........ 28,631 26,337 - - -
Other abilItIES .....cccviiiiiie i 32,697 30,107 57,062 54,094 49,461
BOITOWINGS ...ttt ettt ettt 304,745 417,782 384,998 339,476 256,058
Subordinated HabilItIES ..........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiee e 20,083 6,532 - - 10,365
Total [1ADIILIES ..vveeeiieciiiiie e 892,030 963,468 922,020 824,640 809,149
Shareholders' EQUILY .......eeeueeeiiiee et ee e 189,644 200,729 225,606 211,212 192,786
Non-controlling interest .. . 181 130 128 172 9,108
TOLAl EQUILY .veeeiiieeeee et 189,825 200,859 225,734 211,384 201,894
Total Liabilities and EQUILY «...eoevieeeiiieeiiiee it 1,081,855 1,164,327 1,147,754 1,036,024 1,011,043

Valitor Holding hf. was classified as disposal group held for sale in 2018, see Note 29. Comparative figures for 2015 and 2016 have not been
restated.
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Corporate Governance

Statement of Arion bank
for 2019

Good corporate governance helps to foster open

and honest relations between the Board of Directors,
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders,

such as the Bank’s employees and the general public.
Corporate governance also provides the foundations
for responsible management and decision-making, with
the objective of generating lasting value. The Board of
Directors places great importance on good corporate
governance and re-evaluates its governance practices
regularly on the basis of recognized guidelines on
corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Statement of Arion Bank

hf. (Arion Bank or the Bank) is based on the legislation,
regulations and recognized guidelines which are in force
at the time the Bank’s financial statement is adopted by
the Board of Directors.

Excellence in corporate governance

Arion Bank was recognized as a company which has
achieved excellence in corporate governance following
a formal assessment based on the Icelandic Guidelines
on Corporate Governance issued by the Icelandic
Chamber of Commerce, SA - Business Iceland and
Nasdaq Iceland, initially in December 2015 and again in
April 2019. This recognition was granted following an in-
depth assessment by an independent party of corporate
governance at the Bank, including governance by the

Board of Directors, sub-committees and management,
performed by KPMG ehf. in the autumn of 2015. The
recognition applies for three years at a time

Compliance with guidelines on good
corporate governance

According to the Financial Undertakings Act No.
161/2002 Arion Bank is obliged to comply with
recognized guidelines on good corporate governance.
The Bank complies with the fifth edition of the Icelandic
Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Iceland
Chamber of Commerce, SA - Business Iceland and
Nasdaq Iceland, published in May 2015 and viewable
on the website www.leidbeiningar.is. According to

the guidelines a company shall state whether it has
deviated from the guidelines, if so, which parts and also
explain why it has done so. The Bank complies with the
guidelines with one deviation.

Article 5.1.2. states that the rules of procedure of sub-
committees of the Board shall be posted on the Bank’s
website. The rules of the Board Credit Committee have
not been published on the Bank’s website with respect to
their nature.

The role of the Nomination Committee at Arion Bank is
to promote good corporate governance and to facilitate
informed decision-making by shareholders when
selecting Board members to ensure that Board members

o
LS



Corporate Governance Statement of Arion Bank

have wide and versatile qualifications and experience.
The Committee has an advisory role regarding the
election of Board members and makes a proposal on
their remuneration. At the Bank’s Annual General Meeting
on 20 March 2019 two members of the Nomination
Committee were elected, Christopher Felix Johannes
Guth and Keith Magliana. At a shareholders’ meeting on
9 August 2019 Julius borfinnsson was elected to replace
Christopher Felix Johannes Guth on the Nomination
Committee. The third Nomination Committee member
is appointed by the Board in accordance with the rules
of procedure of the Nomination Committee. The third
member is Herdis Drofn Fjeldsted, Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors.

Legal framework for the Bank’s operation

Arion Bank is a financial institution which operates in
accordance with the Financial Undertakings Act No.
161/2002. Acts of law which also apply to the Bank’s
operations include e.g. the Securities Transactions

Act No. 108/2007, Act on Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities (UCITS), Investment
Funds and Professional Investment Funds No. 128/2011,
Act on Payment Services No. 120/2011, Act on Measures
Against Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing No.
140/2018, Act on Consumer Mortgages No. 118/2016,
Consumer Loans Act No. 33/2013, Competition Act No.
44/2005 and Public Limited Companies Act No. 2/1995.

The Bank is a universal bank which provides a
comprehensive range of financial services relating to
savings, loans, asset management, corporate finance
and capital markets. The Bank was listed on Nasdaq
Iceland and Nasdaqg Sweden on 15 June 2018. The Bank
has also issued financial instruments which have been
admitted for trading on regulated securities markets in
Iceland, Norway and Luxembourg. The Bank is therefore
subject to the disclosure requirements of issuers
pursuant to the Securities Transactions Act and the rules
of the relevant stock exchanges.

Financial Supervisory Authority of the Central Bank of
Iceland, which from 1 January 2020 is part of the Central
Bank of Iceland, supervises the operations of Arion Bank
in accordance with the provisions of Act No. 87/1998 on
the Official Supervision of Financial Operations. Further
information on the FME and an overview of the legal

and regulatory framework applicable to the Bank, and
the FME’s guidelines, can be seen on the Central Bank’s
website, www.cb.is. Numerous other pieces of legislation
to the operations of financial undertakings.

Internal controls, auditing and accounting

Internal control

Internal control at Arion Bank is organized into three
lines of defence with the aim of ensuring effectiveness,

defining responsibility and coordinating risk
management. This structure is also designed to foster
a sense of risk awareness and responsibility among all
employees of the Bank.

The set-up distinguishes between the following roles:

« People who bear responsibility for risk and
manage risk

« People who monitor and check internal controls

+ People who perform independent surveys of the
effectiveness of internal controls

The first line of defence is made up of people who

have day-to-day supervision of operations and its
organization. They are responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal controls and managing
risk in day-to-day operations. This involves identifying
and evaluating risk and putting in place appropriate
countermeasures to reduce risk. The first line of defence
is responsible for supervising the implementation of
internal rules and processes in compliance with the law,
regulations and the Bank’s strategy and it must ensure
that all actions are in compliance with established
procedures and that corrective action is taken if any
deficiencies are detected.

Board of Directors
4

Y

'y Py

First line of defence Second line of defence Third line of defence
Operational Management Primarily Risk & Compliance Internal Audit

The second line of defence is set up to ensure that the
first line of defence has established adequate internal
controls which work as intended. Risk Management and
Compliance are the main participants in the second line
of defence, although other units may also be assigned
specific monitoring roles.

The third line of defence is Internal Audit, which keeps
the Board and management informed of the quality of
corporate governance, risk management and internal
controls, including by performing independent and
objective audits.

Compliance

Compliance is an independent control function which
reports directly to the CEO and works in accordance with
a special charter from the Board.
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The main role of Compliance is to ensure that the Bank
has in place proactive measures to reduce the risk of
rules being breached in the course of its activities.
Compliance is also responsible for coordinating the
Bank’s measures against money laundering and terrorist
financing to reduce the risk of the Bank’s services

being used for illegal purposes. In September 2019

the Compliance Officer also took over the role of

Data Protection Officer. Arion Bank cares about data
protection and our customers’ personal data we aim to
ensure that personal data is processed legally, fairly and
transparently. The Bank has adopted a data protection
policy which can be seen on the Bank’s website.

The duties of Compliance are carried out under a
risk-based compliance plan approved by the Board of
Directors, including a monitoring and training schedule
for employees which addresses the laws and rules under
which the Bank operates. Compliance provides the

Board of Directors with a quarterly report on its activities.

Further information can be found on the Bank’s website.

Risk Management

A central feature of the activities of all financial
companies is carefully calculated risk-taking according
to a predetermined strategy. Arion Bank thus takes risk
compatible with its risk appetite, which is regularly
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. The
Bank's risk appetite, set by the Board, is translated into
exposure limits and targets that are monitored by Risk
Management. The Board is responsible for Arion Bank’s
internal capital adequacy assessment process, the
main objective of which is to ensure that Arion Bank
understands its risk profile and has systems in place to
assess, quantify and monitor its total risk exposure.

The Bank’s Risk Management division is headed by the
Chief Risk Officer. It is independent and centralized and
reports directly to the CEO. Risk Management comprises
three departments whose role is to analyze, monitor and
regularly report to the CEO and Board of Directors on the
risks faced by the Bank.

Further information on risk management and capital
management is contained in the Bank’s annual report
and the Bank’s risk report.

Internal Audit

The Internal Auditor is appointed by the Board of
Directors and reports directly to the Board. The Board
sets the Internal Auditor a charter which sets out the
responsibilities associated with the position and the
scope of the work. The role of the Internal Auditor is

to provide independent and objective assurance and
advice designed to add value and improve the Bank’s
operations. The scope of the audit is the Bank, its
subsidiaries and pension funds serviced by Arion Bank.

Internal Audit is governed by the audit charter, the FME's
guidelines on the internal audit function in financial
institutions and international standards on internal
auditing.

Accounting and auditing

The Bank’s Finance division is responsible for preparing
the accounts and this is done in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
Bank publishes its financial statement on a quarterly
basis and management statements are generally
submitted to the Board ten times a year. The Board Audit
Committee examines the annual financial statement and
interim financial statements, while the external auditors
review and audit the accounts twice a year. The Board
Audit Committee gives its opinion on the accounts to the
Board of Directors, which then approves and endorses
the accounts.

Cornerstones and code of ethics

Arion Bank’s cornerstones is the name used to describe
the Bank’s core values. The cornerstones are designed
to provide guidance when making decisions and in
everything else employees say and do. They refer to
the Bank'’s role, attitude and conduct. Arion Bank’s
cornerstones are: we make a difference, we get things
done and we say what we mean.

The management and employees of Arion Bank

are conscious of the fact that the Bank’s activities

affect different stakeholders and society at large. The
Bank’s code of ethics is designed to serve as a key to
responsible decision-making at Arion Bank. The code of
ethics is approved by the Board of Directors.

Sustainability

Arion Bank'’s sustainability policy bears the title "Together
we make good things happen" and signifies that the Bank
wants to act as a role model in responsible and profitable
business practices, taking into account the environment,
the economy and the society in which we live and work.

Arion Bank shows its commitment to sustainable banking
by making a difference to our customers and performing
our role as a financial institution conscientiously and
responsibly. Arion Bank takes an active role in our society
and its development. Financial institutions are one of the
pillars of society and our role is to help our customers,
both individuals and companies, reach their goals. We
place great importance on doing things fairly with the
interests of our customers, employees, investors and the
community at heart.

Arion Bank has been a partner of Festa, the Icelandic
Center for Corporate Social Responsibility, for several
years and since 2014 has been a signatory to the CEO
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Statement of Support for the Women’s Empowerment
Principles (UN Women and UN Global Compact). In
2015 the Bank signed the City of Reykjavik and Festa’s
Declaration on Climate Change and has published its
environmental accounts since 2016. Arion Bank has
been a signatory to the UN Global Compact, the UN'’s
initiative to encourage businesses to adopt sustainable

and socially responsible practices, since the end of 2016.

The Bank has also complied with the UN’s Principles for
Responsible Banking (UN PRI) since the end of 2017. In
September 2019 the Bank became a signatory to the UN
Principles for Responsible Banking (UN PRB), the goal

of which is to align banking with international goals and
commitments such as the UN Sustainable Development
Goals and the Paris Climate Agreement.

Arion Bank’s activities are governed by the provisions
of the Annual Accounts Act on non-financial reporting,
which, among other things, apply to the status and
influence of the company in respect of environmental,
social and human resources issues. Non-financial
reporting in the annual report is based on the Global
Reporting Initiative, GRI Core and the ESG reporting
guide for the Nasdaq Nordic and Baltic exchanges.

In December 2019 the Board of Directors adopted a
new environment and climate policy. Under the new
policy the Bank will focus its attention on financing
projects on sustainable development and green
infrastructure, require that suppliers take into account
the environmental and climate impact of their activities
and reduce its own greenhouse gas emissions by 40%
by 2030.

Further information on sustainability at Arion Bank can
be found in the Bank’s 2019 Annual Report. Further
information can be found on the Bank’s website.

Board of Directors and committees

The main duty of the Board of Directors of Arion Bank
is to manage the Bank between shareholders’ meetings
according to applicable laws, regulations and articles
of association. The Board tends to those operations of
the Bank which are not considered part of the day-to-
day business, i.e. it makes decisions on issues which are
unusual or of a significant nature. One of the Board'’s
main duties is to supervise the Bank’s activities. The
Board’s work, duties and role are defined in detail in
the rules of procedure of the Board of Directors, which
have been established on the basis of Article 54 of the
Financial Undertakings Act, Article 70 of the Public
Limited Companies Act No. 2/1995, FME Guidelines No.
1/2010, and the Bank's Articles of Association. The rules
of procedure of the Board of Directors can be found on
the Bank’s website.

The Board of Directors appoints a Chief Executive
Officer who is responsible for the day-to-day operations
in accordance with a strategy set out by the Board.

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer
shall carry out their duties with integrity and ensure
that the Bank is run in a sound and reasonable manner
in the interests of the customers, the community, the
shareholders and the Bank itself, cf. Article 1 (1) of the
Financial Undertakings Act. The Chief Executive Officer
shall ensure that the Board receives sufficient support to
carry out its duties.

The Board of Directors is generally elected for a term of
one year at the Bank’s Annual General Meeting. At Arion
Bank’s annual general meeting on 20 March 2019, six
Directors and three Alternates were elected to the Board
of Directors. At a shareholders’ meeting on 9 August
2019, two Directors were elected to the Board, Paul
Horner and Gunnar Sturluson. Benedikt Gislason, who
had been a Director since 2018, resigned from the Board
when he was appointed CEO of Arion Bank.

The elected Board Directors have diverse backgrounds
and extensive skills, experience and expertise. When
electing the Board care is taken to ensure at least 40%
representation of each gender among directors and
alternates. Currently the Board consists of four men and
three women.

Information on the independence of Directors is
published on the Bank’s website before the annual
general meeting or a shareholders’ meeting where a
Board member is to be elected. The minutes of the
annual general meeting and shareholders’ meetings are
also published on the Bank’s website.

The Board of Directors meets at least ten times a year.
In 2019 the Board met on 14 occasions. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for ensuring that the Board
performs its role in an efficient and organized manner.
The Chairman chairs Board meetings and ensures that
there is enough time allocated to the discussion of
important issues and that strategy issues are discussed
thoroughly. The Chairman is not permitted to undertake
any other work for the Bank unless part of the normal
duties of the Chairman.

According to the Board’s Rules of Procedure the Board is
permitted to establish committees to discuss particular
areas of the Bank'’s operations. No later than one month
following the annual general meeting the Board appoints
members to each of its sub-committees and assesses
whether it is necessary to appoint external members to
certain committees in order to bring in a greater level

of expertise. One of the committee members in the
Board Audit Committee, Heimir borsteinsson, is not a
Board member and is independent of the Bank and its
shareholders. The Board sub-committees are as follows:

o
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« Board Audit Committee (BAC): Its main task is,
inter alia, to guarantee the quality of the financial
statement and other financial information from
the Bank and the independence of its auditors.
The Committee also assists the Board in meeting
its responsibility to ensure an effective system of
internal controls and compliance and for meeting
its external financial reporting obligations under
applicable laws and regulations. The Committee

met six times in 2019.

« Board Risk Committee (BRIC): The Committee’s
main role is, inter alia, to evaluate the Bank’s
risk policy and risk appetite and to have a
thorough knowledge of the risk assessments
and methods used to manage risk employed by
the Bank. Committee members should have the

qualifications and experience necessary to be able

to discharge their duties including forming the

Bank'’s risk policy and risk appetite. The Committee

met eight times in 2019 and a joint meeting was
held with the Board Remuneration Committee.

Director Period Board (14)
Eva Cederbalk’ 1Jan- 20 Mar 4
Brynjolfur Bjarnason 1 Jan- 31 Dec 14
Herdis D. Fjeldsted 1 Jan- 31 Dec 14
Benedikt Gislason? 5 Sep- 26 Jun 5
Gunnar Sturluson 9 Aug- 31 Dec 4
Liv Fiksdahl 20 Mar - 31 Dec 9
Méans Hoglund?® 1 Jan- 20 Mar 4
Renier Lemmes 20 Mar- 31 Dec 9
Paul Horner 9 Aug - 31Dec 4
Steinunn Kr. bérdardottir 1Jan - 31 Dec 14
Olafur O. Svansson 1Jan - 31 Dec 7
Sigurbjorg A. Jonsdottir 1Jan - 31 Dec 1
pérarinn borgeirsson 1Jan - 20 Mar -

prostur Rikhardsson

Heimir Porsteinsson

20 Mar - 31 Dec
26 July - 31 Dec

Board Credit Committee (BCC): Its main task is
to attend to credit issues which exceed the credit
limits of its sub-committees. The Committee met
16 times in 2019.

Board Remuneration Committee (BRC): The
Committee’s main task is to advise the Board on
the terms of remuneration to the Chief Executive
Officer and other employees hired directly by the
Board. Regular tasks at committee meetings are
to review the remuneration policy, the human
resources policy, salary distribution and the
incentive system, if one is in place. The Bank’s
remuneration policy shall be examined and
approved by a shareholders’ meeting annually.
The Committee met four times in 2019 and a joint
meeting was held with the Board Risk Committee.

Sub-committees regularly inform the Board of their
activities. Furthermore, the Board has access to all
material used by the sub-committees and their minutes.

Below is an overview of the attendance of individual
Directors and committee member.

BAC (6) BRIC (9) BCC (16) BRC (5)

3
15 2

3 - 3
5

- - 2

4 3 -

3 -

3 -

9 15 -

N
N
w

The Board carries out an annual performance appraisal, at which it assesses its work, the necessary number of
Board Directors, the Board composition with respect to experience and skills, working procedures and methods,
the performance of the CEQ, their achievements and the work of the subcommittees with respect to the
aforementioned. This appraisal was last performed by the Board during the period October 2019 to January 2020.

"Eva Cederbalk stepped down from the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019.

2 Benedikt Gislason stepped down from the Board of Directors on 26 June 2019 and took over as CEO on 1 July 2019.

2 Mans Hoglund stepped down from the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019.
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Arion Bank Governance Overview

Nomination Committee

—> Board Credit Committee Board Remuneration Committee

Gender Equality Committee
Data Committee

The Board of Directors of
Arion bank

Brynjoélfur Bjarnason

Herdis Drofn Fjeldsted
Gunnar Sturluson

Liv Fiksdahl

Paul Horner

Renier Lemmens

Steinunn Kristin Pérdardottir

Annual General Meeting External Auditor

Board of Directors Internal Audit

Risk management

I Elected by/appointed by
I Reports to/informs
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Brynjoélfur Bjarnason,
Chairman

Brynjolfur was born in 1946. He was first
elected as a Director at a shareholders’
meeting on 20 November 2014. He is
not a shareholder of Arion Bank and is
an independent Director. Brynjélfur is
the Chairman of the Board, Chairman

of the Board Remuneration Committee
and Chairman of the Board Credit
Committee. Brynjolfur graduated with
an MBA from the University of Minnesota
in 1973 and a cand. oecon. degree in
business studies from the University of
Iceland in 1971.

Brynjolfur previously worked as the
managing director of the Enterprise
Investment Fund and as the CEO of
Skipti, Siminn and Grandi hf. He has
also worked as managing director of the
publisher AB bdkautgafa and was head
of the economics department of VSI.
Brynjolfur has broad experience

as a director and has served on
numerous boards and been chairman
of several of them.

Brynjolfur is an Alternate on the Board
of Fergusson ehf. and a board member
of Marinvest ehf. and ISAL hf.

Herdis Dro6fn Fjeldsted,
Vice Chairman

Herdis was born in 1971. She was first
elected as a Director at Arion Bank’s
annual general meeting on 15 March
2018. She is not a shareholder in Arion
Bank and is an independent Director.
Herdis is Vice Chairman of the Board,
Chairman of the Board Audit Committee
and a member of the Board Remuneration
Committee. Herdis is Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Valitor, Arion Bank’s
subsidiary, and Chairman of the Board
Remuneration Committee at Valitor.

Herdis graduated with a BSc in business
administration with an emphasis on
international marketing from the Technical
University of Iceland in 2004 and a
Master’s degree in corporate finance from
Reykjavik University in 2011. Herdis is also
a certified stockbroker.

Herdis was the CEO of The Icelandic
Enterprise Investment Fund
(Framtakssjodur islands- FSi) from 2014
and before that worked as an investment
manager at FSi. Before joining The
Icelandic Enterprise Investment Fund,
Herdis worked as a senior investment
analyst at Thule Investments. Herdis has
served on numerous boards of directors,
e.g. as the Chairman of VIS hf., Chairman
of Icelandic Group, Vice-Chairman of
Promens and as a board member of
Invent Farma, Medicopack A/S, Icelandair
Group and Copeinca AS. Herdis is also

a member of Exedra. Today, Herdis is a
board member at The Icelandic-Canadian
Chamber of Commerce.

Gunnar Sturluson

Gunnar was born in 1967. He was first
elected as a Director at a shareholders’
meeting on 9 August 2019. He is not

a shareholder of Arion Bank and is

an independent Director. Gunnar is a
member of the Board Credit Committee.

Gunnar graduated as Cand. Jur from the
University of Iceland in 1992, gained an
LL.M. degree in Law from the University
in Amsterdam in 1995 and received a
license to practice before the District
Court in Iceland in 1993 and before the
Supreme Court in 1999.

Gunnar practiced law at the law firm
Malflutningsskrifstofan in 1992-1999
and became partner in 1995. He joined
Logos Legal Services in 2000 as a
partner and was managing partner

in 2001-2013. Gunnar lectured in
competition law in 1995-2007 at the
University of Iceland, Faculty of Law.

Gunnar has held various directorships,
including the board of directors at
Gamma hf. in 2017-2019, chairman of
the board of directors of the Icelandic
National Broadcasting Service (RUV)
2016-2017, director at the Nordic
Arbitration Center, president of the
International Federation of Icelandic
Horse Associations, chairman of the
board of directors of the Icelandic
Dance Company 2013-2016 and was
voted by the Icelandic parliament

to serve on the National Electoral
Commission in 2013-2017.
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Liv Fiksdahl

Liv was born in 1965. She was first
elected as a Director at Arion Bank’s
Annual General Meeting on 20 March
2019. She is not a shareholder of Arion
Bank and is an independent Director.
Liv is a member of the Board
Remuneration Committee.

Liv holds a degree in finance and
management from Trondheim Business
School (today NTNU) in 1986. In 2018,
Liv completed programs at Stanford
University in big data, strategic decisions
and analysis, and the innovative
technology leader. She has also
completed an advanced management
program for executives in management,
innovation and technology at
Massachusetts Institute

of Technology.

Liv is currently a vice president
(associated) within Financial Services
at Capgemini Invent, Norway and serves
on the boards of Scandinavian Airlines
SAS AB, Posten Norge AS and Intrum
AB. Liv has held various senior roles

at DNB and was part of the executive
management team for 10 years, and
her most recent role was as the Group
EVP, CIO/COQO, for IT & Operations.

Liv has broad experience from DNB,
and has held different positions within
the bank. Before DNB she had key
account roles for the corporate clients
within Danske Bank/Fokus Bank, and
Svenska Handelsbanken. Liv has
served on numerous boards, including
BankAxept, Sparebankforeningen,
Doorstep, Finans Norge and
Trondheim Kommune Bystyret.

Paul Horner

Paul was born in 1962. He was first
elected as a Director at a shareholders’
meeting on 9 August 2019. He is not

a shareholder of Arion Bank and is

an independent Director. Paul is a
member of the Board Risk Committee.

Paul graduated with M.A. Honours in
music from the University of Oxford
in 1983 and is an associate of the UK
Chartered Institute of Bankers.

Paul held various executive and

risk management roles at Barclays
PLC between 1988 and 2003. In
2003 Paul joined The Royal Bank of
Scotland Group and served as an
executive and senior manager of
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC. He also
held various senior risk and general
management roles until June 2019.

In 2012 to 2017, Paul was the Chief
Risk Officer of Coutts & Co Ltd. and
CEO of Coutts & Co Ltd, Zurich, in
2016-2017. Paul was Director of Risk
at Ulster Bank DAC, Dublin, and is
presently a non-executive director
at Coutts & Co Ltd. in Zurich.

Renier Lemmens

Renier was born in 1964. He was
first elected as a Director at Arion
Bank’s Annual General Meeting on 20
March 2019. He is not a shareholder
of Arion Bank and is an independent
Director. Renier is a member of the
Board Audit Committee and the
Board Risk Committee. Renier is
member of the board of directors
of Arion Bank’s subsidiary Valitor
and chairman of the board risk and
monitoring committee at Valitor.

Renier has an MBA from INSEAD and
an MSc in computer science from
Delft University of Technology.

Renier is currently professor of fintech
and innovation at the London Institute of
Banking and Finance and the chairman
of the board of TransferGo and Divido.
Renier previously worked as CEO of
Viadeo SA, was partner at Ramphastos
Investments, CEO EMEA at PayPal, CEO
of Amodo Consumer Finance, COO of
international retail & commercial banking
at Barclays Bank, consumer finance
officer at GE Capital and a partner at
McKinsey & Company. Renier has also
served on numerous boards, including
Revolut, Zenith Bank Ltd., Novum Bank
Ltd. as chairman, Antenna Company
Ltd., Robin Mobile BV, VoiceTrust BV,
Krefima NV as chairman, Arenda BV

as chairman, ZA Life Assurance NV,

First Caribbean International Bank and
chairman and CEO of Budapest Bank.
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Steinunn Kristin bordardottir

Steinunn was born in 1972. She was first
elected as a Director at Arion Bank’s
shareholders’ meeting on 30 November
2017. She is not a shareholder of Arion Bank
and is an independent Director. Steinunn
has a Master’s degree in international
management from Thunderbird, Arizona
and a BA in international business and
politics from University of South Carolina.

Steinunn was previously a partner and CEO
of Beringer Finance Norway and global head
of food and seafood. She founded Akton
AS, a management consulting company

in Norway in 2010 where she worked as

a managing director until 2015. Steinunn
worked at islandsbanki (later Glitnir) as
executive director of International Corporate
Credit and later as managing director and
head of the bank’s UK operations. Steinunn
has previously held several Directorships

in Europe and was a board member of the
Icelandic State Financial Investment (ISFI).
Steinunn is the chairman of the board of
Acton Capital AS and Akton AS and a board
member of Cloud Insurance AS. She is also
a board member of the Norwegian-Icelandic
Chamber of Commerce. Steinunnis a
member of the nomination committee of
Siminn.

Alternate directors:

Olafur Orn Svansson, Supreme Court
attorney, Sigurbjorg Asta Jonsdattir, lawyer
and brostur Rikhardsson, Supreme Court
attorney.

More information on the Board of Directors
can be found on the Bank’s website.

Communication between the shareholders
and the Board of Directors

The main venue at which the Board and the Bank report information

to the shareholders and propose decisions to be made is at legally
convened shareholders’ meetings. The Bank provides an effective and
accessible arrangement for communications between shareholders
and the Board of Directors between those meetings. Any information
sensitive to the market will be released through a MAR press release. As
part of the investor relations programme, Arion Bank has also arranged
quarterly meetings where the CEO, CFO and Investor Relations present
the interim financial results.

The Bank has a strong capital position despite substantial dividends
and share buybacks totaling ISK 33 billion during the year. The Bank’s
listing on Nasdaq Iceland and Nasdaqg Stockholm took place on 15
June following an initial public offering of 28.7% of shares in the Bank
placed with investors in Iceland, Scandinavia, UK, Continental Europe
and the US. This is the first listing of an Icelandic bank on the main
market in Iceland since 2008. The IPO represents a significant step

in the development of Arion Bank and the Bank welcomes the new
shareholders. Following the IPO in June this year there have been no
major changes to the largest shareholdings. At the end of the year,
Kaupskil ehf. is the largest shareholder with a 32.67% shareholding.
Today the total number of shareholders is more than 6000.

Chief Executive Officer*
Benedikt Gislason
Benedikt was born in 1974. Benedikt was appointed CEO on 1 July 2019.

Benedikt joined FBA (later islandsbanki) in 1998, held a variety of managerial
positions at Straumur-Burdaras, was managing director of capital markets at
FL Group and was managing director of the investment banking division of
MP Bank. Benedikt worked as a senior advisor for Iceland’s Ministry of Finance
and Economic Affairs and was vice-chairman of a government task force on
the liberalization of the capital controls between 2013 and 2016. He served

on the board of directors of Kaupthing from 2016 to 2018 and was an advisor
to Kaupthing on matters relating to Arion Bank. Benedikt was elected to the
Board of Directors of Arion Bank in September 2018 and served on the Board
until his appointment as CEO.

Benedikt gained a C.Sc. in mechanical and industrial engineering from
the University of Iceland in 1998.

Yo!

Héskuldur H. Olafsson served as CEO until 30 April 2019 "‘k
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Executive Committee®

The Bank’s Executive Committee consists of the
following people and the CEO:

. Asgeir H. Reykfjord Gylfason, Deputy CEO and
Managing Director of Corporate and Investment
Banking

« Gisli S. Ottarsson, Chief Risk Officer

» |da Bra Benediktsdottir, Managing Director
of Retail Banking

+ Margrét Sveinsdottir, Managing Director of Markets

« Stefan Pétursson, Chief Financial Officer

More information on the Executive Committee can be
found on the Bank’s website.

®  Jonina S. Larusdottir was managing director of the Legal division
until 16 September 2019. Rakel Ottarsdéttir was managing director
of Information Technology until 20 September 2019.
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Information on violations of laws and
regulations and legal cases.

Arion Bank has not been denied registration,
authorization, membership or permission to conduct
certain business, activity or operations. The Bank has

not been subject to withdrawal, revocation or dismissal
of registration, authorization, membership or permission.
Information on the main legal cases relating to Arion
Bank and a settlement with the Financial Supervisory
Authority can be found in the notes to the annual
financial statement.

The Board of Directors annually reviews and approves the
Corporate Governance Statement.

This Corporate Governance Statement was examined and
approved at a meeting of the Board of Directors on 12
February 2020.
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